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ASSEMBLY No. 3207

STATE OF NEV NEW JERSEY

INTRODUCED FEBRUARY 28,. 1983

By Assemblymen MAZUR, KARCHER, BAER, McENROE,
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WATSON, DORIA, JACKMAN, T. GALLO, COWAN, JANIS-
ZEWSKI, CHARLES, VISOTCKY, HOLLENFBECK, PELLY,
Assemblywoman . OGDEN, - AsSenlblymelx KERN, iFELTCE,
SCHUBER, FORTUNATO, Assemblywoman 'PERUN and
Assemhlynmn SCTIWARTZ

AN Acr concerning steel-jaw leghold type animal traps, and re-
pealing section 2 of P. L. 1971, c. 405.

Be 11 knacrip by the Senate and General Assembly of the State
of New Jersey:
1. No person shall manufacture, sell, offer for sale, possess,
import or transport an animal trap of the steel-jaw leghold type.
2. No person shall take or attempt to take any animal by means
of a trap of the steel-jaw leghold type. )
3. The posséssion of a trap of the steel-jaw leghold type shall
be prima facie evidence of a violation of section 2 of this act
*cxcept under the circumstances indicated by section 5 of this act®.
4. Mouse and ral traps designed for use in or under buildings
shall not be. classified as steel jaw leghold traps for the purposes
of this act. )
/5. This act shall not be construed to prévent the '[exhibitidn]'

*use® of steel-juw leghold traps *for the purpose of cxhibititm"”

by *[nonprofit}* humane *or educational institutions and* orga-

nizations, or the possession of such traps by a person in the act of
turning over the traps to a law enforcement agency. k

6. A person violating this act shall for each illegal trap involved
be fined not less than $50.00 nor more thmf $250.00 for a first

EXPLANATION—Matter cndosed in bold-fawd brackets [tllun] in the above bill
is not d and is 0. be the law.

Matter printed in italics thu: is new maner .
Matter enelosed in aslernsks or uun has been atlnpled as follows:
A adopted April 25, 1983.
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offense; not less than $250.00 wor more than $500.00 for a-second

offense; not loss than $500.00 nor more than $2,500.00, or imiprison-
ment for'six months, or both fine and imprisonment, for"a third
and eaeh subsequent offense, - v :

7. Al }ff(j.ljip,n]éllﬂ[, animals and peltsJ* -ised hi",“ or *animals
and pelts® oblained by a violation of *section 2 of* this act shall
be confiscated by *[the® *eny* law enforcement agency enforcing
the act. *This bill shall not be construed to authorize the confisca-
tion of animals and pelts other than those which have been
obtained in violution of section 2 of this act and which are either
held 7_'_1/ @ trap or in the possession of a violator.* ‘

8. Section 2.0l 1. 1., 1971, e. 405 (C. 23:4-38.1) is repealed.

9. This act shall take effeet 60 days following its enactment,




SENATOR RAYMOND J. ZANE (Chairman): May I have your -
attention; please? We are going to begin this public hearing. My name
. is Ray Zane. I am a Senator and Chalrman of the Natural Resources and
Agriculture Committee. o , .
This public hearing has been called by the Senate Natural
Resources and Agriculture Committee to serve as a forum for the
* discussion of any and all matters which have a bearing on the issue of
whether or not the use of the steel-jaw leghold trap should be banned
in this State. .
The bill under consideration by this Commlttee is Assembly
Bill No. 3207. There is also a companion measure in. the Senate, in
another Committee. ; A
Bill No. 3207 was sponsored by Assemblyman Mazur of Bergen
County. It would prohibit the manufacture, sale, transportation, or
use of these traps. |
At least a decade has passed since this issue was first
considered by our Legislature, and during that time arguments have been
raised by proponents and opponents of the ban'alike.
Proponents arque that the leghold trap inflicts excruciating
pain on aaimals and that any species of animal, both wild and domestic,
can be maimed by this device. They stress that while the leghold trap
is the'most frequently used trap in the United States, it has been
banned by some sixty-three nations ef the world. |
'"Hunting by means of setting a leghold trap and leaving it
for an unsuspecting animal to step into, does not constitute
sportsmanship."‘=This is one of the arguments that they make.

Oppenents to the ban point out that trapping plays a vital
role in maintaining - the environmental .balance in our area in the
'absence of natural predators. Trapplng maintains - control of animal
~population, it reduces the threat of dlsease -- partlcularly rables -
and animal starvatlon.

Opponents further arque that a blanket prohibition might well
expose farmers to significant economlc harm, and cause increased prices
for consumers at the grocery store.

Crop farmers must be able to protect their crops from animal
intrasion. Farmers are concerned with the transmission of disease to

their domestic stock fhrough prédatbrs.




In addltlon, opponents clalm that the bill, if enacted, would
place an almost 1nsurmountable burden on offlcers charged with the
nrespon51b111ty of enforc1ng this law. ‘

1 seek the viewpoint of all concerned parties today.
Bas;cally, what we are hoping to do is to get a consensus -- get a
feeling -- that can be taken back to the other members of the
Legislature, who ultimately will be considering this bill, if it should
be released. | | , ’ 4

“Just as a side note, before we begin with tne speakers,‘l
'hope I have not blackened any hearts; I hope I have not dimmed any
“minds. I happen to think that part of the Legislative process is to
take legislation that affects particular areas to those areas. [ have
had public hearlngs 1n other portions of the State since 1 have been
Chairman of this Commlttee because the legislation 1nvolved affected»
those areas of the State. ' .
o I happen to think that this area will probably oe'the most
affected in the event this legislation should pass. That is why the
hearing is-being held here. If there are those who have chosen to take
. their position and present it, if you will, on the'StatebHouse steps at .
one o'clock, they are doing so in valn, because the Committee will not
be there. This will be the only publlc hear1ng on this blll by my’
Committee.

The first speaker today will be Aésemblyman Tom Pankok.
ASSEMBLYMAN THOMAS A PANKOK: Thank
you, Senator, My name is Thomas Pankok. I represent, in tne Assembly,
:the 3rd Legislative District, which encompasses eight municipalities in-
. Cumberland County, all of.Salem County; and most of Gloucester County.

First of all, 1 would like to take issue with the statement
‘that was made in the newspapers today, calling my Senator a blackguerd,
and saying that he was trying to influence people. It is a Senator's
job to see that legislation is brought about and looked ‘at. - The
people are then given the opportunity to say what they want about the

leqxslat1on, and then a vote is taken on it in Comm1ttee. It then goes
to the floor of the Senate.




At the last public hearingv on this bill, heard by the
. Assembly Committee, the Chairman of the Committee turned the‘gavel over
to Ben. Mazur, whov is the Assemblyman sponsoring this bill. The
meeting went on until about six o'clock that night. But, at about one
thirty that afternoon, Mazur distributed a press release saying, "The
public hearing is over, now let's vote on the bill." That is not the
democratic way. To wait,untilvthe Committee has combleted its hearing
is the democratic way, not to issue a“press ‘release prior to that
happening. | .
' " So, my'hat ié off to Senator Zane for bringing us here today,
~and having quts enough to say, "We are going to hear testimony on this
bill by‘having a public hearing on this bill in the area most affected
by it."

There should be more people in the Senate and the Assembly of
New Jersey doing things like this. » ‘ ‘

One of the things that the people who are pushing this bill
are referring to is that birds of prey are being trapbed in Ieghold
~traps. This amounts to one percent, according to some animal hospitals
and some divisions of government that we have contacted. About one
percent of the birds of prey are injured in the leghold trép, and very,
very rarely is it a serious injury.

They talk about domestic animals being‘ caught in leghold
‘traps, and one thing that upsets me the most is the picture of a little
white kitten they show, with a leghold trap around its paw. If you
look closely at that picture, you will see that the surfacé in the
background is very smooth. It had not been taken out in the swamp or
“in the headow, where muskrats are trapped. I have a feeling that the
picture may have been staged in a laboratory, because when you trap,
- you trap in tidal, marshy, wet areas. And, if you have ever seen a cat
go out the door ih the morning when the dew is on the grass, they
"~ vigorously shake their paws, simply becauée they don't like to be wet.
No cat is qolng to wander into a swamp. So, I reélly take exCeption to
that type of picture. - » |

Then they talk about dogs being trapped. In fact, we talked
»Eo fifty-one veterinary hospitals and they reported that they had three
dogs who died of what they suspected.miqht have been a leghold trap




© incident. In the last three .and one-half, years, in this area, there
has been one dbg injured, and that incident occurred when a lady took
her young son, who is less than twelve years -old, out alongside a
~-meadow, and the child put the trap out there. He didn't have any idea
of what he was doing. He was not a licensed trapper, and the dog gof,
caught in thét_trap; So, tﬁat is the one ihCideht thét has happened
Iafely. | | , 

In one of the counties of Maryland -- and bear inrmind that
rabies is moving towards us, up the eastern seaboard -- in trying to‘,
'control the raccoon and some of the other furbearing anlmals -~ the
raccoon is the animal that is suspected. of bringing rab1es towards us
-- they are spending $300,000 to try and control furbearing animals.in
that county, and it is not working. '

Here in this county, and in the 3rd Legislative District, it
is not only not costing the State of New Jersey any money to control
~ these animals because of the leghold trap and because of our trappefs,
~but tréppers are actually making money from it, and in many . instances
‘they are helping to educate children. , ‘ -

We are trying to prevent that move of rabies up the eaét~'

.coast, and one of the fhings_that we can use to prevent it is the
‘leghold trap. o , | '
There are many methods in use to control wildlife in New -

Jersey, especially in southern New Jersey, and the leghold-tfap is the

only thing that is known to be in use that really works.
| As you can probably summize at this poiht, I am here in
opposition to this very divisive, unnecessary, and stupid piece of
legislation. I said that on the Assembly floor, and I avaery haphy.to
say it again. » ‘

_ ~There are many, many peopie in this area who have pdt
Christmas'presents under trees and who have sent children to college
and through school, sxmply because they have been able to trap and make'
use of those funds to educate their children. . v

We, here in this part of the State, for almost 310.years,
" have been managing not only pur natural resources and our environment,.
but we have been controlling the wildlife in this area, because our
_hunters and our farmers are the best conservationists in the world,_.Nof




“hunter or trapper is mean tO'animals,.as the people who are proponents
of this bill would indicate. Becauée if a true hunter or a true
trapper has a good,domestic'animal, he takeé“damn good care of that
animal because that animal means a lot to him. | v

Every one of these farmers has:cats and kittens around their
~ farms and they take good caré of fhose animals also. So, don't try to
tell me that.the trapper is a cruel, :inhumane person, because he is
not. } : '

v We in Salem County, just recently -- I.left the Board of
Freeholders just as this job was being completed f-fspent,'wiih Federal
and State funds, in the area of $300,000 to repair a bank on the
Delaware River that was breached, and the reason that bénk breached was
because the muskrats had bored their homes and nests into the bank.
‘They weakened the bank becadse of the continuing flow of the tide, and
that bank went out. It cost a small fortune to replace it.

The people who have meadows in which they trap control their
banks. In fact, this particular bank I spoke of costs about $12,000 a
year to maintain. These people who are'trappers,.and who are what I
| consider to be the real conservationists in the area, work continuously
-~ every trapper and every farmer that I can think of and that I know
of in this area of southern New Jersey -- to control their meadows, and
- to see that their meadows flow properly. There is a great deal_of
conservation done on their part, as far as keeping their lands intact.

We were in the process of losing almost 900 acres of‘gqod
meadow and farmlahd .in Salem County because of the breach in this
bank. Without the trappérs and without the farmers, who trap and
- conserve their lands, we are in deep trouble here in Salem County. o
' The muskrat must be controlled and the only sensible and
workable method of controlling the muskrat is the leghold trap. |

Mr. Chairman, thank you very much. i(applause)

SENATOR ZANE: Thank you, Assemblyman.

Aséemblyman Guy Muziani, please. Assemblyman Muziani
represents Cape May County and Cumberland County -- part of it. I
represent the other part of -it. o '
ASSEMBLYMAN GUY F. MUZTIANI: Mr. Chairman,
“ladies and gentlemen, 1 am here today to reiterate the position I




expressed on -the floor of .the Assembly in opposition to this
legislation. ' | |

I didn't know too much about leg traps. There were a number
of sportsmen in my area who saw fip to make an appointment to talk to
.me, and I asked if they would bring avsample of the leg trap that is
being used with them. 1 had no conception of what they were talking
about. In doing so, I convinced myself that if what was being said.was
true and if I was going to be speaking out against this - piece of
legislation, then I wanted to know, firsthand, exactly what ﬁéppened
fwhen a leg trap was used. | s - '
I was not so courageous as to put my hand 1nto the ' trap
without - a glove on. I did put a glove on, but it wasn't a thick
glove. I put my hand in that trap and I am not going to tell you that I
did not feel any pain, because I did. But, I had no bones shattered
and my skin was not ruptured. There was no bleeding. And, within two
minutes I felt nothing. So, 1 was conVinced_ that  those who were
. speaking out against the leghold trap had a misconception as to whatwit
really does. |

I pursued this subject a llttle further and 1 found out ‘that
there - were approximately 40,000 Americans in this country of ours who
have experienced problems with rabies. I was told~that,if'the animai
isn't killed immediately after it bites someone in order to determine
if it has rabies or not, then the person who was bitten is ‘subjected to
“the test, which consists of twelve shots into the stomach, and which is
very painful. ~Without the trapping of these animals, this rabies
. problem could possibly double or triple. That -in ahdvof_itself wés;a
convincing argument. - A ,

Then, of course, 1 tried to demonstrate on the floor of the
House what this trap would do. The sponsor of the bill had two trapsv
that he demonstrated; however, both of them had been outlaWed._ Those

traps dated back, probably, to 1880, when we did haVe'steel-jaw traps.'

But,. they don't exist today. There are no steel-jaw‘traps being used -

today. But, I think we were led to believe that, and I was hoping to
give my fellow legislators the opportunity to see this trap by
demonstrating'it to them. I asked for permission to do this, and .it
was -denied. The next time I am going to do if'without'permission,rand '

I will pay the penalty afterward.




The fact is, if you think about it for a minute, the
domesticated animals -- the cows, the sheep, and the chickens -- are
slaughtered on a daily basis to provide food and clothing and nobody
thinks that is wrong. Nobody thinks that is inhumane. They don't
think that is immoral. '

Have you ever been to a slaughterhouSe?v It is not a pretty
sight.‘ No one questions the fact that we afe doing this kind of
killing.i It is killing that everyone accepts so that we can provide
food and clothing for the population. _

Well, I don't know that furbear1ng animals should be given
any different consideration. I don't think they should be thought
of as being any different than a cow. Is there more justification for
killing a cow than there is for killing a raécoon or a skunk?

So, I was able to digest and evaluate all these arguments,
and 1 came to the conclusion that the sportsmen -- those individuals in
- this County who do the trapping -- are being dictated to by the north
Jersey legislators who control the vote in the Legislature, and I think
it is again a question of the north trying to tell the south what to
do. I think they are 1nterfer1ng with home rule again. That is.
something that is very, very common, insofar as how the south has been
treated in the past. | | |

I feel that the people themselves, and the couhties, should
have the prerogative to decide if the sportsmen should be given the
opportunity to continue to trap in order to supplement théir-incomes. :
This provides a supplemental income for low¥income families. It also
generates $22 million that is put into the economy of the State. All
of these things are factors that I feel strongly- about.

So, I am here today to tell you that I have received over 500
cards from the citizens of Salem, Cumberland, and Cape May Counties.
The ma1l I have received has been ten to one aga1nst this leglslatlon.

Sa, Mr. Chairman, I am here today in the hope that the Senate
will look upon this legislation a little dlfferently than they did when
it was in the Assembly. ‘ , , '

SENATOR ZANE: Thank you very much, Assemblyman Muziani.

Mr. Art Marchland, who is appearing for Assemblyman Joe

Chinnici, agéin from Cumberland and Cape May Counties. .




‘ART MARCHLAND: Mr.>Cha;rman,lladies and gentlemen.
Thank you for giving me the opportunity to speak here today on behalf
of ~Assemblyman Joe Chinnici, who is é Representative of the Ist
District, which represents Cape'May\and Cumberland Counties. Joe could
not be here today, although he wanted to be.‘ Hé'wasfcalled 6ut of
town. . L . L |

I want to begin by stating, most emphatically, that
Assemblymén_thinnici -- as you.heard from;Asseﬁblyman Muziani -- and
‘Senator Hurley are in absolute opposition to any banning of the steel.
leghold trap.

First of all, let's begin with a brief synopsis of what a
steel-jaw leghold ‘trap is. This trap is the only effective means of
harvesting small wild animals, such as muskrats, raccoons, skunks; and
‘fox -- as everyone invthis room knows. ~Ninety-niné percent of the
animals that are trapped do not suffer any broken bones. They are
either drowned, or they are held until the trapper tends the trap. v

Also, with regard to methods of trapping, théfDivisionvof
Fish and Game offers courses to trappers so .that they can learn how to
effectively use the steel-jaw leghold trap and to properly tend it.

These traps are tended, under law, every twenty-four hours.
And, most trappers tend them every twelve hours. - Theréfore, ‘'no
étarvation of the animal is entailed. :

‘Let's now turn to the animals that are trapped, sbecifically
the muskrat. The muskrat multiplies as many as four to six times a
. year, with litfers ranging in number from eight to twelve. This could
. mean as few_as thirty-two muskrats to as many as ninety-six muskrats
born in any given year from one set of parents. By just‘taking‘thé
‘lowest figure, thirty-two, these muskrats must be habvested, wiﬁh only
twoblefthtd breed again. If not, their balance will be all out  of
whack and everything will be completely disrupted. This will lead to
Starvation on the part of the ‘animal, increased destruction qfvmarshes
and banks, as you heard Assemblyman Pénkok discuss, increased‘taking-of
- farm produce, and disease in the animal population itself.

' The final thing I .want to discuss is the economic

~ramifications . of banning the leghold trap.  Assemblyman Muziani -

mentioned that $22 million in supplementallincome is‘generated from




trapping. Many of the families who deal with trapbing and who areinto
trapping -- about 6,000 families -- are low-income families. I don't
‘think I need to explain the poor economic state of south Jersey,
especially the Bay Shore area and Cumberland, Cape May, and Salem
Counties, which have the highest unemployment rate in the State. They
are close to being the highest unemployed in the nation.

To debrive supplemental income to families who are already
affected by the poor economy would be a disgface.v .

In closing, let me once again make it absolutely clear that
the representatives of the First District, in general, and Assémbl&man
Chinnici. in particular, 'are absolutely opposed to any banning of the
leghold trap, and/or any legislation that would attempt to do this.
Thank you. _ |
SENATOR ZANEﬁ Thank yod very much. Is Agssemblyman Mazur, or
one of his representatives, present? Assemblyman Mazur is the spohsor
of this bill. [ would like to give him the opportunity to speak. ' (no:
response) v |

Assemblyman Mazur, incidentally; is from Bergen County. If
you don't know where that is, it is not too far from New York City.

Is there a Doctor Couvillion here?‘ Doctor Couvillion has to
catch a:plane at six d'clock. ‘Doctor, would you like to speak next?
DOCTOR C. EDWARD COUVILLION: VYes.

'SENATOR ZANE: - Doctor, would you tell us where you are from?

'DOCTOR COUVILLION: I am Doctor Edward Couvillion. I am a
~wildlife veterinarian affiliated with the Southeastern Cooperative
Wildlife Disease Study at the Colleqge -of Veterinary Medicine, the
University of Georgia. Our organization is  an action-oriented
cooperative program providing service for the welfare of this nation's
wildlife resources and closely related domestic.vliVestock and human
health interests. With more than twenty-five years' experience in this .
field, we have provided unparalleled expertise pertaining to wildlife
diseases in. the United States. '

: Our organization has provided expert technical assistance to
.state wildlifé resource agencies, the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service,

the Internéti@nal Associétion-of Fish and Wildlife Agencies, the U.S.

cod




Animal Health Association, and Emergency Programs of Veterinary
Services, U.S. Department‘bf Agriculture,w‘The collective activities of
‘ our ofganization have resulted in publication of more than 200>articles
‘in  numerous scientific journals, symposia, ‘and- books. - Through
‘significant contributions to wildlife health and allied'areas, we héVev
earned a reputation unrivaled in its field. .

Based on this experience, the 'Southeastern' Cooperative
Wildlife Disease Study supports the position of the New JerseyﬂDivisioh_,
of Fish, Géme,_andFWildlife_to retain the use of the_steel—jaﬁ leghold
trap for the benefit of sound furbearer management invNeW»Jersey and
elsewhere. There are several reasons for this position.

First, the leghold trap is the most efficient tool for
- regulating - furbearer populations. ‘When harvests “are adequate,
furbearer populations can be maintained at optimum density relative to
-available food supplies, and as a result, animals remain in 'gopd
"bhysical condition, and susceptibility to diseases and parasités is
‘diminished. The reverse is true for unharvested - populations.
Depletion of food supplies due to excessive competition reduces
nutrient intake ‘and results in declining physical’tondition. Animals
are thus predisposed to a multitude of ,disease_.agents, and if
additional stress factors, such as food crop failures or sevére'winter:
conditions, are subseduently imposed, sevére losses cén‘occur.  This
~can be prevented by proper harvests under the gquidance of wildiife
- gpecialists. _ |

Second, trapping allows wise use of surplus furbearers
without increasing the amount of pain to which wildlife species are
haturally subjected. Although pain associated withksiékness and deafh‘f
may not be directly observed in unharvested Qildlife. populations,
suffering most assuredly occurs. In fact, disease, parasites,
starvétion,' and automobile-inflicted trauma frequently ‘result - in
.suffering of . greater intensity and duration than that induced by
trapping. Thus, there is no ethical justifiéétion forb cuftailing"
harvests to prevent pain and suffering in wild animals. :

Our third reason for opposition to this bill is that the
leghold trap is. useful for limiting furbearer population 'densities;

thus reducing the potential for transmission of contagious diseases,
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such as rabies. Disease transmission generally is enhanced when animal
population density is high. In this regard, an important feature of
several well-documented outbreaks of raccoen rabies’ has been the
presence of high density raccoon populationsvin suburban or semi-rural
settings, thus increasing interaction among raccoons, humans, pets, and
livestock. This problemvcan be accentuated by destruction of raccoon
habitat  through urban development, thel- adaptability of reccdons to
suburbhan existence, and, in addition, the lack of routinely practiced
raccoon population control measures, such’' as trapping. ‘

_ In many respects, the current expandlng rabies outbreak in
the mid-Atlantic states is similar to previously documented outbreaks.t
As of March 1983, 87% of the raccoon rabies in that region was reported
from urban and suburban counties where there is no routine raccoonl
populatlon control. |

A statewide ban on the leghold trap may be expected to
increase the risk of an outbreak of raccoon rabies in New Jersey. The
rabies outbreak in the mid-Atlantic states currently involves four
states, which include Maryland, Pehnsylvania, Virginia, and West
Virginia. In a two-year span, Virginia alone has reported a sixty-fold

. increase in raccoon rebies. The afea of the outbreak has increased
twenty-Five to fifty miles per year, according to the Center for
Disease Control in Atlehta, Georgia. Recently, rabid animais have been
reported in Bucks and 'Montgomery counties, Pennsylvania,‘ along the
western border of;New Jersey. There is little reason to believe that
New Jersey and Delaware will be spared this problem of rabies.

On the strength of this information and extensive experience -
with wildlife health matters, we, the Southeastern Cooperatlve Wildlife
Disease Study, support the use of the steel-jaw leghold trap in New
Jersey. We hope the Natural Resources and Agriculture Commlttee will

-consider the disease and'wildlife'managementvbenefits of the steelyjawb
leghold trap and support the use of this important wildlife menagement

* tool in New Jersey.

Senator Zane, I appreciate the opportunity to'be.here today,
and I commend you for your efforts on this bill.
I might -also add to my statement several arguments, or

points, which will probably come up in the hearing today.
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One argument against the use of the steel-jaw leghold trap
~that hinges on the prbblem’of rabies is that rabies is not a problem in
rodents, such as muskrats and other species. However, rabies is only
one - reason for wanting to use -the leghold trap -- ‘one disease.
Muskrats are susceptible to a number of d1fferent diseases and we th1nk
-- and based on our experience, we know -- that when these populatlon
densities get high, then muskrats can suffer widespread mortality due
"to other diseases. v

Another argument referable to rabies will be -that trapping
1removes immune animals from populations of animals. This may in fact
be true. However, trapping does not remove immune animals in ahy‘
‘greater. proportion than non-immune animals. In fact, it vprobably
‘removes -~ immune and -non-immune animals in proportion to their
representation in the population. '

As a matter of Ffact, none of the experts are certain what
immunity in wild animals even means at this stage. We have not come
‘that far in our research on rabies, even though this disease has been
around for several hundred years. '

Another argument you will hear relates to the translocation
"of raccoons as being a source of rabies. If that is the case, then the

argument holds that this is the cause of the rabies outbreak we are
seeing in the mid-Atlantic states, and not because of any recent

population densities of raccoons. In fact, we are not certain on that
‘point either. We don't know whether raccoons translocated into the
»Appalachian area have been the source of rabies infection for raccoons
~in the mid-Atlantic states. We are not certain of that fact. We do
know that studies conducted by the states in that region,.where»faCCOOn
translocation -is a common practice, show that raccoons translocated
from the coasts of North Carolina, South Cérolina, Florida, and also
raccoons from Texas do not survive very well in the'wiid. As a matter
of fact, about two percent, or less, of those raccoons that -are 
translocated in by that method survive. So, that does not seem to be a
significant. source, or potential source, of rabies -- although it is a
possibility,: I will admit that.

An addltlonal argument that 1 have heard and that has been

presented is that raccoons are not aggressive when they have rabies.
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Studies that have been conducted -~ and that are'well-documentéd in a
book entitled, "The Natural History of Rabies," -- indicafe that in one
study forty-seven percent of rabid raccoons shdwea some form. of
aggressive behavior - and those were raccoons that were caught in
people's backyards, and who in some way had contact with their domestic
anlmals, their children, or themselves. - '

Now, I would 11ke to make one other p01nt referable to the
effect of trapping in the incidence of rabies. For this purpose I
quote a letter, written by a member of our staff, Dr. Victor Nettles,
who‘ is the leader of our diagnostic section, and who has been Vin"b
wildlife disease work for more than ten years himself. This letter was
written to Mr. Bob Itchmoney of the New Jersey Division of Fish, Game,
and Wildlife, and I will quote it: "After my telephone conversation
with you about théﬁproposed anti-trapping bill in the New Jersey State '
Assembly, I talked with Dr. W. G. Winkler of the Center for Disease
Control in Atlanta, Georgia. Dr. Winkler is a well-recognized expert
on rabies, and as epidemiologist for the Viral Disease Division, his
étatemehts on the relationship between trapping and rabies represent
the official position of the Center for Disease Control. '

"There is a subtle context in which these statements are made
on the role of trapping as a means of rabies control. That is, the
trapping activities Dr. Winkler is referring to are taxpayer supported,'
- public agency programs, where animal controi agents or ‘government
agents are hired on a continual basis to. keep wildlife populations
down. '

| "We tend to agree that such trapping. prograﬁs are not
necessary and, in fact, are not cost efficient. In talking with Or.
Winkler, he agreed that his position is not meant'td be applied to
cdmmercial trapping, and neither he nor the CDC have a position, pro or
con, on the effectlveness of commercial trapping as a factor in rab1835
control." v _

1 wili’repeat that statement: "Neither Dr. Winkler nor the
CDC have a position,‘pro or con, on the effectiveness of commercial
trapping as a factor in rébies control.” _

- To summarize, I think that persons should not be allowed to

use statements from CDC to diécredit commercial trapping as an’adjunct
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to rabies control, or .to take the material out of context, since these
statements  are directed odly to public fimarced prbgrams.

Senator, I would like to ‘leave with you- a. copy of my
"statement ahd a copy of the qualifications of the agency from which I
come. In addition to that, 1 have‘included a recent publication which
deals with skunk rabies in the mid-West. I think you will be
interested in iooking at this material.:

SENATOR ZANE: Thank you very much.

Jim Furlong from the Division of Fish and Game.
JAMES FURL ONG: Senator Zane;:my name is Jim furlong, -
and today I am wearing two hats: I am a member of the Fish and Game
-Council, and I am also President of the Southern New Jérsey Furtakers,
“which is a 900-plus member organization here in southern New Jersey.
On behalf of the Southern New Jersey Furtakérs, I want to express our
‘thanks to your Committee for holding this hearing here in the muskrat
capitol of the world, Salem County.

In addition to that, our thanks go out to you and to your'
Committee because many of our members cannot get to Trenton when these
hearings are held, due to work commitments -- a lot of them are
farmers, and so forth. So, again, on behalf of the Southern Néw Jersey
Furtakers we want to take this opportunity to thank you. '

My other position, as a member of the Fish and Game Council,
requires further explanation. We are charged, basically, with the
“health and welfare of our wildlife. The members of the Council are
sportsmen. They are farmers. They are representativeé vof‘ the
Endangered Species -Commission, and they are also soil conservation
people. One of the things that we do as Council members is to look out
for the health and welfare of the wildlife of our State. We set the -
‘bag limits. We set the seasons on harvesting our wildlife.
_ | In order for us to do that, since most of us are not trained
‘ biologists, we consult with those professional wildlife managers who do
not deal in emotion, like those who oppose this bill do. They deal in
-the facts, if you will, of wildlife management. For example, one of
the basic principles of wildlife management is, any given tract of lénd»
. can only support so many animals.because of the cover, the water, and

the food needed for that support. When the population explodes -- we
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will cite the muskrat for example -- and any one of those elements is
taken away, we have a problem -- we have a twofold problem. One is
with the animal itself, where mother nature brings in disease; and,
two, in this area specifically, is with the farmers. The_crop damage
is just odtstanding. Many thousands of ddllars‘ate.lost in this area
when the muskrat is not controlled, for whatever reason he is not being
controllied. ' .

The point I‘am trying to make is that in dealing wifh these
professionals, we consult them by asking: "In your opinion, 'Mr.

Professional', what is the mannef of take and. the limits on these

particular spécies that we, as the council members who make the laws,.

should set?" In the case of the furbearers, they tell us time and
time again that the leghold trap is the only efficient method to
accomplish our goal. _ ’

Now, as a trapper for thirty-five years myself, [ can
understand that. 1 have trapped the fox, ‘and the raccoon. I have
tried every method that exists to capture a furbearer, and my personal
experience has shown that in the case of the animals I have mentioned,
the leghold trap is the only effective method. |

Agéin -- and then I will wrap this up -- we do consult with
the professionals. “We talk with people who are schooled in wildlife
. management, not -- if you will -- an armchair expert who says it is

‘cruel to trap an animal because he is going to chew his leg off, and

that kind of thing. We are dealing with highly-trained personnel, such

as the doctor who preceded me.

I would like to make a couple of comments on the bill itself.

This was brought up by the members of the Southern New Jersey Furtakérs’

Association, and there are three points involved. The bill speaks to

confiscation, or a turning over of the traps to a law enforcement.

aqency. You ladies and gentlemen will have to remembér that trapping
has taken plade in New Jersey since the 1600's, and if this bill were
to outlaw trapping within two weeks, or something like that, it is
something we have done for sevefalvhundred years. Now all of a sudden
it is going to be made illegal.

» The bill does not speak to any means of compensatioh. There

are over $800,000 worth of leghold traps in this State, and there is no
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méansrof compensation for those peoplevwhd own them, when they turn
them over -to a law enforcement agency.

The other situation speaks to the confiscation.of the pelts
-of -the animals caught.ih leghold traps. There is no visible way to
tell the diffefence, unless an animal is shot, if an anihal is caught
in a leghold trap or by some other device. So, I speak to that,
Senator Zane, because you may want to amend the bill on that issue.

 During the Assembly hearing, a mink réncher brought in two
mink pelts and held them up. One animal was caught in a leghold trap,
and the other one was killed as they would kill a mink at a mink ranch:
‘his neck was broken. You could not tell the difference.

Again, concerning the confiscation issue--

SENATOR ZANE: Let me ask you a question.. When a mink is

killed on a mink férm, is there any prior preparation for the mink, or
do they just pick it up and break its neck?

MR. FURLONG: Essentially, that is it.

SENATOR ZANE: Thank you. N .

MR. FURLONG: Many of our trappers trap in_surrounding states
-- again, speaking to the confiscation issue. If our traps were to_bé
outlawed, what do we say to these fellows who buy a license in the
surrounding states? The license in Pennsylvania costs a lot more money
~than we charge here. Then there is New York and Delaware. Again,
there is no means of compensation, and I think we have to take a look
at that.

Thank you, Senator Zane. ‘

SENATOR ZANE: Thank you very much. v

Seated to my left is Senator Dumont, who we affectionately
~refer to as the "Dean of the Senate." That is because he has been
there so long, and he has had a lot of very effective legislation
péssed. I would just like you to know that he has traveled all the way-
down from the far corner of north Jersey, where it is rural for the
most part, am I correct, Senator? | ’

SENATOR DUMONT: Yes. |

SENATOR ZANE: I understand that Henry Foner is now here, is

that correct?

HENRY - FONER: VYes.




SENATOR ZANE: Mr. Foner, we have a lot of speakers, and I
ask that‘everyone be as concise as possible.

MR. FONER: Senators, in anticipation of your iequeét, 1 am
going to put my testimony into the form of a leaflet that I have
prépared. It was distributed on Labor Day at the Labor Day Parade in
Asbury Park. It was distributed to 10,000 union members  who éttehded
this parade, in order to explain to them the issues involved with the
leghold trap. So, I can, in a disciplined way, just read to you what I
wrote, becaUSe it basicélly répresents my point of view and the point
of view of the unions I represent in the fur industry. These include
all of the unions 'in the fur industry, of the American Fur_induétry
itself, whose Committee on Wildlife Legislation and Conservation I
head, and for the New Jersey State AFL/CIO, on behalf of Charles
Marcianti, the President of the New Jersey State AFL/CIO. ‘

SENATOR ZANE: What is the strength of the AFL/CI0?

MR. FONER: In New Jersey?

SENATOR ZANE: Yes.

MR. FONER: Oh, it runs into several hundred thousand, sir.

SENATOR ZANE: Thank you very much.

MR. FONER: Our own union, the United Food and Commercial
Workers has at least 50,000 to 60,000 members in the State of  New
Jersey. ' v

SENATUR IANE: And, this a position that is approved by thé‘
AFL/CIO? , , ‘

MR. FONER: That's right, asvyou will hear in the coOrse of

the presentation.
‘ There are now, before the New Jeréey State Senate, two bills,
A-3207 and 5-1575, which would ban the use of the leghold trap in the
State. On the surface this might seem to be a humanitarian measure,
and that is just what the bills' sponsors are counting on.

"The truth is, of coufse, that one of them, Roger Caris, of
the Humane Society in the State, said that when it comestto jobsbas
opposed to eliminating the weéring'bf furs, "jobs be damned." ‘

| However, there is chh more to this issue than meets the eye,

and here are the reél facts:

17




All.wildlife managers are unanimous in the conviction that
the management of furbearer population is essential to their survival.
That means that‘the numbers .of these animals must be in proportion to
the habitats in which they live. Failure to do this results in
starvation and disease, both of which are much crueler fates than being
caught in a ‘trap. Just parenthetically, in connection with these
-wildlife managers, I have just returned from Milwaukee, Wisconsin,
where I attended the annual meeting of the International Association of
Fish and Wildlife Agencies. At this meeting, several hundred wildlife
‘agency representatives from every state in the Union, and from Canada,
come together every year to discuss. issues of wildlife. These are the
-paid experts on wildlife management. These -are the'people who héve
been trained to take care of the wildlife communities that are our
‘heritage. And, of these people at that convention.there was not one
who would not agree with this statement: That management of the,
wildlife species is essential. Wildlife managers are also unanimous in
stating that trapping is an essential tool for such wildlife
management, and that the: leghold trap is thebonly effective method for
taking many of the furbearers that  are harvested.

According to public health experts, trapping is also
- effective in disease control, and this is particularly important‘nbw
when there afe over 600 reported cases of rabies in the states
bordering New Jersey. The Atlanta Center for Disease Control expects. -
the epidemic to enter New Jersey this year. '

Next, trapping not only provides a livelihood fdr New Jersey
trappers, who earn abut $3.5 million a year, but it alsn provides the
raw material for a major American industry, the fuf industry, which has
a gross product of about $1 billion a year. It also helps tb provide
“JobS,bnationwidé, for about 250,000 workers. ' o :

I must- insert here, Senator, that at the last hearing I
attended, which was held in Trenton, the proponents of ‘this bill made
light of this industry. .They said that it did not represent much as
far as the State of New Jersey was concerned. Well, this iéﬁjust_not

true, as you will hear when I proceed with my statement.
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‘As New Jérseyans, you should consider the impact the ban on
trapping would have on the economy of th1s State, espe01ally ‘since the
largest individual retail fur operatlon in the world, the Flemlngton
Fur Company, is located in the State of New Jersey, in Flemlngton.

Another major fur retailer, Anton1v1ch‘Brothers, is located in West
.Paterson, New Jersey. These two retailers account for literally
millions of dollars in income for the State of New Jersey in one form -
or another. In addition, I can tell you that presently trapped'furs
represent about 50% of the raw material that is used in the fur
industry as a whole -- and this includes New JErsey, Ohio; and all the
other states. in the Union. I:also want to- point out Qith respect to
New -Jersey  that when we speak of the greafer New York metropolitan
area, we include those sections of northern‘New Jersey in which many of
“our members live, and which is deeply woven into the economic life of
New York City. I need not tell you that New York City is the world
- center of the fur industry. _ ‘

Next, the most prominent fur dying plant in the world,
Superior Dyed Furs, is located in Passaic,  New Jersey. This plant,
~provides employment for minority‘workers.‘ They are.in our union. They
are practically-- I would say about eighty percent of the workers are
black workers. They are earning a decent living in this plant, and I
would say that depriving them of this livelihood would be a major
‘disaster as far as we are concerned, and I fhink it would be harmful to
the State as well.

Next, one of the leading fur dressing plants in the.United
States, Crown Monarch, is located in Newark, New Jersey. And, finally,
in addition to that, there are close to 500 fur wofkers -- and we cén
tell you this as a result of a survey we made in cbnnectioh with this
bill -- who live in New Jersey and who commute daily to and from the
New York fur market. These include women and men. They are»people‘
who work as cutters, operators, etc. They work in every segment of the
fur industry; and at the end of the day they take buses and go back
to Fort Lee, to Teaneck, or to one of the other communities in the
State of New Jersey. ‘ -

So, when we speak of the impact of banning trapping as being
minimal, 1 must tell you this is really a distortion and not in

conformity with the‘Facts.
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Those are some ofA the reasons that prompted the national
AFL/CIO to adopt a resolution at‘its 1977 LoévAngeles Convention, which
is stili part of AFL/CIO policy and which states: "This convention of
“the AFL/CIO opposes any effort to outlaw the leghold trap or to ban the
. trapping of furbearing animals, and calls'ubbn all of its affiliates,
State and city central labor.bodiés and its members, to oppose such
efforts when they take place in their respective areas."b'

I might tell you, gentlemen on the Committee, that this has
been tested by vote in at least two states. In Ohio'thére was a vote
“taken in 1977, and -the AFL/CIO in Ohio supﬁorted the positibn.of the
fur industry, the wildlife community, and the sportsmen. As a result,
that attempt to enact a ban on the leghold trap in Ohio was defeated by
:a vote of two to one. And, three years later, in Oregon, a similar
attempt was made. The AFL/CIO in Oregon, as a result of the resolution
supported the position of the fur induStfy, the sportsmen, the'wildlife
managérs; and the trappers, and as a result,kthe attempt in Oregon was -
:similarly defeated by a vote of two to one. Those afe the only
“instances where this issue has been put to popular vote. In Ohio, in
;1977, they attempted to ban the leghold trap and it was defeated, two
‘to one. In Oregon, in 1980, an attempt to ban the leghold trap was
‘defeated by a vote of two to one. In each instance, as a result of our
‘bringing the message to the people and educating them with the true
facts about wildlife and the impact of this ban upon the economy, dpon ,
- working people, and upon jobs, the voters in those two states, seeing
the merits of our position, voted to stop the ban. ‘

I would like to add just one other word, sir, ahd‘I thank you
for the opportunity t0 testify - one other word. 1 know you will be
' hearinq today from people who are in favor of this measure. I would
suggest that a question be directed to Ehem, as it was during a
‘television program that I participated in a few months ‘ago with a
‘representative of the Friends of Animals, and that question was: "Is
it'only the leghold trap that you are campaigning against? 'Or; is it
‘nob true that you are opposed to the'consumptivé use of any form of
wildlife by our society?" I think if you press that queétion, youvwili
find that the lethld trap is simply ﬁhe tip'of the iceburgf What we

“are really talking about is an attempt to deprive our society of . making
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consumptive use of wildlife products, products that are really very
siqnificant and verykir‘hport‘ant to our community, and to a continued
lifestyle that our soclety -is used to.: 'f think if you raise this
issue, you‘will find that when they are préssed-for’an‘answer, they are
not talking about the leghold trap at all; they are talking about an
attempt to ban the use of any and all furs further down the road. Then
you will find, later on, that they will-alsd be talking about hunting
and fishing in an attempt to get at the roots of the whole wildlife
sportsmen's heritage in this country. Thank yoﬁ very much for the

‘opportunity to testify.

SENATOR ZANE:  Thank you. Mr. Foner, are you likely to

‘communicate your position to other members of the Senate at this time?

MR. FONER: Sir, we are in the midst of a campaign, and thé
~ members of the United Food and Commercial Workers are in the process
" of sending post cards to all the Senators who represent their areas. I
must tell you that the same thing will probably be done by working

people from:other unions we are reaching as well.

SENATOR ZANE: Thank you very much. Senator Dumont, do you

have any questions?

SENATOR DUMONT: Are those going to be form cards that simply -

. have to be signed?
MR. FONER: Well, sir, after years of experience I have found

that the hardest thing to do in this political life of ours is to get

"people to write letters in 1983." So, I am afraid they will be form

cards, but they will be signed only after thorough discussion in'éhops

and at meetings throughout the State. And, fhevworkers.who sign them

will know exactly'what the issues are and what they are signing.
SENATOR DUMONT: All right.

SENATOR ZANE: Are there any other questions?' (no response)'

Thank. you very much.

Is Samuel Donelson present?

SAMUEL DONELSON: Senators, ladies and gentlemen, my:

name is Sam Donelson, Township Committeeman for Lower Alloways Creek.
I have a position paper‘that 1 would like to read, and maybe make some

comments in addition to that.
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As a member of the Township Committee of Lower Alloways
‘Creek, I am here to testify on behalf of the»trappers and property
ownersvih oppositidn of Assembly Bill 3207. ‘I too will have to agree
: wholehéartedly with the position statement of the Diviéion of Fish,
Game, and Wildlife, dated 4/27/83; which says, "This legislation wili
cause economic hardship, ~contribute to fher.spread of dangefous,
inhumane diseases that affect wildlife, pets, people, and will result
_in the wholesale waste of renewable wiLdliFevresources;" Needless to
say, you have heard, and will hear égainv today, statistical data
refuting and/or supporting why this bill should-be1eithervpassed or
defeated. ‘ '

It certainly'would appear that the supporters‘of this bill .

have no reqgard for, or could care less about, the overall impact of the
proposed legislation. Lower Alloways Creek Township is comprised of
approximately forty-eight square miles, of which one-third is either
~wetland or marsh. These wetlands ‘and marshy areas are condusive to
trapping and bahked to prevent either tidal or fresh water from
entering upon the dfylands. Without the allowance of trapping Qith
kleghold traps, over-population of muskrats within the "banked-in" areas
would create "eat-outs" by those animals causing breaches which would
eventually allow the drylands as well as marsh lands to become devoid -
of vegetation and eventually barren, whichvin effect would render the
dry, as well as the marshlands, useless fof several years.. As you can
see, wild animals and. birds would not héve the benefit of what they
~currently have. | _ .
" Additionally, within our Township we - have é .continual
‘mosquito conttol program. in conjunction with the Salem County Mosquito
Commission which would defeat all efforts to “control the mosquifo
population~to.date.' | l

There have been, from time to time, many pieces' of
correspondence 6n,the part of‘humane'groups'alluding to the fact that
there are numerous pets such as cats énd dogs that are éaught in those
traps. Even most recently -- as the Senator pointed out in the
newspaper article, "Today's'Sunbeam",lpage 5, -- it was stated: "The
leghold trap stands in readiness to take an eagle, cat, or dog, as well

as a friendly raccoon.”" However, the truth of the matter is that very
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few of these animals are caught in a leghold trap. This is supported
by a survey made by our Township Clerk and Deputy Clerk as recently as
Monday and Tuesday of this week, September 12th and 13th. The sUrvey
included  fifty-seven veterinarians. and veterinarian hospitais» that
vwould give out this type of information. - ,

Those contacted  were inb Salem, Cumberland, Atlantic,
Gloucester, Cape May, and Burlington Counties, and:a few from Ocean
County, as welllas Camden County. The‘survey was to determine whether
or not those veterinarians have treated any animals in the past year
‘that may have been caught in leqhold traps. _

I am providing an attachment for your edification of those
veterinarians that were contacfed, supporting this survey. Ffrom the
fifty-seven contacts» that were made, thgre was a total of seven
-incidents, some of which were not within the past year. Some happened
within the past five years.

I would like to just address those seven .incidents as
reported by the counties they happened in. In Salem County, three -
veterinarians were contacted and there were no incidents.

In- Cumberland County, "of those that were contacted, one
reported an incident. v '

In Aflantic County there was one incident.

In Gloucester County there were two incidents.

In Cape May County there was one incident.

In Burlington County there were two incidents.

And, of those contacted in >0cean County, there were two
incidents reported. ‘ , - |

, Out " of five contacts in ‘Camden County, no incidents were
reported.

Comments made by those veterinarians and/or veterinarian

hospitals were of such a nature that they felt that rather théh placingv>

emphasis upon animals caught .in traps, perhéps more emphasis should be

.placed on. animals that were hit by automobiles. 'As" one ' can

‘appreciate, there are numerous fine animals hit by automobi les. _
The overall feeling was that the amount of animals caught in

traps are miniscule, and should almost not even be considered.
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As I mentioned -- concerning the mosquito control program --

‘in my statement, our Townshlp alone spends upwards of approximately --

"~ counting the commltment to the Salem Mosqu1to Commission -- $125,000

annually. In addition to that, we put at least that much- into the
effort to 'purchése machinery, . as well as to hire equipment and
manpower. We would definitely not like to see the passage of this bill
on that premise alone. _ ' R

. As f pointed out. earlier; the economic vimbact,‘ which has
" -already been addressed by others, would have devastating effects on
people within our Township. They count upon trapplng as a method and
means of livelihood. - ' .
{ The refutal, on the part of the statistical data that we
acquired, I think speaks for itself. As one member of the Township
Committee of Lower Alloways Creek, I would respéctfully request the
defeat of this bill. In addition, 1 would.request that the overall
)ramifiéations of additional bills of this nature be taken‘into account
before they are passed. ' |

Thank you very much.

SENATOR ZANE: Mr. Donelson?

MR. DONELSON: Yes, sir? B |

SENATOR ZANE: You have been ‘in public office in Lower -
. Alloways Creek for the past ten years, or thereabouts? - L
‘ MR. DDNELSON Twelve years. ,

SENATOR ZANE: Twelve years? During that period of time,
were you -aware of any incidents where animals, othef than those which
were being sought, were seriously injured in traps? , .

MR. DONELSON: None, to the best of my knowledge, sir.

SENATOR ZANE: Lower Alloways Creek is well known ~for -
‘trapping, ‘am I correct? ‘ ' L
” MR. DONELSON: That is absolutely corrred. |

SENATOR ZANE: Has Lower Alloways Creek adopted any form of
~‘animal as its,'I_don't want to say "mascot" == I don't know what to
call it, so I will éall it -its "emblem"?

'MR. DONELSON: Yes.
SENATOR ZANE: What is that animal?
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MR. DONELSON: It is the muskrat. 'We are proud of the
_muskrat. We have addpted it as our mascot, depicting our way of life.
" Again, to emphasize, we are very proud of that fact.

SENATOR ZANE: ' And, you know of" no serious incidents with
other animals; is that your testimony? | ’ o '

MR. DONELSON: That is correct.

SENATOR ZANE:  Thank you very much.

MR. DONELSON: You're welcome.

SENATOR ZANE: Senator, do you have any quéstions?'

SENATOR DUMONT: Not right now. -

SENATOR ZANE: Is Doctor John Grandy from the Humane'S§ciéty
of the United States here? (affirmative response)

Doctor, I am wondering if you missed the ad we were
discussing? ' | v f
DOCTOR JOHN GRANDY: Actually, I did miss the ad.

:SENATOR ZANE: Really? ‘

DOCTOR GRANDY: It was signed by an organization called The
Friends of Animals, not by the Humane Society.

© SENATOR ZANE: Thank you very much.

DOCTOR GRANDY: ‘You bring up an interesting point.  While we
appreciate the opportunity to be here and testify, a lot of our members
did object to having}the‘hearing here.

SENATOR ZANE: Doctor, where are you from?

'DOCTOR GRANDY: Washington.

SENATOR ZANE: Washington, D.C.?

DOCTOR GRANDY: Yes, D.C.

_ I want to say that while we were somewhat disturbed by this,
we felt that we had to make our presentation here, and we had to make a
full record. To that end, I will be happy to answer questions. '
» SENATOR ZANE: You do acknowledge that the decision as to
“'where a Committee holds a public hearing is left with that Committee,
do you not? ' ‘

DOCTOR GRANDY: . I don't know how New Jersey works.

SENATOR ZANE: 1 see. That is the way it works, Doctor. We
génerally try to‘take important issues to the‘areas thét are. affeéted
by them.
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The decision as to where a Committee meeting is to be held is
left to the Committee, éollectively., 1 think that taking an important
issue to the area that is affected by that issue is really what
qovernment ‘should do. It should not neceSsarilyksit in Trenton. I
don't think there are that many people who ‘are inconvenienced by this
and I don't think some of these people who are here today would have
had the opportunlty to respond if they all had to take time off from_
work and run to Trenton and spend the day there. That is why it is
: being held here, Doctor. We make no apologies whatsoever for tnat.v

| If‘there‘is another hearing on this bill -- should'that be
the case -- again, we will ‘push to have it held in an area that is
affected by this piece of legislation.

DOCTOR GRANDY : I understand. On the other hand, I don't
want the record to indicate, or seém to indicate, that I am making -an
apology, because some of our members found it difficult to be here and
they decided that they would boycott the hearing on that basis.

My name is John Grandy. I am Vice President for Wildlife and
Environment with the Humane Society of the United States. I am a
professional wildlife manager, and I hold a Ph.D. in wildlife ecolbgy'
from the Uniyeréity of Massachusetts. I have served, on the Predator
‘Control Advisor§.£ommittee to the Secretary of tne Interior and have
‘been qualified in U.S. District Court on many. occasions as an expert on
- predatory aninals. v |

The Humane Society of the United States is a national animal
welfare organization, headquartered in -Washington, D.C; I am here
.today representing our 200,000 national members and constituents, and
our Mid-Atlantic Regional Office in Bedminstef,‘New-JerSey,’and the
25, 000 members it serves. | » |

Once again, humanltarlans and animal welfare agencies have
come to the New Jersey Legislature to appeal for the abolition of the
leqhold trap as a mechanism for the commercial exploitation of: New
Jersey's wildlife. The fundamental source of conflict between trappers

and humanitarians remains unchanged. Whilevthe‘steel—jaw trap may be a

convenient device  for killing animals, it 1s also an 1nstrument that

_routlnely causes 1ncred1ble animal suffering.
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_ The inherent cruelty of the steel-jaw trap'is a matter of
record. Thé Humane Society has identified twénty*two. scientific
studies confirming that the steel-jaw trap routinely causes injuries.
The Federal Provincial Committee for Humane Trapping in Canada
conducted a $1,300,000, seVenfyeaq study of animal traps, under the
auspices of the Canadian qovernment;' They-concluded that, "In summary,
research and field studies have demonstrated that the ‘standard
' steel—jaw leghold trép is non#specific; causes injury in all species
studied, and results in observable distress and probably pain in many
individuals."” Indeed, there are innumerable reports of pets being
caught “in steel-jaw traps within New Jersey. The evidence is
overwhelming thaf the steel-jaw trap is an instrumen£ of animal
'suffering. »

'The»trabping industry's response tb this charge has sometimes
been acrimonious. Trappers have impugned the knowledge, veracity, .and
-motives of animal welfare workers -~ even going so far as to publicly
accuse me of being "pro-rabies." They have sought to characterize our
complaints as unfounded and they have decried what they call the humane
movement 's "appeal to emotions." . |

Meanwhile, trappers persist in putting forward the same tired
excuses for the steel-jaw trap that have been popular seemingly since
 Charles Darwin wrote on this issue in August, 1863. In defense of the
steel-jaw -frap, trappers conjure the specters of diseased animals,
mouths frothing and teeth bared, inQading city streets to brey-on our
children. - - They paint vivid portraits. of barren woodlands denuded by
starving animals, and they speak of economic ruiﬁ and poverty.

As a wildlife biologist, I can assure the members of the New
Jersey Legislature that the enactment of A-3207 will not result in dire
biological damage to the ecosystems and habitats inhabited by
furbearers in the State. v ‘ .

The defense of the steel jaw trap is, in large part,
predicated- on the -assertion that trappers, in removing.wild animals,
are eliminating disease-carrying animals that threaten public‘health.
Rabies is the disease most commonly cited as being suppressed by
trappers. The relationship between trapping and rabies merits the

careful consideration of this Committee. As you know, the mid-Atlantic
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région has been in the midst of a rabies epizootic, reported to be the
worst outbreak of rabies in the past decade. V '

On careful scrutiny, the trapbers' self-proclaimed role as
guardians of the .public health proves to Jbe nothing more than an
*illogical rationalization designed toijustify inhumane irapping to‘an
unknowing public. There are several telling flaws in the argument that
commercial animal trappihg is creating a barrier against rabies -- not
the least of which is the continued incidence of rabies in
Pennsylvania,_YMaryland; and Virginia -- all states with extensive
trapping activity. ‘ v R _ ‘ o

‘ '-Nétionally,vthree species -- muskrat, nutria, and beaver --
account for approximately two-thirds of tﬁe-annUal kill by trappers.
These species are members of the taxonomic order rodentia.'_while all
‘warm- blooded aniﬁals can. contract rabies;, vit is not. endemic - in
rodents. - When you experimentally infect these ‘animals with rables,
they apparently do not produce enough of the virus to transmit it. A
rodent has never been reported to be responsible for a case of human
‘rabies anywhere in the world. Thus, trappers spend a majority of their
‘time catching wild animals that are not prone to develop or transmit
rabies. _

Of the species classified by the Centér for Disease Control
as being sighificant carriers of rabies, only five -- striped and
spotted skunks; red and grey foxes, and raccoons -- are taken by
trappers, and they account for only fourteen percent of the animals
they annually kill. Often, ‘pelt pricés are the determinihg factor in
the setting of ‘traps. Trappers will relentlessly pursue species, such
as . the bobcats, whose pelts offer the promise of high cash payments,
regardless of rabies.

Generally, the number of potentlal rabies carriers removed by
trappers is inconsequential. For example, there is little market for
skunk pelts. During a ten-year period, ending in 1976, trappers
nationwide each year killed an average of only 4,091 spotted skunks and
48,461 striped skunks, despite the fact these animals are suppoéedly a
brimary reservoir of rabies. -Moreover, trappers claim that they are

‘particularly successful in suppressing fox rables.
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Dr. Suzanne Jenkins, an E.I.S. Officer with the Center for
Disease Control, reported in March of fhis year,'however, that rabies
moves throuqh a population of foxes' too qulckly to be’ affected by
trapping. The fox is extremely susceptible to- rables, requ1res less
virus to develop symptoms, and -may. become debilitated and die so
.quickly that there is often not enough time for it to infect another
animal, much less be caught by a trapper claiming to be a guardian of
public health.  CDC regards fox rabies as a cyclical problem.. Dr.
Jenkins remarked, "Cases of fox rabies really7burn out on their .own.""

Additionally, we must remember that the Division of Fish,
Game, and Wildlife presumably attempts to manage populations of
furbearing animals on a sustainable-yield basis. Anndal quotas are set
at levels which they expect will assure that the ‘number of animals
taken during a season is .less than required for populations to
replenish themselves in time for the succeeding trapplng season. This
has been made clear earlier today by other w1tnesses. o

‘In theory, sufficient numbers of animals are left to maintain
the size of colonies through breeding. With gains in numbers during
the breeding season, a colony will presumably be restored to its
original number in time for the next trapping season. The concept .of
'susta1nable yield is advantageous to trappers because it is 1ntended to
assure them of a continuous and stable supply of furbearers. Yet, it
'is blatantly inconsistent with the alleged objective of suppressing
rabies. After all, trapping or other forms of removal can affectively
suppress rabies only if we virtually annihilate wildlife populations.'
It would be impossible to eliminate all reservoirs of rabies -in
wildlife and, of course, such destrUctionv of wildlife would be
‘unacceptable to the public. '

' In short, the defense of the steel-jaw trap is, in large
bart, ‘prediéated‘ on the assertion that trappers, in"temoving wild
animals, are reducing the densities of populations to reduce disease.
Thus, Erappefs claim there should be less chance for interaction among
animals and less opportunity for the transmission of disease. However,
Mr. Chairman, upon reflection, it '~ is' obvious that using - the
non-selective leghold trap to eliminate rabiesAmakes no more éense than

randomly shooting people to eliminate cancer.
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Moreover, trapping may actually have a detrimental effect on
attemptsv to control rabies. ‘Rabies oufbreaks tend to be species
spe01f1c The current rabies epizootic has been conflned largely to
~ raccoons. - Interestingly, the raccoon, whgn eXposed to the rabies
virus, does not always contract the disease. Instead, it can develop
serhm-neutralizing antibodies in its blood. Those antibodies give the
raccoon a natural immunity to rabies. At the height of an outbreak,
‘between thirty percent to fifty percent of the'surviving raccoons will
be immune to rabies. Trapping unavoidably results in immune animals .
being killed, thereby. creating a space‘FOr susceptible ahiméls to take
up residence. In this way, trapping may actually feed rabies outbreaks
'in raccoons. A .

Furthermore, Texas continues to lead the nation in £he number
of rabies cases among wild animals. Doctor William Bilderback of the
Texas State Board of Health contends that high prices for the pelts of
raccoons, foxes, and other predatory species has led fb the,wholesale 
‘trapping of those animals. This generally has made life easier for the
skunk, which reportedly is the principal carrier of rabies in Texas.

Trapping also has a role in fueling the mid-Atlantic rabies
"~ outbreak, which is another major outbreak ongoing in -the United
States. .In the northeast, trapping pressure on raccoons is intense.
‘Raccoon. hunters and. trappers aggreésivély compete for the 'available'v
raccooné. ‘This circumstance led hunting clubs to import raccoons into
Virginia, West Virginia, and Pennsylvania. The .Center for Disease‘n
Control has documented that some of the animals that were translocated
from Texas and Florida were, in fact, rabid and C.D.C. believes that
.these animals were the origin of the current rabies epizootic in this

region. ' _
_ I would like to state_thaf one of the speakers pointed 6ut
that many of those animals died and therefore they wouldn't have.
transmitted rabies. ltvseems to me that it only takes a couple, and
o Uniess they can document. that they all died, Doctor Jenkins and the
Center for Disease Control are probably correct. _‘ '

SENATOR ZANE: ‘Doctor, I am a l1tt1e confused. Why are you
for the bill? | |

DOCTOR GRANDY: Why am I for it?

5
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SENATOR ZANE: . Why are you for -the bill? . As I understand
your testimony, you are indicating that you are not in favor’of the
trap because the trap does not. really control disease. - That is the
thrust I am getting. Tell me why you are in favor of the bill.. - |

» DOCTOR GRANDY: If you will let: me finish my statement, maybe

I will do that. And then, if you have additional questions, I will
answer them. : :
- Undoubtedly, opponents of A—3207_7will also speak of the -
adverse economic consequences of a ban against the steel-jaw trap.
Last year, the fur -industry reported retail sales in excess of one
billion dollars. But, the net worth of an industry is a poor index of
its character or sbcial acceptability. Moreover, the'steel-jaw trap is
not irreplaceable nor is it essential to the prospérity of the
industry. Of the $1.2 billion in revenues collected by the industry,
approximately thirty percent resulted from the sale of imported goods.
Ranch-reared animals accounted for fifty-five percent of domestic
| production. Thus, trapping actually accounted for one-third of retail
dollar sales. When financial data is adjusted to reflect the use of
instant-kill traps, we find that a national ban on the steel-jaw trap -
would affect only twelve percent of the industry's gross profit.

" When reduced to its fundamental component, the_controversy

‘over the steel-jaw trap is exposed as a conflict between economic

" intérests and those who would see the wildlife asSured,‘not’assaulted._'

Trappihg‘iS‘é leisure activity conducted to put extra money in the
‘pockets of trappers, and for recreation. These are not excuses for the
blatant, avoidable, destructive animal cruelty.

I hope that Charles Darwin's comments on.this issue may serve
as an inspiration to this Committee and guide your déliberations on the
future of the steel-jaw trap in New Jersey.

' | Darwin -wrote, and I quote: "Some who reflect upbn this
subject for the first time will wonder how such cruelty could have been
‘permitted fo continue in these days of civilization; and no doubt if
men of education saw with their own eyes what takes place under their
sanction, the'system would have been put to an end long ago. We shall
be tbld that settinq steel traps is the only way to preserve game, but

we cannot believe that Englishmen, when their attention is once drawn
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- to the case, will let even this motive weigh against so fearful an
Vamount of cruelty.” ' '

The steel- Jaw trap evokes strong emotlons, and understandably
so. The cruelty of the trap and w11d11fe.destruct10n is demonstrable.
If the choice seems an emotional one, it is because trapping involves
~an individual 1life cruelly ended, ,and that is ‘an emot ional subject
indeed. B

To answer your question, Senator, if I have not adequately
answered it thus far, we are against the leghold trap and for the bill
because the trap is an undeniable instrumentﬂof‘animal cruelty and it
is unneceséary in this society. Thank you. |

- SENATOR ZANE: Doctor, do you have a position on hunting?

DOCTOR GRANDY: Yes, sir.

SENATOR ZANE: What is your positidn on hunting? _

DOCTOR GRANDY-‘ The position of the Humane Society in ‘the
United States is that sport hunting -- that is killing" for fun -- 1s'Z
morally wrong and should be abolished.

SENATOR ZANE: Therefore, you oppose hunting? ‘

 DOCTOR GRANDY: We oppose sport hunting. We understand, as
you do, Senator, that animals sometimes have to be killed. They bhave

to be killed as a matter of management. They have to be killed for
their own good. In such cases, when that occurs, we ask only that 1t-

be done in a way which is as humane as possible.

As 1 said, we take the position that hunt1ng for fun, or
huntlng for sport -- that is, hav1ng fun killing animals -- is morally‘
wrong. ' _

SENATOR ZANE: Doctor, what would beAyour pdsition with those
who tell: us in the Legislature -- those from Fish and’Game; and the
‘,Department of Agriculture, and others -- that if we didn't have hunting

and "harvesting", as they frequently refer to it, we would have
widespread crop damage. We would also have w1despread starvatlon among
many wild énimals. That is just the flavor of some of the things we

were told. Do.you refute those arguments?
~ DOCTOR GRANDY: It is hard to--
SENATOR ZANE: It doesn't really work anyhow, Doctor.




DOCTOR GRANDY: It doesn't work. It is;difficult to refute
generalities which are sometimes true, but often not. My analysis as a
professional has been that most often Qhen those argruments are raised,

‘they are inaccurate based on the data available, but one is never

presented with them specifically; one is only presented with them as

generalities.
As I said, we understand -- the Humane Society in the United
States understands -- the idea that animals sometimes have to be

killed. There are some situations where that has to occur. We are
simply unwillinq to approve and, indeed we obviously oppose an
instrument that is non-=selective and undeniably cruel as a general
panacea for situations which are only rarely demonstrable.
SENATOR ZANE: Do you have any questions, Senaﬁor Dumont?-
SENATOR DUMONT: Doctor, are you also opposed to fishing?
DOCTOR GRANDY: No, sir. Our directors have never taken a
position on that. e
- SENATOR DUMONT: It is a sport. You are not opposed to sport
fishing, as you are opposed to sport hunting? '
DOCTOR GRANDY: No. o
SENATOR DUMONT: Suppose this bill were to pass' and be signed
Vintb law, would you stop your opposition to. trapping, or are you simply
concerned about leghold traps? Would you try to ban all kinds: of
trapping? . |
DOCTOR GRANDY: We would have to see what that amounted to,
sir. We are int;erested‘ as an organization in ensuring that animal
érﬁelty does not occur. We see the leghold trap :as being one of the
primary perpetrators of that .in this society. - There are plenty of
other‘plabes that still use it, unfoptunately. ~As you knqw;'it has
been banned in Florida by - regulation. It has been banned in
Massachusetts. =~ We have plenty of other areaé on which we should
concentrate our efforts. But, if killing of animals was -occurring in
New Jersey through other means‘that were equally, or that turned out to
be more,diaboliCélly'cruel,,I am certain you would see ué baék;'
" SENATOR DUMONT: ‘Well, I think all of us have the same love
~of animals. Certainly, I do, whether they be wild or domestic. I am

'sure every member of your organization feels this way, but ' there are
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still other considerations that have to be considered, as well as what
your testimony.indicates,

DOCTOR GRANDY: [ understand that, 'sir.

SENATOR DUMONT: Thank you. . _

SENATOR-ZANE: Let me just ask you one other quétion.' How
would you suggest some of the animals we are discussing, animalsfthat'
wouldvbe taken by the leghold trap, be taken as an alternative?

DOCTOR GRANDY:‘ Do you mean if they have to bé killed because
of - some sort of ecological damage? » , | »

SENATOR ZANE: Well, let's assume as a given, just for a
moment, that there is a balance that is maintained by trapping. And,
let's assume, also as a given, that.this balance should be maintained
because of banks that are eroded, because of crops that are lost, etc.
Let's assume as a'.given that the same level of taking should be
maintained -- the same level of taking. How would you suggest, in the
alternative, that should be done? - o

~ DOCTOR GRANDY: First of all, obviously I cannot accépt the
premise on which the question is based, primarily.becégse as I have
said here this morning, and as others have Said, I have heard of oné_
bank .in one town where some damage occurred. o
SENATOR ZANE: Doctor, what I am really looking for 'is, what
would be yourbalternative method? I am asking you to take it as a
given. | ; ' o
DOCTOR GRANDY: There is the foot-snare, there is the box-
tiap, which is useful in areas and in situations where specific animals
are causing specific damage and one wants to remove them from ‘the
area. - There are obviously quick-kill traps, for the unusual situation
where the removal-of animals of one sort or another hés td be done
‘through lethal means. ,‘

I want to bpoint out, _Since- you 'brought up the question,
predatory animals. There has been a lot of talk here today about -
over-population of ahiméls, and that is the .reason why ke ,haye. to
control them. In general, we have population fégulation mechanisms
which don't even allow them to overpopulate, because their birthvrate
"is dependent. upon the prey that is available for them to consume. So,
it is impossible to generalize in the mannefvthat you .are, in effect,
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asking me to do' in order to anéwer this question. -1 can't say, "Well,
we have to have a certain level for all these thlngs."

_If there are cases where animals have to be killed -- it-has
to be done -- then it ought. to be .done .in the most humane . manner
possible, and the trap, as we know it, doesn't fill that bill.

‘ SENATOR ZANE: Thank you véry much, Doctor. |

Is Calvin Hill-here;_please?'gI'would-like’to hear from a
trapper. ' ' v
' MEMBER OF AUDIENCE: He is outside. o
SENATOR ZANE: Would someone like‘to;téll Calvin that he is
the next witness? : ' o .
CALVIN T. HILL: IamPresident of the New Jersey Fur
Farmers' Association, and we would like to go on record in oppostion to
the Trapping Bill, A-3207, banning the use of the leghold trap.

The fur farmer is an independent businessman who is
self-employed. By doing this type of work, he creates a lot of jobs
for other people. The people that would be most affected would be
those who make‘hip boots, outboard motors, boats, trapping supplies,
etc. This is only naming a few. , | »

So, when Mrs. Susan Russell says, "jobs be damned," it won't
only be my job that is affected, it will the the jobs of thousands of
others as well. ' | ‘v |

| Mrs. Susan Russell. stated in.a newspaper articlé today that
there are dozens of other ways to catch animals.

Today the 330, 220 conibear traps are outlawed, which leaves
us with only the:llO conibear trap. If they take the steel-Jaw trap
away, we will have nothing left. The box trap is not one of the most
practlcal ways of catchlng an animal. Thank you.

SENATOR ZANE: Thank you, -sir.

Is there a Roy Beal present? Mr. Beal is also a trapper, is
that correct? . 4 »

ROY B EAL: That's correct. Sir, I would like to thahk you
for this bpportﬁnity to speak. My name is Roy Beal. I am
self-employed as a farmer. I own'a 200-acre farm in Cumberland>County.

I would like to state that I am opposed to any change in:the
trapping laws of this State.: I have trapped for 25 years and I see no

reason for changing the law now.
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One-fourth of my annual income and two-thirds - of . my faiable
income is from trapping, primarily muskrats. I use roughly 35 dozen
leghold traps for harvesting muskrats. 1 feaf that the banks will not
be maintained if these traps are outlawed( ' v

' Fur farming, or harvesting of muskrats, is mereiy_ an
extension of almost any productive farming along the Delaware River.
This allows the farmer to make full use of his farmland, whether it be
~ harvesting crops or furs, summer or winter. »

By now 1 am sure you heard all the opp051t10n about ' the
population explosion and the diseases in animals that are left
unchecked. So, now let's think about what will happen twenty years
' down the road. ’ | _

If our banks are not maintained, I wonder what SOuth'JerSey
‘will be l1ke° There is'a fresh water swamp less than five hundred
| yards from my farm that 'is used for 1rrlgat10n. My neighbor tells me |
that if that bank qoes out, this swamp will become part marsh. He;
knows. He saw it happén. How is my'son expected to stay on the farm
if we are not allowed to keep the raccoons and the Louisiana rice rat
at a reasonable level? _

‘ The rice rat, as his name implies, will roq our grain
fields. The raccoon will eat very nearly every and any vegetable or
grain in the field. There is no known tool which will keep these
animals in check, except for the leghold trap.

The fur industry has come under attack by a group of people
who are playing on the emotions of our leglslators. If we do not react
'1nte111qent1y, rather than emotionally, we are going to destroy an
'impbrtént part of our agriculture along the Coastal Bay area. Who is
qoinqvtq pay the bill in the end? The consumer. ; k

‘ I sincerely fhank you for YOur attention. ' If there are ahy
QUestions,'I will be giad_to try and answer them.
~ SENATOR ZANE: Senator Dumont?

SENATOR DUMONT: Mr. Beal, how often do you monitor your
traps? , ' _ v v | .
MR. BEAL: Daily. Sometimes I monitor them more often than
that, but for muskrats daily is. enough -- evepy twenty-four hours.

SENATOR DUMONT: - Have you had -training or cdurses in

trapping?




MR. BEAL: No, sir. It is passed down from father to son.

SENATOR DUMONT: Suppose péople‘Start trapping today, do they
get any courses or training in trapplng of any kind? |

_ MR. BEAL: My son does, by me. He is not old enough to go to
the State regulatory school, but he goes out with me, and we enJoy our
tlme toqether.

SENATOR DUMONT: There are‘courses that are available?

MR.- BEAL: There are courses available. Before he will
become.a'licénsed trapper he will have to take a course. '_

| SENATOR DUMONT: Everyone‘coming into trapping now has to be
licensed? ' ‘ | : | o

MR. BEAL: VYes, sir. There is no license issued to”anyohe
who is not qualified through the coUrse. I am not sure how that gbes,‘
however, but there is a school for trapping now. |

- SENATOR DUMONT: I shouid»know this, but I am not sure. Is
it required by law that you have a‘trapping license?

MR. BEAL: On our farm we are not required by law to have a
trapping license. " : ' . '

'SENATOR DUMONT: That only applles to your own farm?

MR. BEAL: That is only for our own farm. If we. leave the
farm, or if it has a separate deed, we are requited‘to have a license.

SENATOR DUMONT: Thank you.

MR. BEAL: Sir, I would like to point out there are nlneteen
subspecies of muskrats, of which the Delaware Basin has the most
productive —— the highest reproduction rate. The Huﬁane Society said
that he could see in some cases'where it is necessary to destroy some
animals. We have the highest production, ihéofar as repopulation is
concerned. A lot of these surveys are taken in states like
Penhsylvania'and other aréas where the food and the‘sub-species é:é
différent, and this does not apply to our area. Thank you. '

SENATOR DUMONT:  Thank you. | |

SENATOR . ZANE: Mr. W1lllam Kenny, the Assistant Secretary of
Agriculture fdr the State of New Jersey.

"WILLIAM KEN N Y: Senator Zane, Sénator Dumoht, my name is

William Kenny. I am the Assistant Secretary of Agriculturé, and I am
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maklnq this statement on behalf of the Secretary of Agrlculture, Arthur
Brown. ‘ ‘
‘The Department of Agriculture feels obliged to express
cbncern with A-3207. A blanket prohibition on the use or possession of
the steel-jaw leghold trap might well expose farmers to significant
economic harm. Until such time as there is made available'an'effeetive'
alternative for preditor control, we-”euggeSt that 3207 be held in
abeyance.
_ This Committee is aware that farm crops y1eld one pay day per .
- year- at harvest. That income follows extensive investments for land,
- labor, seed, fertilizer, pest and disease control measuresr} In. those
instances where wildlife ravages preempt the harvest for market, farm
income is directly‘and irreparably affected. Farmers must be ablevto
protect their cropsffrom euch intrusions. E

' Livestock farmers are also concerned with wildlife control.
The oppossum, skunk and raccoon  are vulnerable to pseudorabies
infection. This disease is of economic importanee to swine and cattle
producers. Until there is conclusive evidence that the dieease is not
‘transmitted to domestic stock by these predators, they,mdat be.held
auspect and safeguards Shodld be maintained. '

However, there is no suspicion about rabies. The skunk,
raccoon and fox have been identified as algnlflcant vectors in the’
transmission of rabies to all warm-blooded animals, 1nclud1ng famlly
pets and'man.v Rabies'outbreaka have been tracked up the east coast;
the organlsm entered Pennsylvania’ last year. Recently, the Center fdr
Dlsease Control in Atlanta warned that the disease is expected to enter
New Jersey this year.

Leptospirosis is of increasing concern to human and llvestock
health. This d1sease, which affects the k1dneys "and lxver, is spread
by the fox, raccoon, skunk and rodents. »

Moreover, predatory animals often create land condltlons
wh1ch endanger farm workers and damage farm. equ1pment. Woodchuck holes
can upset tractors or dlsmount the1r operators, break the legs of man.‘
or beast, and play havoc with expen51ve harvesters and water management_p%}

7systems.
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The Legislature recently passed a,Right to Farm Act and it is
presently,conéidering trespass and vandalism measures. Those measures
recognize the‘economic‘aSpects of maintaining a strong: farm base for
the State. . | ,
- Uncontrolled wildlife can inflict as much economic damage on
our -farms' as. the: human trespasser or vandal. - Although a properly
managed- . wildlife population_ imposes some economic harm, ‘the farm
community is willing to accept that tolerable‘burden. ' , , ‘

Again, until an equally effective control mechanlsm 15
available, A- 3207 should be set aside.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

SENATOR. ZANE: ~ Senator Dumont? C

SENATOR bUMONT: Do you foresee any equally effectlve control
mechanismlin-the'future7 . _ ‘

MR. KENNY: .No, sir, we don't, not at th1s time.

SENATOR DUMONT: I take it from your testimony that you wouldv

disaqree with what Doctor Grandy of the Humane-Soc1ety said, and that.'

there is a possibility of conveyingerabies'to man by virtue of .these
animals, is that correct?
~ MR. KENNY: - Yes, indeed. In fact, we have a report this year

of  rabies 1nfect1ons in bats in: New Jersey. - The bats bhave been

associated w1th attacks on cats, and our veterinarians tell us that you o

may not get the evidence of disease r1ght away because rabies takes a

long time to germlnate within the species. : -
SENATOR DUMONT: - And, even though I imagine most farmers, or

maybe all of them.today, use tractors rather than horses -—_although I

can easily remember when they were using horses -- you still have the
problem with the ground hog hole upsett1ng the tractors?

MR. KENNY. Well, I am not relating the ground hog to the
:trap, ‘1 am relating that . to wildlife management . We feel that the
leghold trap, to the best of our knowledge, is an important tool 1n"

‘ w11d11fe management.-
All wildlife must be managed effectlvely or 1t can become a

" real economic problem to farmers. . -
“SENATOR DUMONT:: - But .one ground- hog hole, for example, could'

”,upset a tractor, is that what you said?




“"MR. KENNY: Oh, yes. .
 SENATOR DUMONT: That means 1t could break a horse' s leg?
MR. KENNY: Yes, s1r.
SENATURfDUMUNT: Thank you. ,
' SENATOR ZANE: Thank you, Mr. kehny,
MR. KENNY: Thank you, sir. | |
, SENATDR ZANE: Is Charles Clausing‘persent?' Mr. Clausing is
 Pres1dent of the An1ma1 Welfare Assoc1at10n. : L
CHARLES =~ CLAUSTING: I am Charles Clausing. I am
President of the Animal Welfare Association. I thank the Comm;ttee for:
“the opportunity to speak here today. I have a resolution'with me,
which I will turn over to the Committee. It was passed by the Animal
Welfare Association. Itvenunciates our support of A-3207,, 1 would
also like to make some addltlonal remarks on the subject.
Let's get down to the basics of the steel~Jaw leghold trap,
and strip away superfluous factors. You know deep down that the trap

is eruel and unselective. However, you are troubled because you think -

that banning it just mlght affect the 11ve11hood of some people who use

it. :

I think you do these people an injustice. Moét of them are
innovative enough to seek out and use available alternates. The:
prohibition of the steel-jaw leghold trap in first and second class

counties in New Jersey certeinly hasn't'stopped legal'trapping there‘~~':"'

A-3207 wouldn't ‘stop legal trapping or serlously affect the number of
animals captured in the rest of the State. -

‘Life ' is full of examples of people -adapting to changedfv,f

épnditions, When oil prices surged, people reacted with all manner of =

" conservation measures and conversion to alternate eﬁergyi sources,»e
People are adaptable and all that A-3207 will do is to abolish a great
deal of unnecessary animal suffer;ng. ' ‘

The Commlttee can, with clear consc1ence, release A-3207 for =

a .vote by the full Senate. Just as there is-a constltuency seek;ng to

~ preserve the status‘quo; there is a large and grOwing constiteency dfy,'

:ihumenitafians looking for like-minded legislators. We ‘urge you : and
'your Comm1ttee to release the bill and to support it in the Senate. :"
. I thank you for giving me thls tlme to speak.- "
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SENATOR DUMONT: Mr. Clausing, you realize‘that.class one and

two counties -- because counties are classified sblely on the basis of
population in New Jersey,“and nothing else -- are so heavily populated
that there really isn't a great deal of room for animals.

MR. CLAUSING: Well, I would cite Burlington County. I think

there is a great deal'of‘rural area in that ‘county. That 1s where I
happen to live. | S ‘ _ : .
. SENATOR -DUMONT: Burlington is . the  largest county in land
area in ‘the State also. . ' S ; : f

MR. CLAUSING: 1 am told they are also one of the highest

‘producers of muskrat belts. (dissension from audience)

SENATOR DUMONT: .Suppose this bill passed and became law.

Would you then attempt to outlaw all kinds of trapping?.
o MR. CLAUSING Speaking for the Animal Welfare Association,

very candidly, yes, we would prefer to see no trapping.

SENATOR DUMONT: Are you also opposed to hunting -- your

organization?
MR. CLAUSING: On the same basis, we do not consider sports
hunting as- being proper.
‘ SENATOR DUMONT:  How abbut fishing?

MR. .CLAUSING: I don't know that we have taken a position on

fishing at this point. o . . o
E SENATOR DUMONT: I recognize that fish may not be considered

quite the same as animals, but at the same time, sports fishing is '

designed to terminate a fish's life, is it not? , .

_ MR. CLAUSING: I think it all comes down to the question of
whether there is cruelty involved, whether it is done purely for the
' sake of sport, or whether there is some economic need for food or

whatever.
ord1nar11y used hurt a fish?.
MR. CLAUSING: I am sure 1t would.

SENATOR DUMONT: Thank,you.

‘trapper.

CARLTON P.  SOWERS: I would like to thank the

J

‘Senators for holding this hearing in Saleﬁ,' It 1s a great advantage.k
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-~ I'live in the TownSHip of Elsinboro. There are several miles
of banks in the Township'that‘protect the homes, farms, and roads from
being flobded by the high tides from the Delaware River. It is an
expensive and never-ending task to malntaln these banks. -

Keeping the muskrats from living 1n the banks and cutt1ng

‘holes 'through the bank is often the number one problem. The only

satisfactory wavae can catch these muskrats is'with a leghold,trap.
“These traps are set underwater and they do ndt-harm other wildlife.

During the years 1983 and 1984, the c05t7of.maintaihingpthese

banks has and will exceed $350,000. This is the taxpayers' and

landowners' money. Without the leghold trap, thé problem will be WOtsé

than it 1s.

We have been told that the leghold trap has been banned .in

the state of Florida. It~1s also our understanding that the State of Lo

" Florida will issue a permit to any farmer who requests it. Théy»wili
allow him to use fifty leghold traps. | _ :

.The day that Bill No. 3207 passed the Assembly, I asked
Assemblyman Mazur, the sponsor of thé bill, why a law was needed to ban
the leghold trap in the entire State, when it was already aga1nst the
law to wuse a leghold trap in the northern part of the State.

Assemblyman Mazur told me that the reason the law needed to cover the__l__i

entire State was that they could not enforce the law.

It seems to me that taking the 11ve11hood ~away from ‘the

trappers and owners of marshland in south Jersey is a terrible pribe to
pay because the powers that are in northern New,JefSey cannot - enforce
their own laws. | ' ' ‘

I thank you. ‘ : ,

| SENATOR ZANE: - Thank you very much. Senator, do you have any
" questions? . | : ' v o
SENATOR DUMONT' No.

'SENATOR ZANE: Thank you very. much, Mr. Sowers.
Cathy Liss, - Friends of Anlmals, Soc1ety for Animal Protectlon"
.Legislation. - N : c
CATHY  LISS: My name is Cathy Liss, Research Associate with

 the ‘Society for Animal Protective Llegislation. I believe I was

11ncorrectly llsted on the list of tentative speakers. 1 am not a

”3member of , mor a representatlve of, the Friends. of Anlmals.
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The Sotiety is a national organization, founded in 1955, with
the sole purpose of protecting5 animals through the passage of much
needed legislation; During-'its existence, the Society nas worked
toward the passage of many State bills and has worked intensively to
 pass twelve Federal laws to protect animals. | '

I'am a 1982 graduate of Virginia Polytechnlc Institute and
State . University. Three study concentrations durlng' my  time at
Virginia Tech were Wildlife Management, Biology, and Animal Science.
Throughout my course studies in Wildlife Management, professors and
other staff, as well as graduate students'in»the Hildlife_Department,’
agreed that there are a number of problems with the steel-jaw leghold
trap; Specifically, this trap is nonselective, painfui, and it causes
serious injuries.

In'Fact,«one of my Wildlife Management schoolbooks, "Wildlife'.
and America", contains the following statement by Stanley A. Cain:
"Although generally effective, they -- steel-jaw leghold trape -- have
the disadvantage of being inhumane and indiscriminate ‘in_'killing
wildlife species."” . A , .

Included in the statement are two photdgrephs. The first is
of a golden eagle caught in a steel trap and the second is of "a
coyote, dead from the summer heet, after almost succeeding in' freeing
himself by chewing off his leg." ' I have the two photographs here if .
you are interested in seeing them. '

Within both the School of Fisheries and Wildlife Management
and the School of Biology, the steel-jaw leghold trap is not generally
used for capture of animals when they are intended to be’released.
There is concern about 1nJur1es that would be sustaxned from the steel :
" trap. ' . ’ v .
I have brought along a steel-jaw trap to demonstrate this
archic device's cruelty. This is a number two coilspring steel trap.

" (witness tries, unsuccessfully, to demonstrate steel-jaw trap)

I'don't usually set it with high-heels on, okay? -

7 SENATOR ZANE: Is there a gentleman trapper present who would
;'11ke to ass1st the lady? . ‘ ' g
e ' (volunteer ass1sts witness) . '
» 7 MS. LISS: Now that 1 have a volunteer, 1 would 11ke to put
‘his hand in the trap. | |
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(volunteet puts hand into steel-jaw trap)

Hold it there for the entire -length of the hearlng, because
an an1mal-- o o

(audlence applauds trapper volunteer) o , )

TRAPPER: VOLUNTEER: It does not cut or anything, but it doe5~ﬁ
put a lot of pressure’on the hand. That is what the trap,does, 1tvputs
pressure on-the hand, that's all. R

SENATOR ZANE: I don't see any reason for you to’ s1t w1th the
trap on your hand, sir. , . o , ' A
” TRAPPER VDLUNTEER. It will, after a wh1le; numb my f1ngers,
but it does not cut the hand or anything like that.

‘MS. LISS: Can I finish my testimony?

SENATOR ZANE: Proceed.

MS. LISS: An animal caught in a leghold trap will be kept in.
that trap for up to twenty-four hours by law., I am only asking him to
keep his hand in there for the length of the hearing. Ivbelieve-there'
is pain which continues the longer the trap is oh, whatever aependage
it might be on. That is why I am asking you keep it on for the reet,of
the hearlng. , : ' ‘
'SENATOR  ZANE: Let's just have testimony.:and‘ not be
argumentative.. ’ '

MSb’LISS:. This size in particular is recommended for use on
- fox, nutria, otter, badger, and raccoon,,amongst other‘speciee.’ Steel
traps come in both larger and smaller sizes. The trap has a very
strong clamping mechanism which is activated when the animal species --
target or non—targetb--.triggers the pén of the trap. .

 Let me also emphasize that if an animal is caught in a trap
he will not be 31tt1ng calmly, as this man is doing, he will be
'struggllng to get out of that trap, whxch is golng to inflict further‘
pain on the anlmal ‘

InJurles result from the force of ‘the Jaws closing on the
appendage, the tightness of the hold, the length of time the animal is
held, and from the animal's struggles to free itself. InJur1es 1nc1ude'
”abra51ons, cuts to the skin, damage to soft tlssue, superf1c1al nerves,'~

‘arter1es and tendons.. - The 1nterference with c1rculat10n causes" -
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gangrene. The captive animal may' even chew off a foot to escape. This

‘is termed Wring?off«by trappers. Broken bones and broken teeth as the
animal fights the trép are common. * Because the trap is not selective,
»noh-target' speciesg :incIudingv pets, may be caught and injured or
killed. ' - ’ ‘ |

Though trappers who defend the steel-jaw trap may often' be
- heard to claim that they can release non-target animals with no harm
‘done, follow-up on released animals, when it has been ‘done, tells a
»-different'étory. For example, at the Raptor Rehabilitation,Center,

- University of Minnesota, it has been found fhat, "signs of necrosis
requires several days to develop. Of the raptors received for leg
injuries involving only soft tissue damage...BS% had irreparable dahage
that would result in loss of the foot." = This .is from. the
"International Journal for the Study of Animal Problems,"
November-December, 1981. |

As for coyotes, a study? at Northern Michigan University
showed that two out of three coyoteé, radio-tagged after being caught

in steel-jaw le§hold traps, were found dead of their injuriesb and
starvation. '~ In one case, the front‘foot had been chewed off after
“releasé. In another case, the foot was badly tornkand,chewed exposing
broken  bones. Yet, those coydtes had appeared to be able to be
released. - : .

Alternatives exist. Alternatives to the steel trap inélude
box traps, cage traps, the Swedish legsnare, the Canadian legsnare: and
bthev Ezyonem. = I have included detailed information on these
élternatives in my testimony, and. I have brought along these two traps
to show you. This one is the Swedish legsnare and this one is the
Ezyonem.- These have to be demonstrated outside. - This  is a
demonstratbr ‘model. - I am sorry,,‘I‘ don't have the real thing
‘available. You are welcome to try it. I must alsoc say that,i wou;d

“not ‘put my hand in one of those traps (indicating leghold trép);-l

would, and have, put my hand in these traps. _ v

| " In British Columbia, in October, the use of the steel-jaw
" leghold trap. was banned for use on raccoon, weasel, wolverine,

“squirrel, martin; and - skunk oniland; The British Columbian governmenf -




‘Was sétisfied that there. were practicalvalternatiVes to the steel-jaw
trap. ' And, 1 encourage you to contact the appropriate individuals.
within the British Canadian government to confirm this.:

Ontario has now banned land sets vwith the steei_ trap for
" beaver, mdskrat and mink, and Quebec has warned its trappers that
during the 1983 season some restrictions will be .imposed concerning use
6f the steel trap. It is intéresting to note the recent appearancé on
thé market of the Woodstréam‘Canadian Legsnare. Also, a number of
other alternatives are rapidly on their way. Two of these are the
" "Challenger" and the "Bionic." o

A survey conducted by Yale Unlver51ty for the Unlted States
Fish and Wildlife Service in 1979, showed that 78% of the American
public are- opposed to the use of steel traps. Trappers contend that
“trapping 1is necessary to control rabies, -but' the National Research
Council, acting on behalf of the National Academy . of Sciences, :
completed a thorough research study of this questioﬁ, and in 1983,
submitted a report on the control .of rabies which - recommended:
"Persistent trapping or poisoning ‘campaigns ‘as. a means to .rébies
control should be abolished. There is no evidence that thése costly
and politically attractive programs reduce either wildlife reservoirs
" or rabies incidence. The money can be ‘better spent on research,
vaccination, compensation to stockmen for IOSSes,'education, or public
warning systems." Because the bill does not stop trapping, .there
should be no loss of jobs or cher economic hardshipé within the State.

- "Facts and Furs" is included with my testimony for use by the
Committee. It is a thorough comprehensive report on fur, from wild
animal to fur coat. I have also included, "Reports from around the
world belie American trappers; here is Qhat;really'happens when.nationsv
‘ban leghold trapping," by Bill Clark. |
_ ' Most impdrtantly, the steel-jaw leghold trap is a cruel and
painful nonselective device. Therefore, the Society for Animai
'Protective‘Legislation recommends prompt passage of A- 3207, to ban the
- manufacture, sale, and use of the steel-Jaw leghold trap in the State»b
':.of New Jersey. Thank you, Senator Zane. ‘ ; . '
| SENATOR ZANE Do you have any questlons, Senator Dumont’ -

46




SENATOR DUMONT{» Does your organization differ'from some of
the other organizations that testified, insofar as you would not
attempt to ban all trapping?

MS, LISS: We are not opposed to all trapplng.

SENATOR DUMONT: Are you opposed to just the leghold trap, or
. are you opposed to other traps7

‘MS. LISS: Just the leghold trap.

SENATOR DUMONT: - Just the leghold7

- MS. LISS: Correct. _ _

SENATOR DUMONT: What is the position of‘yourvorganiiation on
hunting? : B | _
MS. LISS: 1 don't‘quite understand why you are asking about
hunting and fishing when our main concern here today should be

trapping. But, no, we are not opposed to hunting or fishing. We would
‘hope that they are done in the most humane manner possible.

SENATOR DUMONT: You are not?

MS. LISS: Correct.

SENATOR DUMONT: Thank you.

- SENATOR ZANE: Tom Zander, please? - ,
THOMAS A ZANDER: My name is Tom Zander. I
‘represent tHe firm of T. Zanderv'& Sons, Inc. I have been a fur
merchant or collector for twenty-five years. DQr company name is T.
Zander & Sons, Inc. We buy‘furs.coast to coast. We employ sixteene
employees. In the past four years we have shipped over 500,000 pounds
of freight from the ‘Port of Phlladelphla. _
 Looking at the financial aspect of the fur industry in New

Jersey, it is no "Mom and Pop" industry. ' New Jersey ranks well into
the top five fﬁr-producing states in the United States. Tf Zander &
Sons is oﬁly'One of- many fur collectors in New Jersey. Our company
Aalone has shown sales in the past four years in excess of $16 million,
with grOwingﬁ sales each year. " We do ninety-eight percent of our
business overseas, w1th fifteen different countries. »

I feel I am an expert on fur and I cannot tell if a fox or

raccoon was . caught in a leghold trap after it has been sklnned. -How""

_e‘can the average law enforcement officer" know the dlfference in order to
- enforce Bill No. 32077 ‘ | |
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1 sell ‘appreximately $40,000 worth of traps and supplies
during a collecting season. Look at the price tag on.the traps in the -
possession of trappers.' How can the State walk in-and'take away the
tools of a man's bread and butter without reimbursement? _ ‘

T have been trapping for thlrty-91x years, and run about
e1ghteen dozen traps. .. I have only caught two cats and two dogs, and
~all four animals were released unharmed. Please note that all four
anlmals were running at large on private property. Thank you.

SENATOR ZANE: Thank you, sir. T

- SENATOR DUMONT: Where is your fur company lodated; please?
' MR. ZANDER: In West Dept ford Townsh1p, Gloucester County.

SENATOR DUMONT: Thank you. o |

, SENATOR ZANE: Harry Coleman, Mayor ovaowef Alloways Creek.
YH ARRY COLE H A Nt I have with me a resolutlon passed by
the Township" Commlttee of Lower Alloways Creek. It was passed
unanimously, and it reads:

BE IT RESOLVED by the Townsh1p Commlttee of Lower Alloways.
Creek in the County of Salem, State of New Jersey; that the Commxttee
hereby opposes A-3207 which has been introduced in the Leglslature,
adoptedv by the Assembly, and would outlaw ‘the use of leghold-type
animal traps. The leghold traps are the only way to catch muskrats 1ni
' nond meadows. There are many pond meadows in Lower Alloways Creek
Township, vand, many residents in this Township and in the ‘County of"
Salem and'elsewhere in New Jersey rely upon trapping the furbearing
animals for their rlivelihood. Use of the leghold 'frap ensures  an '
income and support for many .families in our Township. It is important
to use this type of trap for the controleof predators, such as foxes,
skunks, raccoons, weasles, and house rats. ‘ ‘

If the leghold trap is prohlblted, there w111 be no. eff101ent
way of controlling the muskrat populations in this Townshlp, and
without  that control there will be what -is known as-"eatouts’" An

"eatout" leaves the marshland void of vegetatlon, and it becomes barren

of wild anlmals and birds. It is an ecologlcal disaster. Too: large a;*‘“

';populatlon of muskrats also causes holes to be cut through banks of thew»v

vpond meadows and roadways, maklng breaches. Muskrats will even go to
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higher ground, digging holes in pastures and farm fields. Everyone
knows what a hole in a pasture fleld means for horses. = i
The Township Committee of Lower Alloways Creek Feels a great
burden would be placed upon those holders of leghold traps, in that a
lérge-inveétment'ié made in the purchasing of the traps and the current
proposal institutes a penalty if in possession of a trap. 4Accordingly,
the self—employed trapper would.  stand to ‘lpse a considerable
investment, plus having .a penalty imposed upon him if he does not
dlspose of each and every leghold trap.
The proper use of leghold traps in pond meadows is not
_"inhumane". The set is made so that the muskrat dives off the set into
the water, wrapping the chain around the bottom of the stake, and the
muskrat quickly drowns. Very few pets are ever caught in traps. The
trapper does not like to époil a.sét with an animal that is of no value
“to him. They put too much work and time into their sets. People that
have pets they care for do not allow them to run at large in trapping

areas, just as they would not allow them to run at large on city

streets. - This Township has an ordinance prohibiting .owners fram _"‘

letting their dogs run at large.

Furbearing animals are a renewable resource, and the proper
control -of them not only provides food and clothing fpr many peopie of
the world, but also preserves the ecology of the marshland. The
leghold trap is essential to this preservation in‘éreas whére there are
pond meadows. The income to the marshland owners permits them to pay
téxes, maintain meadow banks, and generally preserve these marshes for'
the benefit of all those who appreciate marshlands. The leghold trap ‘
~‘is ‘important to conservation of marshlands. Thé Township Committee of "
Lower Alloways Creek urges. the defeat of A732U7. '

~ This was adopted unanimously by the Township Committee of
Lower ‘Allaways Creek. '

‘SENATOR ZANE: Thank you very much.

Owen Poole, Néw Jersey Farm Bureau. : o
0 WEN POOL E: Senator Zane; Senator'DumOnt, trappers of
south vjersey; I am Owen Poole, Treasurer of- the New Jersey Farm
- Bureau. ' ‘We -are a voluntary membershlp organlzatlon that - represents

over 4, 000° farmprs in the State of New. Jersey.
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_We'feel that the passage of this legislation will .cause a
" great economic hardship to agriculture in all of New Jersey.

1As has'been'pointed outvhere‘today, there are problems with
health -- such as rables and mange -- when you have an over-populatlon
of anlmals, which ‘can affect domestic livestock, be it dairy cow, beef
cow, hogs, sheep, swine, or cats and dogs.

Some of the other problems associated with an uncontrolled
population of - animals would be the danger created by the burrows in the
fields, as has been pointed out by a previous Speakera Maybe none of
. you have ever ~experienced the tipping over of a wagon -or- tractor
because of a cave- in in the middle of a field, but it is not a pleasant'
experience. -There have been lives lost because of this..

' Muskrats destroy and deteriorate - irregation pond banks
and stream banks, and many crops are destroyed by muskrats, coons, and
beaver. A muskrat can cause a vegetable farmer, in a matter of a day
or two, a good bit if grief, because they eat the tender shoots of the

plants after the farmer has planted them.-

I'don't know whether any of you have gone into a field of

sweet corn that is ready to be p1cked -- in about two days -- and Found,j:
that a pack of coons has been in there the night before. It is not the

fact that we don't'uant,to feed them. - If they would take one- ear of}-A

corn and eat it, it would be all right; But, when you get ten or
fifteen coons in a corn field, it seems as. though they think it is a -
gaime to see how many plants they can pull down,. strip the husks of f,
take one bite out of the ear of corn, and then mer on and do the same -
~ thing over and over again. It is not uncommon for a_coon, or a pack of
‘ coons,.to‘go into a sweet corn field and deStroy a half acre in an
evening. This is a iarge economic loss to a farwer. '
' We have a problem with livestock, as has been pointed out
here, steoping in the holes caused by muskrats, fox, or WOOdChUCk.‘_ _
We feel that the passage of th1s bill, w1th no su1tab1e,
alternatlve to control the balance of nature, would be a grave mistake.
 There are thousands, or hundreds of thousands, of muskrats'

" taken here in the south Jersey area each year._ If these .were notf

i‘taken,_I would hate to see what the city streets of Salem and some -of S

"our other communltles would be like, because an anlmal is 901ng to go]_”a‘“ S
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where there is food. - They don't particularly care whether they live in
a hodse, whether they live in cellar, - or whether they live in the
ground. : ' o _

A muskrat is. very adaptable - to his environment, and he will
move where he has to{_ it is not uncommon for them to plug up field
drains by puilding a nest in them, and ruining a p1ece of land that has
been draining through field t1les.

_ There are many, many reasons for the continued - use of the_
leghold trap. I think this gentleman here, by snapping the trap with
his hand, has shown us that there is not that much>pain inflicted by
the trap. _ | | ;

I have been a trapper and I have caught animals in traps. I
have éaught.muskrats,~and I have caught dogs. I have released the dogs
and the dogs;' within a déy's' time, were walking normally, with no
problems. ‘ 7 ,

Until there is a suitabie. alternative, I feel this bill
should be held in Committee. Thank you. ‘

SENATOR ZANE: I am going to change the order of. the speakers:
list by taking a gentleman from Silver Grove, Kentqcky,‘who has to get.
a 4:50 flight out of Philadelphia. His name is Chet Hayes. He is the
President of the Fur Takers of America. , o o
CHET HAYES: Thank you,vMb. Chairman. I appreciate the
privilegebof testifying before this Committee today. My name is Chet
Hayes, and I am President of the Fur Takers of America. 1 am a
resident ‘of Silver Grove, Kentucky, and I am a little bit hesitant
about coming up hear and sticking my nose into a New Jersey. issue.
_However, [ was invited by our Fur Takers chapters in New Jersey. Our
organization .has .épproximately ninety-five chapters and affiliates
“throuqhout the country. We have members in every statef0f-the.Union;’
- plus several members in foreign countries. ‘ v
We are dedicated to teachlng our American - youth the ethical
 'and rPspon51ble ways ~to pursue . the sport of trapping. We are
interested in- education the public as: to the benefits of trapplng and
the American fur trade, which, as you well know,,ls»a b11110n_dollar 
.indUStry3£hat-enjoys a favorable balance of trade. We're interested in
devélopihg'better'fur markets for American trappers. :
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We are very interested in cooperating'with State and Federal
“fish and game agencies towards better game laws to conserve our |
furbearing species and their habitats.

' First, most, and always, we are very much involved in
vdéfgating any legislation which we feel would advefsely affect breSent
and fufure generations of the American'trapper.

We are a nonprofit ofganization:that“works with legitimate --
~and . I stress the word "legltlmate" - cthervation organizations to
: achleve these goals. For this reason, I am here today- to. speak very .
: proudly in opp051t10n to Assembly Bill 3207. v o

My twenty-two years of trapping experience as a sport, a
hobby, and finally as a professional fur trapper have provided me with
" a very good knowledge of trapping and what it is about -- the pros and
cons, the facts and fallacies. I have trapped ih a variety of climafes
and conditions throughout this country. I have trapped in the deserts
of the southwest; I've trapped on the plains; I've trapped in southern
swamps; and, I've also. trapped in a good number of heav1ly populated
areas around this country, which are very similar to your 81tuat10n
here is New Jersey. _

My experience with the leghold trap, Mr. Chairman, does not
: bear any resemblance to the conditions of. trapping as expressed by .some -

of the preservatiohist organizations here today in"support_‘of this
~ bill. My experience in - trapping does not include deliberate cruelty,
the desire to inflict misery or suffering on any form of life. My
experienée in trapping doesvnot include mutiliation. If trapping were
. a pursuit based on thié sort of thing,'you can rest assured that I =
wouldn't have,puﬂ twenty-two years of my life into it. '

I've asked myself why this difference exists -- the
difference in what I've seen in trapping and the so-called trapplng

experiences deplcted by some of these groups. 1 see two basic reasons,

 Mr. Chalrman.’

First of all, I see people of 'genuine, ‘decent and good

intent, and they have no real _knowledge of wildlife, wildlife

_manaqemént ‘or nature. A lot of hunters and proféssionél‘ Wildlife  ‘,..

'>managers and sportsmen refer to them as "bleedlng hearts" or "armcha1r  1f

-ecologists," if you will. This is one group of people that 1 see."

- inveived in this movement. . -




Secondly, I see pecple of questionable intent who would use
deceptiOn in'thé hopes of'iegislating their morals on the rest of us -=-:
legis lat1ng their llfestyle, their value on the rest of us. I don't
think this country is ready for that. I Feel the supporters of
Asoembly Bill 3207 include both- of  these groups.

Some testlmony that we have heard today 1s, in my opinion,
not true, and it should be stralgtened out. Knowing time is short here
today, I will try to be as brief as' I can, but I would like to touch on
a couple of matters that I feel are veryvimportant.

' We have heard the statement that leghold traps are :a threat
to pets and should: be banned in the interest of public.eafety.' In
reality, pets are accidentally caught on very, very rare occasions, and
under twcntyufour hour;éheck iaws and under today's lrapping teéhniques
and devices -- swivelingiand staking methods, .trapper ethics -- these
ugly, incidental catches are kept to a minimum. Also, i;wodld'heve to
point out that in the vast majority of accidental captures that ‘I've
seen of any pet -- dog, cat or whatever -- these animals can almost
alWayS be released unharmed. It should also be remembered that many of
these stray'pet captures are not the fault of the trapper who must get |
permission to trap on private property here in New Jersey,'but instead,
-they are the result of negllgent pet owners who allow their pets to t
stray on private land where they are. generally not wanted in the first
'place '

. AUDIENCE: (Applause) .

MR. HAYES: The statement was also made that the public is -
crying for an end to leghold traps, trapping, and the'Americah fur
trade. ~ We are constantly bombarded with these so-called éurQeye that
were takeh-from Yale'University, or another -university, where it says
that 60% or 68%'ofvthe American public is opposed to trapping, Well, 1]
~ have qot some veiy, VEry solid documented evidence from the State'of
Ohio in 1977 and from the State of Oregon in-1980, where the publxc was
‘allowed by state ‘referendum to vote on how they felt about leghold

traps. This wasn't Just to comment about a one—s1ded poll or a survey,

. but to vote after being presented both sides of the - 1ssue. In each‘

case, there was a very strong two- to-one margln by the voters 1n those_

Lstates in support ‘of Lrapplng. '
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Also, we have a booming fur industry in this country, and
that 'is solid support of the:pdeuct that. we produce. If people didn't
like what we do and what we produce, they wouldn't buy it. It is just
~that simple. v :

It has.also been suggested here - today that our nation should
Fnllow the lead of a very, .very long list of nations which have banned
the leghold trap. If we assume that this list is valld.andvresearchedj
agd genuinely representative of those countries listed -- and I don't
assume this -- Weawnuld have to look at this countries. Many of them
are third-world COUhtries; and if you took at this, I thihk'cheful
scrutiny will revealrthat in every case, these countries either import
the furs that- we export, or we feed those people with our tax dbllers,ﬂ
which are generated from some of our fur money. So, I don't see why
the United States ought to follow this lead. I sure don't.

I also feel that the trapping question is really not a
questlon of cruelty or emotion or anything else. 1 feel 1t is a 31mp1e
question of wildlife management. All of these aforementloned countries
are ‘light years behidd us in wildlife management. They do not manage
their wildlife the way we do, and that is why we feed so many of their
starving citizens in India. Animals there have almost complete rights}_
and people‘starve to death while cows wélk'Erdund the streets and eat -
':grain. I don't see'any reason for the United States to adopt thisb
‘philosophy; I feel that the philosophy of wildlifeimanagement that we
have today is a system which allows the use of wildlife by those who
‘buy a hunting, fishing, or trapping license. That license money,QOes
toward protecting game, and the species and their'habitat.f .It is a
system that works, .and I think that this leghold trap issue is Just the
Ct1p of the iceberg, as stated before.

Should trspping go down? Should trapplng fall? I feel like
'the'next’thing, as was Very plainly stated by some of these groups --
and some ‘of them dodge the questlon-- The real intent of these groups

is to ban all trapplng, huntlng,‘ fishing,. and consumptlve use of

‘ wildlife. Should this ever happen, God save us. I hope it doesn't. o

But should‘this evér happen, we need to ask ourselves, "Where isethe’

'funding'goihg_to,edme from td_preserve_wildlife and ‘to helpiw11dlife

. and its habitat? Who is going to pay for conservation officers, game
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wardens, and - biologists to carry on ‘this -program that we are so
successful - with?"  The carpet is going to be pulled right out  from
under us becausevthe funding will be taken aWay. . If you can hunt,
trap, or fish, you have to buy a license to do so. Where is this money
going to come from to conduct this‘pfbgram? That is one question that
I have. ‘ ' '
o In closing, Mr. Chaitman, there is also one other very good
reason, in my opinion, not to consider passage of'this_bill.before_us
here‘today; To me,'and'to the New Jersey trappers and trappers all
around. the UnLted' States who 1 represent, this bill ”represeﬁts -an
infringement of our freedom bf choice -- our personal ffEedom.'l We
choose to be trappers and we choose to live off the land. This isvou: 
lifestyle of choice. America 18 a - traditional 'country wheréik
traditionally, people'can‘chbose to live the way they want.
I choose to trap, and others within this room choose to carryé‘
~ signs to advocate animal rigﬁts. While I feel that everyone shouldv‘
have the opportunity- in this country: to-enjoy and.eXpress themselves,=1v
also feel that there is a restriction here where we hust enjoy and
EXpress ourselves at the -expense of others. I feel that this is-a
cultural battle, and I think that we should all remember that 200 years
ago, New Jersey and twélve other colonies of His Majesty drove His
Majesty's army‘off of . this Continéntqur»that very reason. They were
tired of having His Majesty's values imposed»on each and eQery»ohe of
us. They were tired of the King's deér, the King'sklahd, etc. They
wanted a country where people were free to choose, and the freedoms
‘that they fought for would include the freedom to hunt, fish and trap,
as well as to_advocafe animal rights. 1 feel that legislation of this
sort is a misuse of the legislative process by a very narrow
special-interest group. o , - :
I certainly hope that this Committee will look.ét Assembly
 Bill 3207 in the same light. Thank you very much. v o
| AUDIENCE: (Applause) | ' o
T SENATOR ZANE: Thank you. Cathy Costello from Noah's Ark?
(not present)  Cynthia Branigan, Fund for Animals? = (not pfésént)l

_RohertjMérkmann,»Society'forfthe Protection. of Animalé?bn
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. :'State UnlverSLty 1 have taken a. number of courses 1n w11d11fef -

- Untarlo, where exten51ve studles have been conducted on. the leghold

v‘%L;must close qu1ck1y.ff Second, the trap 8. grlp muet be sufflclent to
”'iguaranteee that the trapped anxmal wxll not pry ite foot loose. f“-9""

""7ifcan1mals ar

" ROBERT. M AR KM A N N. D'm Robert Markman, ‘and 1 am here to.

represent the Socrety for the Protectlon and Preservatlon of Anlmals.t‘

B The group was. Founded at the Vlrglnla Polytechnlc Inst1tute -and the
,State Unlver81ty 1n 1980.‘ Its purpose ‘is - to educate the publlc .on }f
anlmal problems and to ellmlnate anrmal suffer1ng wherever p0331b1e.

"1 have been a re31dent of Middlesex County for the past,frff“t

twenty three years. T have a Bachelor of Sc1ence degree in An1mal:_?{ﬁf”-’

Sc1ence and ‘a minor- 1n blology from Vlrglnla Polytechnlc Instrtute and

: management v 1nclud1ng w1ld11fe dlseases, pest control management,fﬁf
i'w1ld11fe b1ology and management, “and ecology.ﬁ I also con81der myselftﬁ
'iito be an av1d backpacker and- w1ld11fe photographer.- ‘ , ‘
» Trapplng furbearers has become an 1ncreaslngly controverSLalf,u
jssue in recent years.f Ten states and over 81xty countr1es have* =
7already placed restrlctxons or have outlawed the leghold trap, and many’:h
h-efforts are underway to extend thls prohlbltlon throughout the Un1ted~”"
1States. In ‘New- Jersey, there has been a thlrteen-year battle to ban
this ant1quated dev1ce. ’In many respects, the leghold trap5controversyf
fis- related to na grow1ng publlc awareness of the many Nlld rfe;:
»manaqement practlces. B ,', ' h' L v
R A 31gn1f1cant maJorlty of the Amerlcan pub11c has expressed"“
'-serlous problems w1th the use of the leghold trap.v Sepc1f1cally, 78%
'?of the. publlc d1sagreed w1th the etatement, "l see nothlng wrong wlthf
the use of the leghold trap to capture wlld anlmals.".. S ' __,‘

, " There" are ‘two maJor weaknesses thh ‘the . leghold trap. fthe[f“ﬁl
‘:.potentlal to. mutllate anlmals, and, the trap is non-selectlve.i.,lnfi

»‘trap, problems have occurred when 1t was uaed for trapplng foxes,“p
fv‘coyotes, wolves, raccoons, and Feral dogs.‘-v' L L o
5 0 Twar Factors in. the de51gn of the leghold trap are responslble?flﬁ
‘.tfor the amount of 1nJur1es that occurfq Fxret, the Jaws of the trapf&

F1eld studles conducted by the U. F1sh and Wlldlife'éf;ij

L - 5.‘
i fServ1ce between 1977 andj1980non *




usually close across the paw. ihe paw frequently becomes swollen as a
result of impaired circulation. Cuts commonly occur across the top of
the paw and are inflicted as a result of struggles to escape. The
severity of cuts will vary' as to number, length, width, and depth.
‘Assignment of such into categories based as slight, moderate or severe
is, therefore, difficult. The damage many range from a single, very
small abrasion or a cut 1mm or 2mm in length that does not extend
through the skin, to a single large, deep cut up to 3mm extending
across the entire upper surface of the paw, exposing underlying tendons
and bones, to several smaller linear cuts across the width of the paw.
The results of twenty-one captured coyotes, with an average time left
in the trap of twenty-four hours, are as follows:

Three had no damage or slight cuts.

Sixteen had moderate or severe cuts.

Two had broken bones.

The study had an "acceptable" damage level of 14.3%. Similar
findings have been recorded using other furbearers. ‘

I would also like to recall an incident that appeared in the
Journal of the American Medical Association on March 6, 1978. Or. Johﬁ
Beary treated a four-year-old girl after her right Hand was caught in a
leghold trap that had been set in the woods behind her house. The
incident resulted in crushed fractures and tendon disruption involving
three fingers, and it required reconstructive surgery.

All the evidence is conclusive that the leghold trap causes
mutilations upon its victims.

The non-selective nature is also receiving much criticism.
Since the trap does not discriminate among animals that come in contact
with the paws, any animal is capable of being caught and suffering from
the same injuries previously mentioned. The trapper's call these
unwanted animals ftfash." Some of the "trash" animals include domestic.
pets and livestock, birds, deer, porcupines, squirrels, owls, rare and
endangered species, or a furbearer for which the trapper'has no market.

A Canadian sfudy on the non-selective nature of the leghdld
traps "showed that on two professionally tended traplines, using only
lleghold trapé, 1350 unwanted birds and mammals were caught, while 56{
desired furbearers were taken." Another study in Great Britain showed’

a ratio between unwanted and target species of almost three to one.
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: Another major problem that exists with the leghold trap in
 New -Jersey is the fact that the present trépping laws are vitually

unenforceable. As long as traps can be legally bought and sold,
‘including the eleven counties that have banned the leghold trap, the
- violations within the State will continue.

Recalling an article that appeared in the Sunday Star Ledger
on December 16, 1982 entitled "Illegal Trapping Maims More Animals in
v'JérSey," Captain Hudson Amory of the State Division of Fish, Game, and
Shellfisheries law enforcement section reported his department had .not
found any appreciable -increase in illegal trapping. He also
acknowledged "the division does not have enough agents to enforce the
trapping laws." He went on to .say, "Although trappers must be
licensed, unfortunately anyone c¢an legally purchase a trap."

On March 24, 1983, 1 testified befdre‘the Assembly Commerce

and Industry Committee and reported three violations in. which animals

- were caught in leghold traps in Union County. This information was

obtained by the Union County SPCA, and I would like to recall thesé
. three incidents again today. -

On February 3, 1983 at 8:30 A.M., SPCA officer, Joy Krusék,
picked up an oppossum which waé caught in a Vietor No. one and one-half
.coil spring leghold. The trap was set in the Cranford County Park on
Mohawk Drive.  This park is frequented by a ~Aumber of'children and
people who walk their pets daily. The Fish and Game Departmenﬁ took
.. the oppossum. ’

On February 10, 1983, SPCA office, Joy Krusak picked up a
raccoon caught in a No. 2 double-coil spring leghold off Exit 134.7 of
the Garden State Parkway, the Westfield/Clark/Cranford exit.  The
© raccoon Wwas reported to be in the trap three days. . Gangrene had
already set in on the right arm. \ ‘

On March 3, 1983 at 10:00 A.M., SPCA officers, Linda Costas
and John Weidele, picked up a black and tan male sheppard (medium
_ sized)6 It was caught in a No. one and one-half long-spring leghold at

the Springfield Nursery in Springfield. The dog lost its right front
- .paw in the  trap, ‘and was taken to the Clark Ahimal"Hospital for
treatment . B )
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 Senate Bill 3207 will prevent animals within this State from
being caught within the "jaws of the leghold trap because it
~specifically bans the possession, sale or use of the leghold trap. Iv
strongly urge anyone with a reverence for other life to fully support
5-3207 and ban this antiquated device -- the steel-jaw leghold trap.
Thank you.
SENATOR ZANE: Was the one example you gave in Union County
at a municipal park?
MR. MARKMANN: Yes, Clark Park.
SENATOR ZANE: Do you have any idea why the trap was set
'there?
: MR. MARKMANN: It was an illegal trap.
_ SENATOR ZANE: Do you have any idea why it was. set there
‘ though? ‘
| MR. MARKMANN: No, I don't. There was no nametag on it, as
“‘is required, plus it is also banned in eleven counties. That is why it
s important to have this banned statewide. Then it will be banned in
all stores, and it will prevent anybody from purchasing them.
SENATOR ZANE: Is it banned in Union County?
MR. MARKMANN: Yes, it is.
SENATOR ZANE: So, therefore, someone was really acting
illegally, weren't they?
MR. MARKMANN: Yes.
SENATOR ZANE: So, it is not necessarily the trap. It is the
illegal conduct of somebody, isn't it? | .
MR. MARKMANN: That 1is because these traps are still
available in stores where they have already been banned.
SENATOR ZANE: That is not the question. Somebody acted
illegally, did they not?
MR. MARKMANN: Yes, they did. .
SENATOR ZANE: In the other two areas that ydu cited, is
trapping legal or illegal?
MR: MARKMANN: Both of them are in Union County where it is
supposed to be illegal.
SENATOR ZANE: Someone acted illegally, am I correct?
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~ MR. MARKMANN: But, they wouldn't have been able to ael

'iliegdll§ ;f these Lraps could not be purchased in stores in New
A_Jersey. _ ‘ ' o o .
. ‘SENATOR‘ ZANE: Okay. Do 'yﬁd_ have any questions, Senatar
" Dumont ? , o ' '
| SENATOR DUMONT: * Mr. Markmann, I gather from your testimonv
_that traps can be bought in the counties where they are banned.
MR, MARKMANN: Yes, that is true.

SENATOR DUMONT: As I read the names of the sponsors of this
- leqgislation, aren't they virtually all from the eleven counties in
which traps are now banned? V

MR. MARKMANN: Yes, they are. v

SENATOR DUMONT:  This is an attempt, the?efore, on the part
‘of those representatives of the counties where they are banned to ban
them all over the State.

MR. MARKMANN: It makes sense to<ban them that way. If you‘
canblegally=purchase traps in counties where they have already been
banned-- : : ‘ v
SENATOR DUMONT: Didn't you attempt in the beginﬁ;ng -
before 1973 -- to ban them in the entire State?
| MR. MARKMANN: Yes, that is true.

SENATOR DUMONT: = So, you started by taking eleven COUﬂtleo as
a compromise at that time. Is that- correct? . Class one and two
count ies-- Now, Middlesex, where you say you live, is probably at this
. point, based on the 1980 census, the third largesi county in the State
in population. It is right behind Essex County and Bergen»County. Is
t hat cdrrect? Hudson has degenerated. It has degenerated;ul‘éhquldn't
.put it that way. But;‘ iL has gone down from a first-class to a
;‘:Pcund -class county,band Lhey needed nglSlSthh to retaln some aspects
of first-class stalus.

If you don't énforce the law in the eleven count ies where the
leghold t(aps are now banned, how do yoh.expect that it can be enforced
" in the twenty-one counties -- the other ten included?

MR. MARKMANN: I think to have notffication in those stores
that says that the trap is banned in the whole State will make it

Aharder fur someone to obtain the trap.
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SENATOR DUMUNT ¢ Well, did the orlglnal legislation ban the
sale of traps in the eleven counties? o
R.. MARKMANN: No, they can still ‘be brought ' into ‘those
counties. | ' - - | v
| k 'SENAT0R1DUM0NT: That isn't what 1 asked. Did it ban the
~ sale of traps in storeé in those eleven counties? . .
MR. MARKMANN: I'm nbt aware of that. I don't think it did. -
SENATOR DUMONT:  You don't think it did.  Well, they are
‘still being bought in those eleven counties where they are supposed to
be bahned. Thahk you. o ‘
 SENATOR ZANE : '_Mr. Mafkmann, what is  your position on
. hunting? ' ) : | ,
MR. MARKMANN: I'm against all sport hunting.
‘ SENATOR ZANE: You're. against all spdrt'hunting. What other
kind of hunting is there? o ’
| MR. MARKMANN{ Well, I think a person with,a low income whov
needs a suitable amount of meat in the winter might have‘toldo some
~ subsistent hunting in order to. surv1ve._f_ |
» SENATOR ZANE: So, you're suggesting that that is a poacher;
correct? ‘ : ‘ , v
- "MR. MARKMANN' That wouldn't be a poacher, because you would
hunt during the reqular season and freeze the meat.
" SENATOR ZANE: Well, what if he is hungry when it is not the
reqular season? Wduld you support his hunting?
MR. MARKMANN: Illegally’ No.
 SENATOR ZANE: So, he should starve then, . correct'7 It is the
_same individual -- just a different time of the year.
~ MR. MARKMANN: - I don't know of any 1nd1v1dual who would do..
‘that ‘illegally. ' '
' GENATOR ZANE: I'm sorry? _
MR; MARKMANN ‘I don't know of “any individual who would
would wantonly hunt out of season with the risk of being caught . -
SENATOR ZANE: - So b351cally, your. p051t10n is that if it
comes down to eating, you then would" recognlze the need of a human ’
being to go after meat. Other. than that,- you re opposed to: huntlng and;.'
~you're opposed to trapplng. :
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MR. MARKMANN: All sport hunting, yes, that is true. I'm not
opposed to all trapping -- only the most cruel devices-- For 1nstance,
ihe conibear ~which is set on land, or the leghold trap, as I stated
todayQ—' ‘ ,
- SENATUR ZANE: Why are you in opposition to trapping of any
sort or hunting of any sort, other than for someone who is hungry?
' ~ MR. MARKMANN: I would rather just stick with the present
trapping law. ’ - | | L o |

SENATOR ZANE:  Will you answer the question, or don't you
want to answer it? It is up to you. '

“MR. MARKMANN: I just said that I am opposed to all'sport
hunting. Morally I believe it is wrong to-huht anything for fun or.
recreation. - ‘

| SENATOR ZANE: Okay, are there any other -questions?

SENATOR DUMONT: Suppose somebody of modest means was hungry
and he does some trapping. Would yop then be for the trapping?

MR. MARKMANN: Yes, if he bid-not use a conibear on land or a
leghold trap. ' | | "

SENATUR DUMONT: Thank you.

» ,AUDIENCE:, (Applause)
 SENATOR ZANE: Mr. William Hobokan? o |
WILLIAM -JH 0B OKAN: Senator Zane and Senator Dumont, ﬁy
name is William Hobokan. I represent the New Jefsey State Federation
of Sportsmen's Clubs. We have 50,000 members in the‘ State of New
Jersey, and I wish to thank you for this chance to have input in your
hearing on Assembly Bill 3207. ' »

Before I give you some statistics on trapping in New Jersey,
I would like to point out that this bill is the first étep-by the 
Humane Society of the United Stétés to prohibit trapping, hunting, and
e&entdally fishing. We cén substantiate that by their quqtes. Roger
Caras, a member of the Humane Society, said in reference to trapping,
n séy the Afuri_industry  must die, ‘every shred df it, and;‘jobs be
damned;" " ‘ . ‘ - . » _
| Further “evidence that the'HSUS;and‘-the‘Friendé of Animéls
eyentuallybvwant_«EO' eliminétek all hunting, trapping, -and _fishing  15

their confihuéd protest on the opening day of hgntiﬁg-seasoh.at:the
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Great Swahp and their recent suit filed to prohibit hunting for black
ducks. | ‘

The Humane Sobiety'of the Uﬁited Stafes has also indicated
that théir ultimate goal is "to produce a generation of adults' who
would no longer wish to kill ~any living creature." I take this to
include mosquitos, rats, and poisonous énakes. I would also like to
point out that this means beef, pork, lamb, and poultry would disappear
from your:dinner tables. To further the position, the HSUS has gone so
far as to pass out flyers in some schools, indicating thatlthe children
should tell their fathers not to fish because "worms and. fish have
rights, the same as people." ' o v » |

On the issue of trapping in New Jersey, I would like to point
out that the raw pelts are valued at approximétely four million
dollars. ' This is based on a survey méde of ‘the 1980-1981 Furbharvest.
The value of the finished products has been estimated at twenty million
dollars. You will hear trappers to@éy point out that théy‘supplement
their income by tfapping. You have heard é representative of the union
point butv the number of jobs resulting from trapping. These jobs
include people who proceés the pelts, dye the pelts, and convert the
pelts into finished products. The retail markéting of finished
hroducts also employs many people. Approximately 50% of all persons.
who buy huntlng, trapplng, ‘and- fishing licenses are union members.

The 1980-1981 survey indicated that 31% of all trappérs have
less than $5,000 income from other sources. 47.7% of all trappers have
income less than $10,000 from other sources. - For these two groups,
trapping is a vital supplement to the1r incaome. '

19.4% of all trappers are students working their way through
' collége or high school, and 36.4% of all trappers are blue-collar
 workers. Trapping hés»taken-place in America since the time of . the:

first settlers and should not be banned now. '

| You have also heafd from wildlife biologists who have
discussed the disease problems resulting 'frbm -ovérpopulétion. of
furbearxng animals. ' '

The qumers have explalned the problems they w111 have - if
'trapplng is banned, and the Dlv1510n of Flsh and Game has dlscussed the

problems relatlng to wildlife management.
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Again, I would like to thank you for extending this time to
-me, and I would like to point out that this bill is the first‘steo in a
iong running plan laid out by the HSUS and the Friends of Animals to
eliminate trapping, hunting, "and eventually flshlng.
~ -The New Jersey State Federation of Sportsmen s Clubs opposes
A-3207 and hope  that after have heard all of the testlmony, you will
jalso oppose this blll
There is JUSt one other thing 1 have to relterate. We keep
hearing'that 78% of the people in the United States are opposed to
trapping. As you Just heard a mlnute ago, the facts are that 1n 1977
in Ohio and in 1980 .in Oregon on a referendum, the move to ban to
‘trapping lost by two to one. o
Mr. Chairman, I'll answer any quetions that you might have.
This is the particular flyer that was sent‘home with the children,
‘indicating that HSUS would represent the worms and fish in court, if
necessary. ' : ' ‘ B
- SENATOR ZANE: Would you agree to give us a oopy,‘if you have
an extra copy, of that flyer so that we can make it part of the record?
MR. HOBOKAN: Absolutely. ' ’
SENATOR ZANE: I will ask the ‘recording secretaries to.
include that as an exhibit within the record, please. Do you have any
questlons, Senator Dumont? ‘ _ |
SENATOR DUMONT: I'm happy to see Mr. Hobokan here~beeause‘he,m-
happens to be one of my constituents. ' e
" MR. HOBOKAN: I drove almost as far as you did, Wayne.
SENATOR ZANE: Thank you very much. ) ‘
AUDIENCE: (Applause) |
SENATOR " ZANE: Robert“ Traae, Township Committeeman, from '
Lower AlloWays Creek? _ | ' k
. R OBER T TRAA E: Senator Zane and Senator Dumont, I
‘appreciate you ‘coming down here to hold this hearing. ‘A lot of thlngs
1 was 901ng to say have already been said and documented v
As a member of the Township Committee, I have taken tlme to

- go to some of the trapper s meetings. »I-do know of oc0351onsgwhere a

‘1ot of people in our community:relyjstronglyrupon'the,monies that they
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. receive from trapping. There are cases. on record wh01°‘some of them
don't even wait for the end of the year to collect the money from thelr
ha:vests. They trade them rlght over the counter for food.

‘ I'm strongly opposed to Assembly Blll 3207 because I feel
that it 1nfr1ngea on the right to live, which we all have. It is
confiscatory The part about the doctdr referring to his Ztheory4- |
These same people think we come from munkeys. |

For anyone who reads the Bible, the Lord has given us the
right and domain over the'animalé. Glory to these meetings;"especiallyi
the part--where' soﬁeone who desires a license‘ haé to take speéial
training. I disagree with the non-sclectlveness of these traps because -
they don't waste their time putting them in places where they are
trying‘to harvest. These traps are the result of 111egal trapping --
people who don't know what they are doing.

' ‘ Since I am a member of the Committee, I know for a fact that
there are hundreds of thousands of dollars spent in Salem County to
‘maintain the banks. I have six:acres of meadowland right behind my
house. I have animals -- dogs and cats --. and in the fifteen yeérs
"I've lived there, [.have never sufferéd the -loss of an animal.
‘ However, 1 live on a littie rural country road and the only cars that
travel along thefe are supposed to be: my néighoré' cars, but I have got
dogs that I can show you right now —} qhe with only fhree legs -- one
with plates in his legs. In counting the number I:haVé lost, I don't
heaf anybody making a protest to the‘Division of Motor Vehiciesvto come
down with some violations in-treating animals that way.

1 think that this bill should be. defeated. It is a badr
bill. The people who are involvéd in pushing for it héve no concern
for what 1s going on down here  in South Jersey. It is a way. of llfe,
and I think that these men should be able to contlnue.

Thank you.

vAUDIENCE:_ (Applause) - v : B :

‘ SENATOR ZANE: Arthur Jarman, former member of the State
: Board of Agriculture, and presently with the New Jersey State Grange7
 ARTHUR JARMAN: I want to to thank you, Senator Zane and
| Senétor‘Dumbnt,tfob’the privilege of testifying'this éfternodn. S My

"name is Afthur‘Jarman,’and I represent the New Jérseyfstéte'Grahge,,
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That is an orqanization_of farm folk and non-farm.folk. I'1l not go
. into a lot of statistics. You have heard a lot of different reasons--

I just want, for the record, to indicate that the New Jersey
State'Grangé'is very much opposed to any ban on any form of trapping in
the State of New Jerséy. As I say, I am not going to go into any of
the statistics. They have very well been pointed oot_-- the economic
impact, etc. o | ‘ A
| : Again, 1 want to thank the Committee for coming to Salem
County to have thls hearing. The State Grange just wants‘it on record
vthat they are opposed ‘to any form of any ban on trapping in the State
of New Jersey.

Thank you.

 AUDIENCE: (Applause) v

SENATOR ZANE: Thank you. Janis Barry, Salem County SPCA?
it is getting late in the day, and Senator DumOntihas annengagement'x
back'in North Jersey, so he is going to have to leave shortly =< in
Sussex County, as a matter of fact.. You know where that .is -- way up. .
ff'you could,‘will you limit your remarks as‘much as you can? Thank
you very much. o
JAN IS BAR R Y- Senator Zane and Senator Dumont, the Society
for the Prevention of Cruelty to Animals in ‘Salem County and the Salem
_County Humane Soc1ety oppose the use of the steel-Jaw leghold trap and'
support A 3207 which bans this barbaric device. '

United States Fish and Wlldllfe surveys conducted by Yale
University scientists found that 78% of the American public wants to

see the steel-jaw leghold trep banned. It is already abolished in = =

sixty countries. Are we any less civilized?

Alternative methods are available. In fact, 90% of the

muskrat trappers use the conibear trap,'conSidered to‘giVé‘a faster
~ death. | N |

Some trappers using the leghold trap confess that for every
target animal trapped, two other "trash" anlmals ‘are caught, including
_ dogs and cats. Every year, the animal welfare agents find animals that -
_have been malmed or kllled in leghold traps. ‘A large dog 1n E181nboro

t'Townsh1p was seen every few days dragglng a trap, but “he . was 50'«t E

fr1ghtened that he ‘would not permlt anyone near h1m. The Carneys Po1nt'
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dog warden tried for weeks to rescue a dog in a trap, and he could
not. A husky was found screaming with a trap on its péw in Oldmans
Township. These animalé experience pain as mﬁch as we do, .according to
Dr. - Lawrence Soma, Professor Veterinary Medicine, University of
Pennsylvania, and when we observe an animal caught in a trap, we.
realize this-is all too true. ' B

To protest the unfairness to those of us who support the
bill, some Salem County residents and others felt they should boycott
this hearing,.and they are meeting in Trenton at the same time where a
press conference is being held. However, Senator Zane, Chairman of the
Natural Resources and Agricﬁlture Committee has promised to'kilethis,
‘bill -- which has already passed the Assembly in a 46-27 vote -- by not
releasing it from his Committee for a vote in the Senate. Apparently
" he is admitting that the bill will pass if it is presented on the
Senate floor.

’ Senator Zane seems to feel that trappers in our district are-
his only constituents, whereas trappers in our -entire State amount to
only .06 of one per cent of the total population and half of these are
- from the northern counties. ' '

What has happened to the rest of us whom  Zane also
represents? We are being ignored by this legislator who refuses to
ackndwledge our phone calls and letters. When we elected this man, we
believed he would represent us in. a democratic fashion. Supportérs of
A-3207 are told not to contact Senator Zane's office because of his
determination to kill this bill. - A

This bill has one purpose -- banning  this cruel outdated -
steel-jaw leghold trap. Many of us would like to see New Jersey move
Forward'in_establishing humane legislation. It is time for our elected
officials tb observe the humanistic views of their constituents, and
therefore, wé-urge the passing of A-3207. ’

I thohght it was very interesting when the good doctor from

~ Georgia. was talking about ‘rabies in Maryland, Virginia,bDelaware, and

Pennsylvania. Thesé:areiall‘statés that allow trapping, and‘apparently C

the trapping is not controlling the rabies in these states. - We know7r

that rabies is a cycle epidemic, and it will be in New Jersey sooner or
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later, regardless'of whethervYOu are trapping or not . It is coming to
New Jer sey, and there is no way to keep 1f from coming.

I think it is 1nterest1ng that a lot of counties have done
away w1th the fox bounty, because foxes are now conSLdered a very .good
animal i—— a good .predator. They are very good rodents in insect
control. I think it is also inferesting that the Division of Fish and
Came, who -are considered Lhevmain source of inforhatlon, are paid by
the hunters and Lrappers for their informatiOn. You had better believe
_fhat they are not going to say that hunting and trapping is not good.

‘ Mayor Donalson mentioned about dogs and the vets. Trappers

who find a dog in a trap -- if the dog is maimed -- they are going to

dispatch this animal. They are either qgoing to club it or shoot it or -

whatever is needed. If the anlmal is not 1nJured, they are going to.
release it and let it go. - This is why veterinarians do not get many
trapped animals.. It is because the only ones that would prabably be
turned into a vet would be the ones .found by'an’indiViduai who haybef
was humane-minded and not a trapper. '

The number of professional hunters and trappers in New
Jersey, according to the Department »of Labor last ' year, was 62‘
individuals, s0 maybe you people shouid look.at your income tax returns
and not ‘have us check up on that. , ' v _

You ?nentioned “that you needed an alternative 'mefhod. We
really haven't had to come up with an alternative method of trapping
because we haven't needed it yet. If we need it; then technology will
come upAwith it. ' '

Thank you.

AUDIENCE: (Applause)

SENATOR DUMONT: Are you trying to imply that those of us who
v mignt not be for- this bill do not love animals or do not have any
con31derat10n for them? : ' ‘ -

M5, BARRY, No, I'm implying that maybe you are aware of ther

cruelities that are being performed. You see, at one time I didn't

think that trapping:hunting was cruel either, botvsometimes when’you L

come 1nto contact with some of the cruelltles, then you become aware -of
these cruelxtles. Then you must oppose them. _ v
SENATOR ZANE: What was the percentage of trappers yOU"

. mentioned who'are part oF my const ituency?
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MS. BARRY: Thét were a part of your constituency?
'SENATOR ZANE: Yes. - . |
MS. BARRY: No, these were the trappers Of_phe entire State.
SENATOR ZANE: 1 just want to point out that I always stick
up for the small man. : ‘ | ' '
AUDIENCE: (Applause) ;
MS. BARRY: Maybe‘ you need to - know that there are other
people‘out there. ‘ _ ' o
| SENATOR ZANE: 1'l1 rely upon your statistics to substantiate
that, hecause obviously, there are very.few trappers.in comparison with
the rest. The ihferencevthat I resent -- and, since you have made it
personal, so will I -- is the suggestion that I'm anti-animal or thatfl
am for same inhumane treatment, etc. Let me tell you something. I
recognize trapping as something that has been here for a long time, and
I am tired of people who make up their minds that things that have been
‘traditional and around for a long tﬁme, and are part of the American
way, should be chéngedbbecause of a,few isolated instances; such as we
are talking about in a park thUnion,County where somebody WHo has no
respect for the law placed a trap, and an animal ended up injured. I
haveh'b heard onenperson today cite an example of a trapper who has
misused a trap and caused an animal to be maimed. I haven't heard an
eiample yet. | ' ‘ ‘
: MS. BARRY: We wouldn't hear about that.
AUDIENCE: (Applause)
MS. BARRY: But, I do know that you have voted for-- |
WOMAN FROM AUDIENCE: 1 know of an animal that was caught in
a trap. ' |
o MS. BARRY: Wait, how about if you speak--
SENATOR  ZANE:. If ybﬁ are on the ~list, ma'am, we will
‘eventually get to you. _ . ' ' '
MS. BARRY: I know thatvyou vote for humane legislation, énd
1 thank you for that.  Thank ‘you. s there anything
.else? ‘, - . | | :
_ | SENATOR DUMONT: I have one more thing. You are éware‘of the
fact that when this bill was transferred from é committee -- ‘the
‘commitlee to which it had first been referred -- to this Committee, it

‘was ddné by a vote of the entire Senate. Do you understand that?
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MS. BARRY: I think the vote was 17 to 16,'wash't it?

SENATOR DUMONT:‘ It was 16 to 15, as I recall, but at least
it was a majority of those;present'at that time in voting on it.

MS. BARRY: Yes. |

SENATOR DUMONT: All right. -

‘ MS. BARRY: Why are only two of the Committee members here
instead of all five? | .

'SENATOR DUMONT: I can't answer that because of the fact that
I came 110 miles each way to be here, and I have to leave very shortly.

MS. BARRY: - I appreciate that. | | v '

‘ SENATOR DUMONT: In addition to that, I might tell you that
most of the time when I am in Trenton, or driving elsewhere, I have a
goldén retriever with me whom I love very much. She is one of the few "

dogs that come into the Senate Chamber, as a matter of'faéf. ‘She is
not with me today because it is too long of a trip for her;‘ So, I
would resent any implication that I don't care qufanimals. )

: MS. BARRY: Maybe you just aren't aware of the cruelty of the

leghold trap. That is what I am trying fo say.

SENATOR DUMONT: Maybe I am aware of other--

MS. BARRY: (interrupting)  Many, many trappers are very
humane when it comes to dogs " and cats. They probably take very- good
care of their pets at home, and they. are probably good to their wives

and children. But, they set these leghold traps and, you know-- Okay?
| SENATOR DUMONT: Well, I don't do any trapping or hunting at
éll, but that doesn't mean that I have got to impose whatever my ‘
practices may be on everybody else. | ' '

MS. BARRY: Okay.

~ AUDIENCE:  (Applause) ' .
SENATOR ZANE: Jim Merrillfrdm the South Jersey Fur Trappers -
Association? » ' - o
‘,GENTLEMAN FROM AUDIENCE: May I make one point,'Mr. Zane? -
SENATOR ZANE: Are you Jim Merril? ‘
 >GENTLEMAN FROM AUDIENCE: No. . o }
' "SENATOR.ZANE: Yés, go>aheadg Just idenfify yourself.
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W ARREN (Inaudible)‘ Perhaps all the municipalities and
townshlps should have laws which state that dogs should be chained. I
just wanted to make that point.

| SENATOR ZANE: Thank you very much.

AUDIENCE: - (Applause) |
JIM MERRTI L: Mr. Chairman, Senator Dumont, my name is Jim
Merril. I represent the New Jersey State Federation of Sportmen's
Clubs, which has a membership of 50,000, give or take 1,000. I'am also
a representative of the South Jersey Ffur Takérs “and the New: Jersey
Coastal Fur Takers. v

R have to apologize to you. I have a prepared statement, but
I it left home. Ibwould like to state that I have been a trapper for
forty-two years, and I am on a disability pension; I do sbpplement my
income by trapping. I've been off from work now for eight years, and
this money is very vital to my existence. '

I have been fighting thisi legislation for qu1te awhlle, and -
it'really gets to me when I have to sit and go through all of this just
to do something that is perfectly legal and ethical.

’ I have a trap here that I want to show you, Senator. I want
to show you how the average trapper rigs'it_up with swivels. They keep
the animal from twisting his leg off. (Demonstrates trap) There is a
swivel which goes on a stake, there is a swivel ‘in the middle, and
there is a swivel on the trap. This is the trap that mbst fox trappefs
or .coon trappers use. ,

As I said, I've got a lot of facts and figures which you have
heard over and'over and over. If you have any questions, I wobld be
glad to answer them. ’

SENATOR ZANE: Thank you very much.

"AUDIENCE: (Applause)

.SENATOR ZANE: ‘Assemblyman Martin Herman, represénting
'Gloucestef, Salem, and Cumberland Counties? o | : ,

" ASS E M'B L YMAN M ARTIN A. HERMAN: Thank you,,-
Senator Zane. I thanked Senator Dumont before he left. I think it is
quite remarkable that he did take the time to come all the way down
: here..' It is consistent with his  attitude, and he has always been
w1111ng on a bipartisan basis to judge every issue on 1ts merlts. I
think that is why he has the reputatlon he has throughout thls State.
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I would like to point out a few things, if I may. S I'11 try
not to‘bear,repetition.' I wbuld,jhst like to set thé,record-straight
‘concerning the Committee process. It is interesting how some of the
people who wefe testifying in favor of this particular bill today have
peasonably'short memories about the.prdcess,v’They did raise, I assume,
the fact that the bill was originally in the Assembly Agriculture and
Environment Committee, and they looked to get the_biil out of there.
It was sent to my Judiciary Committee in the Assembly, and they looked
to get fhe_bill out of there. They went shopping for a committee, and
where did it wind up in the Assembly? -- in the.COmmerce, Industry and
Profession Committee, where ﬁhe sponsor's - running mate is . the
Chairman. That is fair. ‘

It is okay to belabor the process that way. In other words,
ydu go shopping for the various committees in order to get the bill
0ut,vbut the fact that the bill got to your Committee where it belongs‘
is unfair. I just point that out fof the purpose of the record.
| I would also like to point out a few other things just to
balance this particular record. I, in one fashion or anothef, have
- been reviewing_this particular legislation, like you, Ray, for onward
of ten years. It is just interesting that every objectivé source, and
I am talking about people from the Department of Environmental
Protection, biologists, research assistants -- people that I had at one
time heard in a committee in Ewhich I was involved regarding thé_
environment some years agb as an Aésembly member -- who testified that
‘this was a safe, reasonable, -and prudent'device. They said that this
 is the way that it ought to be done -- that it was ecologically sound
-~ that it was environmentally sound -- that it provided a propef
balance -- that it was needed for the farmer -- that it was needed to
‘keep the balance of nature in order. These people came in from all
over the country to testify before an Assembly Committee some years
“ago. 1 know that Jim Furlong, who is seated right in the front row,
remembers that testimony very, very well, ‘

There is no doubt that based on the objective testimony of
reseafch_ scientists throughout this country, as 'wéli as ‘New"Jefsey

‘'scientists, that this trap should not be banned.
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I would like to talk about something. that I know you have
spoken about on a number of occasions, and that is, home rule. Most of
these people who oppose the trap and who support the bill that is now

before you come  from cquhties of the first and second class.

Interestingly enough, as we all know, New Jersey has had a local option -

for many, many years. The steel trap is banned in counties of the

first and second class, but isn't it ironic that people will travel B

from all over this State to tell people‘ in Cumberland, Salem,
Gloucester, Atlantic, and other counties what they should doiin their
own county? You could see the furor if you or I or other members of
the South Jersey Delegation were to go up to Bergen County and tell‘i
them how to operate in Bergen County. i |
The point is, there is local option now in New Jerséy, and
that local option has been fairly set. If you don't want it in Bergen,
Middlesex, Hudson, or Eséex, well, that is already the law. But, for
the people who make a livelihood from it, -- the people who want it to
protect dams and farms énd all ofher éouces of income, and to preserve
their land, as they have been doing for well over 200 years in this
particular area -- then I think the law ought to stand as it is. ‘
If we are going to talk about fairness and due process, what
about the pfovision in* this particular bill, Senator, which would in
essence confiscate legal traps? Today I am able to trap, I own my own
‘equipment, and tomorrow, if this bill is signed into law, you make me a
criminal. I have to turn in my steel traps without compensation.
Well, if that is what the first amendment is all about, and that is
what the Constitution is all about, and that is what due,process is all
about, maybe we ought to have another Tea Party, and take ‘it up to’
Bergen County. ‘ '
AUDIENCE: (Applause) - v
ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: (continuing) I would like to think too,
Senator, just to sét the record straight -- 1 know that you have long
been a supporter of the S5.P.C.A. and other animal causes, and that you
have done free work, just as I have, for a number of organizations, and
you have suppbrted a number. of bilfs-which deal with safety of animalé
over the past years;‘including Senator Orechio's recent bills, which I
gdt out of the Assembly .Judiciary Committee and - Which' I' know you
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supported in the Senate. S0, it isn't a question of who is pro-animal
‘and who- isn't pro-animal. The question is, what is fair and what is
right? Ivhave to tell you that these'folké who appeared here today in
support of this bill -- it is interesting that théy are not at a pact )
hearing. like they were in Trénton, whebe‘the trappers of this State -
.didn't get, in my opinion, a fair oprrtunity to be heard. They were
shuffled in and shuffled outbat the hearing. I would like to see some

of these people go out and find out what it is all about. Maybe they

‘ought to come down during trapping season like you and I have done over

the past years to find out what it is all about -- what is being done
‘here in Salem County and other South Jersey counties, rather than doing:
it out of those areas where, in those rare instances, those traps are

fbelng set 1llegally in places where they are now banned.

In closing, Senator,‘I would urge you not to release this -

bill from Committee. I would urge your colleagues to vote likeﬂise not
-to release this bill. What. has sdfficed for two hundred years as a

fair and propér way should suffice for another couple of hundred Years.

I think this bill, if released from Committee, would be a travesty and o

an unfairness to the people of Salem County and all of the trappers of
South Jersey. ‘

I thank you for holding the hearlng today. If you will
~ pardon me, I changed my scheduled around so that I could come here and -

I am going to 'have to leave early. I thank you‘ for holding this :

hearing, and I hope you'will be able to do what we were not able to do
in the Assembly, and that ~is, to stop some of the North Jersey
legislators who have more numbers than we do from running all over us.
If it were left to just numbers, and this bill is let out of Committee,
I think a great harm will come to the trappers of South Jersey. I do.
~urge you not to release the bill from Committee, because it would be
wrong to do_éot' Thank you for‘affordihg me the opportunity -to be_h
"~ heard. » . .
SENATOR ZANE:  Assemblyman Herman, I want you to know that I
really appreciate vyour comments. You and I have served in the
Legislature for. ten years together. I would like to point out to you,
as _my .running mate a full-page ad -- almost a full page ad - tb
residents of Salem, Cumberland, and GloUceéter counties. It is a

~ lengthy ad. It says,
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"Your State Senator Zane palnts your heart black and your

brain dim. The reason for thls"--‘

The ad, incidentally, was paid for by the Friends of Animals
from Neptune, New Jersey. They are critical prlmarlly because ‘we have
'held a publlc hearlng in Salem County. _ '

, You and I very recently were subject to some criticism, were
we not; by sdmeone from Pennsville who said that we don't bring
government  out of Trenton? Do you find a paradox in that? I just say
that rthetorically. That is what we are doing. We are trying to bring
it down here, and if those from Neptune didn't want to make the trip,
‘maybe it . is because they are really 'not affected by it.
maybe it is because they are really not affected by it. '

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Thank you very kindly. I very much
appreciate that. | , v

' SENATOR ZANE: Thank you%very much. = James Fudd, Trapper's
vAssociation? James is not here I guess. Jim DeStephano, New.Jersey
Trapper's Association? ' ) o ' S
JAMES DeSTEPHANDGO : Senator, most of this has already
been covered. How about if I jusf submit my written statement?

SENATOR ZANE: That is fine. 'What is your: position on
A-32077 ' -

MR. DeSTEPHANO: We're opposed to it totally. I also have a
vposition.here'from Fred Space from Sussex County. He is opposed to it.
I haveva paper from Robert Wystock of the UniverSity of Penhsylvania.
He has done a study which may help your Committee.

SENATOR ZANE: Okay, will you submit that to the secretary?.
Thank you very much.

AUDIENCE: (Applause)

- SENATOR ZANE- Is Dr. Lawrenee Somar from the University of
Pennsylvania present? l . S ,
 SOMEONE FROM AUDIENCE: Sir, he wasn't able to come. Hejhae
'glven me written testimony to submit for him. o
SENATOR ZANE: You said you submitted it?
MR. De STEPHANO: Yes. -
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, » SENATOR ZANE'F Is Holly Favorito here from the Student Action
Corporatlon for Anlmals? ‘(npt' present) Is Mary Knopke from the
American Humane Soc1ety here? (not preeent) Is josephine Peters from :
the Cumberland County SPCA here? (not present) Is Floyd Kucharsky from
‘Friends of Animais here? (not present) =~ Is Bill Reitter from Friends
of Animals here? (not present) Is Steven Zamuck from Friends of
Anlmals here? (not present) I would, imagine that they are iniTrenton
for that one o'clock meeting. Is Joyce Brothers nere7 That has got ‘to
be—— Is there really a Joyce Brothers here? (not present)
SOMEUNE FROM AUDIENCE: That is "the" Dr. Joyce Brothers.
SENATOR ZANE: It is? Is it really Dr. Joyce Brothers’ Is
there a John Kirch from Friends of Animals here? (not.present) Is
Gilda Hoffman from Friends of Animals'here?; (not present) How about
George D'Andridi from Friends of Animals? (not present) Ruth Fischer
from Friends of Animals? (not present) Is Hope Buyukmihci here from
Unexpected Wildlife Refuge here? » ‘ _
HOPE BUYUKMIHCI: Senator Zane, ladies and gentlemen, my
husband and I have a wildlife refuge in Atlantic County. We got this
refuge twenty-two years ago, and we were told by trappers and‘others
. that if we didn't trap and hunt, we would be overrun with animals. We

have been there twenty-two years; we have muskrats, and we have a
forty-acre pond with a thousand-foot dike.  The muskrats have not

multiplied. We don't allow any trapping at all, and they have not
destroyed the dike in twenty-two years. ' ‘

I think our problem is that we talk about what mlght be if we
" don't trap. We have always trapped. How do we know what might be? We
had this little experiment for twenty-tWo years on threefhundred acres
of New Jersey land.. We are not overrun with anlmals, and we haveha
-wonderful opportunity to study these animals. ‘ _

"1 have fed a muskrat by hand several times, and the poor
"animal is so scared that she reminded me of myself when-I-was,afraid to:
do semething. ' She would come near my hand, and'then‘she’would retreat
and cry as if to say, "Oh, I don't dare do it." - |

Anyway, I have spent countless hours in. the woods, and I have
,wrltten ‘books’ and artlcles about these anlmals. They are wonderful to

'd »study, and 1f we. would stop trapplng and exp101t1ng them, we could openJ-
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up- a whole new world for our chlldren and ourselves. I wish you would
try it. Thank you. ' ‘

AUDIENCE: (Applause)

SENATOR ZANE: Is there a Bob Itchmoney from the Division of -
Fish, Game, and Wildlife here?

"ROBERT ITCHMONEY: My name is Robert Itchmoney, and I
am here to represent the New Jersey Division of Fish, Game and Wlldllfe
on behalf of Director Russell A. Cooklngham. Mr. Cookingham w1shes to
convey his apologies at not being able to testify himself; howevér, he
is‘currently attending an‘Intérhational Fish and Game Commissioners'
meetihg in Wisconsin. | | | v

The Division of Fish, Game and Wildlife feels that Assembly
Bill 3207, which would prohibit the use, manufacture, sale, possession .
or transportation of any steel-jawed leghola trap and provide for -the
confiscation of these devices, ignores fhe serious adverse .impacts
upon agriculture, the environment, public health" andv New Jersey'sv
economy that would result if this bill is passed as written.

Current concerns over the epidemic of raccoon rabies "in
neighboring states of Pennsylvania, Maryland and Vifginia has prompted
health advisories by State and Federal human and animal health
authorities. 'Leghold trapé are involved in the harvest >of 40,000
raccoons from New Jersey each year. The leghold trap may nof prevent
rabies from spreading into New Jersey, but it may decrease the
frequency or intensity if disease outbreaks.

| Many New Jersey farmers rely on trappers to control
furbearing animals which can and do wreak havoc with the lands and
crops (sweet corn, etc.). The leghold trap is instrumental to the
trappers when carrying out thié service. This service is provided at
no cost to the farmer, and it also prov1des -a livelihood for a sizeable
‘number . of people who constltute the wild fur industry in New Jersey.
If leghold traps were banned, farmers would have to turn to less humane.
and ecologically sound means of control, such as poisoning.

Enactment of this bill would v1rtually eliminate trapplng of_v
some spe01es of furbearers (fox and raccons) in New Jersey and would -
cause a loss of 30% (one million dollars) of the $3 1 million dBFlVEdkv

annually from New Jersey raw furs. Th;s would be a terrible econom;c
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hardship on the State's licensed trappers, half of whom earn less than
$15,000 annually From_ jobs not related to trapping.  Also, a .

‘substantial number of the trappers are living on fixed incomes and '
depend upon seaeonel trapping to'supplement their incomes. Wildlife in
New Jersey represents a renewable resource which, .if properly managed,

can provide 1mportant benefits to our c1t12ens.

, Furs from New Jersey are raw materlals Wthh are used “to
generate more than $10 million a year 1n fur garments. Restrlctlng
this source of materials will have a yéjy sefiouebeffeet on the fur
garment industry, which in our State, brdduces'PEEeil'sales of more
than $24 mllllon a year. _

Existing New -Jersey statutes now prevent the use of the
leghold traps in eleven of its twenty-one counties. Unfortunately,
most nontrappers do not understand what a "legal" leghold (foothold)
trap is. It is not the crushing device as sometimes proclaimed, but an
efficient implement for gresping and holding en_animallelfoot. Ohly
rarely is the animal ser1ously injured. ' ,.

We share the concerns of those who seek to . conserve. the
wildlife resources of our State. We also -recognize our
responsibilities to maintain healthy populations.,of our furbearing
animals while, at the same time, reducing related crop damage and-
public health risks 'whieh would arise from the elimination of an
effective wildlife management program. '

‘Assembly Bill 3207 does not address the health, economie and

technical issues that are the responsibilities of the Division of Fish, v
Game and Wildlife. Thank you.
, - Senator, if I may, we put together this-- There seems to be
big questions about what is legal and what is illegal. (Mr. Itchmdney"
proceeds to show how the variations of leghold traps affect animals in
different counties. ) _ o :
. SENATOR ZANE: Is Bergen one df’them? N _ -

MR. - ITCHMUNEY. . Yes. (Mr, Itchmoney continues -with
demonstrat1on) _ o -" .

SENATOR ZANE: The position of Fish and Game is in oppos1t10n
to the blll, is that correct? ' S v
“MR. ITCHMONEY: The D1v1s1on has great concerns that thlS,L

b111 is 1gn0r1ng many aspects.




| SENATUR IZANE: Is the position in opposition to the bill or
afe you supporting it? _
- MR. ITCHMONEY: I've been instructed to limit my testimony to
only the technical matters of this biii,ff ' : '
SENATOR'ZANE: I'm a Senator in the State of New Jersey, - and
‘I am going to vote. Fish and Game happené to be one of the agencies
within the State. | | - o
MR. ITCHMONEY: We support the use of the leghold trap. »
SENATOR ZANE: Okay, so you are not supportive of the bill

"~ that would ban it. Is that correct?

MR. ITCHMONEY: We support the use of leghold traps.

- SENATOR ZANE: You're not opposed to a bill that would ban
it? You're not 'supportivé of a bill that would ban it? Is that
correct? ' ‘

MR. ITCHMONEY: . We feel that there are concerns that are
raised by this bill. o
A | SENATOR ZANE: Okay. Is there an H. S. Clark hére from
Salem? (nof present) Is Ted Conklin, a trapper from Union County,
here? _ S '
TED CONKLIN: Thank you, Senator Zane. I am a trépper'from
Union. As vyou' know, traps in Union County are illegal -- leghold
traps. My wife and I trap in a first and second-class county, and we -
use box traps for. raccoons and 110 conibears for muskrats. I want to
show you what a 110 conibeaf'is. This is it right here (demonstrates
trap to audience). It doesn't catch muskrats very well, and I wish I
had my legholds back. I could have made at least a thousand dollars
this year, but anyway-- ' '

Because of the ban on the leghold traps, we hardly have anyf
: Foxlieft because of a disease called mange. The main diet of the fox :
is mice.v Now that the fox is gone, there is a skunk expldsion._-There
are skunks eQerywhére. Skunks love to eat mice. Théy are pests, they .
stink, and they tear up the garbage cans for food. They are great
rabies carriefs, and are not apbreciated by many peaple.

We have also got an overpopulation of muskrats. Folks who

live near rivers in Union and Essex counties can't even grow a garden

‘_ " because the leghold has been banned. It has also made corn farmers =

'sell out becaUse they aré'banned.i-Raccdons loVe corn‘tbo.
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- This proposed ban, I feel, is anti-farmer. Farmers are the
backbone of this country, and without them, we would have no food.

_ Assemblymen Mazur and Karcher who are strong Sueporters of
-this bill héppen to be vegetarians, but what they don't understand is
that ifetheSe pests continue, they won't have any vegetables left to
eat. Mazur and Karcher think that animals should have rights. If

anlmals do have rights, that means that that chlcken you ate yesterday
can take you to court and sue you. | '

If furbearers had no fur on them, would theyv have to be
trapped? Yes, they would, beeause they ﬁoUld be ovefpopulated anyway.,'
| I would like to close by calling my wife or anybody elee who
would like to stick his hand in a number one and one-half long—epring,
or a number qne; which is commonly used in the.COUhties where they are
still legal-- Debbie, will you come up and stick your hand in this,
please? ; ' '

As you can see, this is a number one and one-half
long-spring. It.can catch fox, raccoon, and it can hold a coyote. We
do not use these on muskrats. ' You can, but we like to use a humber
one. Of”course,'muskrats dbewn fast -- within three minutes.

Just stick your hand in there and tell me how it feels.

(Mrs. Conklin puts her hand in trap) ‘

MRS. CONKLIN: It doesn't hurt at all. .

MR. CONKLIN: That is a number one and one-half. Most =
trappers don't even use a number one and one-half for muskrats. 'They~
use these number ones. You see, Senator Zane, here is a number one.
This is the trap I prefer, but ‘unfortunately, I can't use them any.
longer, and I regret that.

' I thank you very much for holding this meetlng.

AUDIENCE: (Applause) L v

SENATOR: ZANE: Is there a Hope Ryden from Frlends of Anlmals '
here?  (not present) Is Ernest Graf here? (not present) Is Dr.
George Whitney:here? (not pfeSeht) Is Jesse Wllllams here7
JESSE W I‘L‘L I1AMS: Fifst of all, I,would‘l;ke‘to thank you,v

Senator, for letting me speak: here today. o R
. SENATOR ZANE : Where are you from, Mr. W1111ams7 .

MR.IWiLLIAMS:' My name is Jesse Wllllams. I am a resident of

1LoWer,AlloWay Creék;Townshlp,_Canton, New Jersey.‘v‘ o
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- I am here to ask you not to vote for Assembly Bill 3207. I
feel I can speak for twenty years as a deputy conservation officer and
thirty-nine years as a trapper in Salem County.

We needvand.must have the leghold trap. This type of trap is
“the only kind of trap we can use in Pond Marsh to frap muskrats. It is
the only safe trap to use in fox and coon trapping. Without this
time-tested tool, the agriculture and w11d11fe habltat would decline.

My nelghbors 11ves and my life would be in danger if the
tide water banks were to break and flood because the muskrats had
tunneled holes in the banks holding the tide back. '

Trappers need the leghold traps to keep the rats in check.
On the upland, we must have the leghold traps to keep the predators in
a population we can all live with. | .

- 1 have heard:complaints about dogs_ahdacats caught in leghold

~traps. I own nine hunting dogs and one cat. ‘If dogs and cats were
. kept in check by their owners according to the State laws, I see no
danger to our pets. | ‘ '

The people of Salem County are blessed with a reproducing
resource. A lot of people wquld not have food on the table or money to
‘pay taxes and bills if all traps were eliminated, especially the
leghold tfaps. Even those children who went on to college have
benefitted from trapping. My father payed the doctor twenty-five
mpskrat pelts when I was born, and when I was injured in an accident
and could not work for nine months until the doctor released me, I
trapped and raised four kids, all of school age. Without trapping and
‘the leghold traps, a lot of people would end up on welfare instead of
working for a living.like they would like to. ' '

I feel people that would deprive hard-working persons ‘are the
‘same kind of people who would shoot down a Korean a1r11ner full of
helpless people. Thank you.

AUDIENCE: (Applause)

, SENATOR ZANE: Edward Camlin, trapper?

EDWARD CAMLI N:. Good afternoon. ‘My name is Ed Camlin. I
am a trapper from Gloucester County. I have been trapping Since'I'was
fourteen, and in my experlences I have never, honestly, caught any cats

or dogs._' 
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During my’ high school and college edecation, trapping was a
QUpplementary source of income. In 1976 when - my father passed away,
the money 1 made from trapping made it a little easier for the rest of
‘my family. v ' '
‘ After graduating' from college; I proceeded to work at T.
Zander & Sons, Inc., where I am still employed on‘a full-time basis as

a furrier. Being employed year round, my family and I rely solely upon

‘fthe fur industry,’ not just as a second income, but 100m.

In ‘conclusion, if this bill is passed, 1t not only means a
i p0331b111ty of loss of employment but also income. Thank ypdt )
AUDIENCE: (Applause) , ' o

SENATOR ZANE: Edgar Dawson, trapper? (not'bfesent) Howard
Henderson, trapper? i ‘ '
REGGIE HENDERSON: Mr. Chairman; ladies end gentlemen,
first of all, mv name is Reggie Henderson. I am thirty-five years old,
married,» and have three children. I live in Lower Alloways Creek
Township. I have been trapping since I was ten years old. I have
heard some‘things here today, but there is one'thing I want to make
clear.  Some of our "anti's" were talking being. opposed to sport
hunting and the fact that they would go along with sport hunting unless
it was deemed that the person needed meat for his table. Well, We'heve
been talking about trapping - mostly furs. I don't think- we“have‘
pointed out today that there is also a latge»meat’industry involved.
What it does is, it allows the local people an alternative to beef,
chicken, or whatever else. It is at a very reasonable price, and it is
readily available, so I think this is something‘ that 'needs to be .
pointed out -- that this meat is available to the middle and. low-lncome
fem111es - I might also p01nt out that it is quite tasty.

' Almost everything I was going to talk about todaybhas already
been'covefed, 50 - I am gding:to be brief. In 1975, I was out of work,
and if. it weren t for trapping, I wouldn't have had Food for my table
~and I wouldn't have been able to pay my bills. I can hcnestlyvsayvthat
1 ‘have never caught a cat or a dog in twenty-five years of'tfepping.
| We ‘have heard a lot about the Pond Meadows, the leghold trap,

'fand the - muskrats, but we also need to point -out that these same -Pond f

"'Meadows are used by the farmers for 1rrlgat10n. ,They are also breedlnglf-iv"
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grounds for numerous species of animéls, fish, and wildlife. You have
also heard a lot about the banks being eroded and dug 1nt0 by . the
muskrats, so I won't go into that.

To be even more spe01flc, let's talk about the inhumane part.
I am presently working on a three and one-half mile road widening job
that runs through the atomic plant. This road runs directly across the .
wetlands. During the past month, I have kept a record of the animals
that were completely flattened by cars and trucks. This includes three
cats, ‘seven possums, four raccoons, and two muskrats. That is a total
of 31xteen. For every one I find dead, I speculate that at least two
more are fatally injured‘and crawl into the weeds and die a slow death,
so that is approximately fofty-eight in one month along a three and
one-half mile stretch. » ‘

Now, would we consider outlawing motor vehicles? I believe I
made my point. Thank you. Are there any questions?

AUDIENCE: (Applause)

SENATOR ZANE: Is Leonard Soucy from Friends of Animals
present? (not present) Harry and Lisa Beal, trappers? You must be
Lisa._b _ :
LISA BEAL: I an Lisa Beal, and I am the daughter of a
trapper. I have lived in Lower AllowaYs Creek all of my life.

My father has been a trappér,since he was six years old, and |
it 'is his way of life. He farms during the summer, but our winter
‘livelihood depends totaily upon his trapping. 1 have been brought up
to believe that hunting laws safequard animals from excessiQe killing.
These laws set the time of yeér that hunting is permitted, and the
kindslof game that can bé caught .

I believe that hunting laws have helped preséve animals and
that is what I call the "law of conservation." ' ”

The trapping of furbearing animals has‘been'and will continue
to be an important business all over our country.

In 1670; the HUdson'Bay Companyfwas formed. and continues to
this day as a thriving organiiatioh. Trappers and fur traders were the
first to explore much of this county.. Trapbing was a necessity  for

“their survival, and it is just as important. for our trappers today.
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Much of the criticism direoted' at trappers today is from
misqguided individuals who are all too willing to accept second-hand
information as the truth. I am extending an invitation to anyone who
wants to come to Lower Alloways ‘Creek or anywhere in South Jersey to
see how we trap. Please come, you're 1nv1ted.. Thank you.
| AUDIENCE: (Applause) -

SENATOR ZANE: Paul Wermuth, Trapper's Association?

PAUL H-E‘R MUT H: Thank you,‘Senator Zahe, for having me -
here. Most of the information I have for presentation has already been
'glven, so I w111 be very brief. I have a letter from an individual who
lost a garden in its entirelty. He was deoendant upon it for the -
Winter. I have my own personal statement, which has pretty‘much.heeh,
covered, and I have a letter from a man who ruhs a private estate in
Bernardsville who had many problems. '

SENATOR ZANE: Where are you from, Mr. Wermuth?

MR. WERMUTH: Bernardsville, New Jersey.

"SENATOR ZANE: Which is in what county? _

MR. WERMUTH: -That is Somerset County. I also have a letter
from a gentleman who had ground hog prohlems and lost all of his

annuals. We tried to work with box traps with the ground hog for seven A

~or eight days, but we never did catch him. We couldn't shoot: him _:-1

. because of the ocation of other buildings in the area. - Eventually we
ended up just fllllng the hole to. discourage the animal. It tOOR him
about ten days to leave. ' ’
, I also have a Ietter from a psychlatrlst, Dr. Neil Lobarb.
He is a professor of psychology at Kean State College. Basically, he
' says that bills-that;are against huntihg,’fishing and trapping are a
waste of governmehtbtime ' ‘ _ _ | ‘

There are a few thlngs that I have been asked to say in order
to help you understand why the Division of Fish ‘and Game could not make
a statement as to belng pro .or con on Bill A—3207.M They are under
Governor s orders. S ‘ ‘

- SENATOR ZANE' Where did you get that informatio? Sir; you
made a statement. Where did you get that information? A ‘h

fMR.'WERMUTH: 1 got it from énsindividoalrintthe,Division of -

Fish and Game. I don't know the person's name.
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SENATOR ZANE: Was it the fellow who testified? That is a
yes or a no. ' v |

MR. WERMUTH: Do I have to say? , | _

SENATOR ZANE: Well, you don't have to tell me. I'm not
going to put you in jail.

MR. WERMUTH: I would prefer not to tell you, but it d1d come
from the Division of Fish and Game. o

~ SENATOR ZANE: And, he indicated to you what?

MR. WERMUTH: That Fish and Game is under the orders of
Governor’Kean_not‘to speak out as to.whether they are against or for
the bill, but rather that they are fof the use of the leghold trép.'
I'm not in politics.

SENATOR ZANE: He's not even running for office.

“MR. WERMUTH: As we have heard, there are questions of human
rights versus animals rights. I have done a tremendous amount of
depredation control on animals. So@e of it has been humerous; some of
it has been sad; some of it has been certainly educational. People
have called me about a big ground hog or a big rat getting into their
garbage, and I Fihd_out that I am dealing with a possum. People have a
problem with animal identification. They are suburbanites, and when
they have problems with animals, they don't always identify the animal
correctly. Therefore, many problems in trapping are obviously -
incorrectly identified. , v | o ‘

SENATOR ZANE: What is your pbsition on the bill? Are you in
‘opposition to the bill? | '

MR. WERMUTH: We are in opposition to the bill. People have
‘problems with gardens, they have problems -with property. An
interesting one I had was a man who had a family of raccoons living in
his attic. Well, he was going to handle it himself. He shot two
raccoons of f the rafters of his house, went for the third one on the
side of his house, and quit there when he found out ‘that he was blowing
- holes through his house and his neighbor's house. He called me, and I
‘came over immedidately. It was a matter of jﬁst using a-snare; and we
managed to remove the animals. I. used various means to discburage the
animals from coming back. These devices and means that ‘were used came

from years of’ experlence 1n the field of trapplng.
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I don't know if the gentleman from the Humane Society is
still here, but he referred to the stress that animals are put under
when caught in a leghold trap. Itvis interesting to note that the
Humane Sdciety also makes it a fact that animals are under the same
stress in box fraps or any other trap that detains an .animal alive.
Trappers are also aware of this, and they do everything possible that
they can to treat the animal with as much humanism as possible and to
prevent as much stress as possible. | |

' We have talked about vothér countries that have banned
trapping. Many European countries have a' completely decimated"
wildlife. In England, trapping consisted mostly of rabbits and hares.
Some trapping was done in fox, but fox hunting is such a strong lobby
in England that they eventually cancelled the use of the leghold trap,
but not until a 'substitute for the leghold trap was found to be useful
and was instituted. o

There have been questions%regarding the foothold snare that;
was developed in Canada. Again, it holds the animal alive, stress is
involved, and the use out of now has been highly questioned by 'many
people. There are trappers in Canada who have thought highly of it.
There have been some cases spoken about where this Was tried here in
the United States. It was tried in the Southwest by professional
trappers; and the snare was simply torn apart by coyotes and made :
absolutely useless.

Regardlng the person who talks’ about having caught a dog, I
at one time owned a Welsh terrier. She weighed seventeen pounds, full

"of power, full of dynamite -- a spunky little dog, as weil as a very

good house pet. We deeply admired her, and we suffered a loss when she

was gone. During the years that I hunted her, day»and night -- dayfime'
for birds and nighttime for coon and possum -- she had gotten caughf in
éraps at'vafious times. At no time did she ever suffer any damage.
Her size is equivalentvto a raccaoon, a fbx, and'many of‘bur'furbearers
~in New Jersey, yet she ‘had never suffered any damaged from any traps.
I thank you.for your tlme. - '
- SENATOR ZANE: Thank you: very much.
~ AUDIENCE: (Applause) - - | | |
SENATOR ZANE: Donald Hoyt, Sr., President of the Natlonal

Trapper s Assoc1at10n, from Marshall Mlchlgan, please7
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DONALD HOYT, S.R.:  Thank you,‘Mr; Chairman. I'll keep my
remarks brief in hopes that you might remember them.

An animal rights movement in this country is gaining steam.
We have people right in this room who-tﬁink that there.are muskrats
that have a right not to be trapped. - There are many animal welfare
cults that now want animals to bhave rights just like peoplé. If
animals are going to have rights like péople, there are a couple of
things I want to know. ' '

Does a coon have more rights than a rat and why? Does have a
rat have more rights than a cockroach, and again, I want to know why?

The hand or foot of a person ‘can not be honestly compared to
the paw of an animal. If you went barefoot for just one subfreezing
night, your feet would be frozen. They would have to be amputated.
Yet, animalsvgo’barefoot all winter long with no ill effects.  Nature
made the paws of animals tough to withstand frozen ground, snow,- ice,
'sharp rocks, briars, and foothold tfaps. You will notice that I don't
say leghold trap. That is a misnomer. Traps catch an animal by the
paw, not by the leg. That is how I know when 1 see a picture of an
animal with a leg injury way up high -- that he didn't get the injury
in a trap as is often claimed. Traps just can't reach that High.

The old respected Amerlcan Humane Society -- not to be
confused with a large animal welfare cult using a similar name --
posted a $1U,000 réward more'thanvtwenty years ago for the invention of
a workable, practical trap more humane than the foothold traps. vTOday,
aftef more than twenty years, that reward remains uncollected.

In 1975, two days of hearings in regard to the foothold trap
were held in Washington, D.C. Three hundred forty-seven pages of
testimony were taken. After Mary Tyler Moore and similar wildlife
éxperks had testified, and after the learned wildlife biologists - from
. the Fish and Game Department had their say, the bottom line was, and
still is, that there is no workable alternative to the foothold trap.

' We are all ignorant on some subjects. Certainly it would be
ridiculous .for a person who doesn't know the difference between a
sacrifice bunt and a home run to testify before a Senate committee on

:the subject of baseball. Yet here today to testify on the subject of

trapping are representatives of various animal welfare cults -- peqple
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who literally do not know.the‘difference‘betwéen a mink and an otter,
or the difference between a conibear ﬁrap and a snare. They expect to
jcompare the tfapping of an animal to shutting youb:hand in a car door.
That is like comparing stepping off the curb in front of your house to
» falling off a cliff. ' ' '

There is nothing in the background of these people which
would suggest that they are qualified to dispute professional wildlife
‘managers from the New Jersey Division of Fish, Game and Wildlife. They
are not qualified by either education or experience to contradict
trappers with years of actual trap-line experience. —

Humane societies and ‘the like often do a very good job
dealing with problems related to domestici animals. This is a subject
that they are familiar with. But, they are in no way qualified to -
- advise on the subject of trapping and wildlife management. The experts
in this area are the Fish and Game Division persohnel‘and the trappers.
themselves. Believe them. They kndw.what they are talking about.
 Thank you. |

SENATOR ZANE: Thank you.

AUDIENCE: (Applause)

‘ SENATOR ZANE: Linda Catalano, National. & State ‘Wildlife
Societies? (not present) Richard Lee, Board of Agr1culture7
RICHARD L E E: Thank you, Senator, for allowing us to
testify. My namew}s_Richard‘Lee, and I am the'President of-the'Mercer
County Board of AQricUlture. At our meeting Monday night, I was asked
to testify againsf the anti-trapping bill, A-3207. The Mercer County
Board of. Agficulture_'feels that any anti-trapping legislation is
contrary te farm legislafion which states that an owner or an operator -
. of a commercial farm has the right to control pests and pfedators.
There are predators such as fox that can only be caught by leghold
traps. | . ,

‘Farming is a very difficult businéss this day, and if it is
to continue to exist in New Jersey, it needs all the tools available to
control problems that can- be} controlled. Animals predatobs are
extremely serious to livestock production. '

We urge a "no" vote against any antl-trapplng leglslatlon.»
Thank you for permitting me to testlfy.‘

SENATOR ZANE: - Thank you.
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AUDIENCE: (Applause)

’ SENATOR ZANE: Is Peter Plage from the State Wildlife Society
present? Mr. Plage, as I did with the other speakeré, I would like to
ask you to be brief. ’ o '

PETER PLAGE: Okay. My name is Peter Plage, and I am a
member of the Executive Council of the New Jersey . Chapter of the
Wildlife Society. I am here today representing the New Jersey Chapter
and the national parent organization.

: I have a fairly brief statement. - The Wildlife Society is an.
international nonprofit organization cohprised of professionals serving
the resource\‘management fields, especially wildlife ecology andk
management. Our Society has over 8,000 members residing in 0ver.forty
countries. The objectives of éhe Society are: :to develop and promote
sound stewarship of w11d11fe resources and the env1ronments upon which
wildlife and humans depend; to' undertake an active role in preventlng
human-induced environmental degradatlon, to increase awareness and
appreciation of wildlife valueé; and, to seek the highest standards in
all activities of the wildlife proFe381on.

The Wildlife Society is dedlcated to the wise management and
conservation of wildlife. Within this framework, we support thevmost-
efficient ~and appropriate techniques available to accomplish specific
management goals.‘ Trapping with steel traps has been used for
centuries to harvest wildlife and to reduce animal damage. Today
trapping remains an effective, economical, and ecologically sound
- method of harvesting or controlling certain specieé of wildlife.

We recognize .the need for trappingiregulations to accomplish
specified management objectives, to assure that humane techniques are
used, and to protect non-target species. 4

The policy of the Wildlife Society -- and this is the parent
Society -- in regard to trapping is to recognize that trapping can be
used effectively to take certain animals without impairing the
well-being of that species, to recognize that trapping has been
and currently is a successful technique for capturing animals 'for '
specific purposes, to encourage resource agencies to ensure that

trapping is permitted in concert with sound stewardship -of wildlife, toi
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recognize that the steel leghold trap represents an effective practical
means for capturing certain species of wildlife, and simultaneously, to
lessen the impact on non-target species; We encourage the development
of improved traps, better trapping techniques, and effective'altérnate
methods of taking animals. - Lastly, we promote and encoufage
develohment of new approaches for improving decisions. affecting ‘the.
biological and social impacts of trapping. ,

In conclusion, I would like to say that the Wlldllfe Society
generally believes that the trained wildlife biologists should have a
principal say in what regulatlons and leglslatlon are instituted. of
course, in New Jersey, that would be the Division of Fish, Game and
Wildlife and their biologists. '

AUDIENCE: (Applause) ' ,

SENATOR . ZANE: Isf George D'Anderade from the Hound
Association here? (not present) Is John Schlump from the South Jersey
Hound Howners Association heré?% |

Sir, what is vyour naﬁe? Would you like to testify? Rather
than to comment, do you want toitestify,-sir? Sit down. 1I'll call you
next. There are a lot of other;people-- '
CHARLES G. SANTO R A:  No, I don't think that is fair.

SENATOR ZANE:  Sir, there are a lot of other people who are
here and on the list. If you would like to'testify, I'11 make certain
that you testify next. . ,

MR. SANTORA: No, I don't think that is fair. I'm concerned
w1th the fact that you won't even let this out of Commlttee.

SENATOR ZANE:- Would you like to testify, or would you just
like to walk out? »

'MR. SANTORA: - (inaudible) o -
. SENATOR ZANE: Fine then. Please do not indicate that this
Committee was unfair to you then. »

MR. SANTORA: I will. 1T will indicate that. o

SENATOR ZANE: Well, fine, you're OBViously ricidulous if you-
do because you are next to testify. R '

' MR. SANTORA: That is your opinion.

(Mr. Santora leaves room.)

SENATOR ZANE: I don't know how I can be more accommodating
' than that. There are Stili twenty more people to speak.
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Mr. Schlump? :
JOHN SCHLUMP: Thank you, Mr. Senator. . My name is John
Schlump, and I represent the Hound Owners of South Jersey, which
consists of fox hound, rabbit hound, cdon hound; and hunting dog
enthusiasts. o o ‘ .
We are very much opposed to the leghold tfap, and we want
legislationrfo ban the leghold trap in the State'of'New Jersey. |
Before I start, I have watched people put their hands in
these traps, and I am challenging any person in this room to come up
here. My finger is about the size of a coon leg or a fox leg. I'm
challenging anyone to come here and stick his finger in this trap and
leave it there for twelve hours without suffering any ill effects.
Would anyone like to do so? (no response) N
I have hunted and trapped for the last twenty-five years.
When I hunted as a boy, I never found leghold traps set in the woods.
-Traps were set in streams, ponds, meadows and marshes. Muskrats were
then $.50 to $.75. Foxes had a $3.00 bounty on them, and coon and fox
hides were almost worthless. Then in the last ten to fifteen years,
furs took a jump in price. Muskrats went up to $8.00 to $10.00, coon
went up to $40.00 to $50.00, and fox went as high as $75.00 to $80.00.
- At that time, everybody and his brother started trapping for the dollar
bill, not for the sport. Almost everywhere I had hunted fbxes in
Gloucester County where I had lived for twenty-seven years, and Salem
County where I had hunted for twenty years, my dogs were now getting -
caught in traps. ‘ ‘
Fed up with this and the decrease of available hunting ground
due to the build up of the housing industry, I moved to Cape May County
five years ago where there were more woods. I soon found that the
trapping problem was the same there. I had my dogs caught, crippled,
and even killed due to traps set by trappers. This turnéd me agéinst
the leghold traps. ‘ ' | h
| Leghold traps are not the only means to catch furbearing
animals. Muskrats are caught effectively with the 110 conibear, which
is this one. (Demonétrates a 110 conibear trap) Most of your trappers
use these 110 conibears. They have gotten rid of their leghold traps
because when the muskrat is caught in this trap, :it will “kill him
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instantly. If he is caught in this little leghold trap, he will chew
his leg off to escape.. , | _ ' | o
They are also caught effectively in this box trap, which is
set in the meadow. I have seen box traps like this with- two or three
‘muskrats. (Demonstrates box trap) If you set them in the high tide,
the muskrat will go in this side, and he can't get out the doors. I've
seen three or four muskfate.fill up this trap. This will not affect
dogs or cats either. '
‘ Foxes and coons can be caught with box traps like this one,
and if you have any unwanted animals such as a cat-- Well, this is a
small version; you can buy bigger ones-- If you have a cat or a dog or
a bird or anything, you can turn it loose without any harm done to it.
Leghold traps, such as fox traps and muskrat traps do harm to
the leg. The fox or coon will twist and pull, tearing the meat of the
leg to the bone, or untilbthe leg breaks, to eeeape the ‘trap. The
muskrat will chew his leg off to free himself. |
‘ People have said ‘that muskrats will overpopulate if leghold
traps are banned, but very few leghold traps are used for trapping
muskrats. Box traps and'110 conibear traps are the most popular.
Leghold traps are so ineffective that many trappers are u31ng

. the 220 conibear trap and the 330 conibear -traps, which. are 1llegal,
except for beaver and otter with a permit, to eatch coon and fox. They

bait' small wire cages, which I have right here, and set the trapjin
front. (Demonstrates a 220 conibear trap) When the animal goes after
the sardines. in. the back, putting his head through this trap, the
~animal is a dead animal. . It breaks the neck or cuts off its
breathing. I had one of my best fox hounds killed in a trép like
this. Trappers are using this method so that they will have less loss
~of coon and fox. We have had cats,-yard dogs, and hunting dogs killed
in my area by these traps. These traps are obv1ously set by trappers
“and not by your everyday sportsman. ,

Some trappers don't tend their traps everyday due to jobs,
bad weather, or sickness,; but the dog or cat left in these leghold

traps for days will automatlcally lose his foot due to loss of

01rculat10n.
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I had a fox hound that I was hunting one day. I didn't see
him the whole day, although I looked everywhere for him. The next day
hé came out of the woods in the same area where I was hunting. His
foot had a crease mark across it where he had been. caught in é trap.
He was limping, I took him home and doctored hislfoot, but he never
regained vuse of that foot.. I had to destroy him ‘because he
could not run after that. .

 If the price of furs went back to $.50, the:trapper would
quit trapping, but that wouldn't keep the hunter from hunting. As long
as we have more Humane and alternative methods of trapping, we should
. pursue them so hunting and trapping can coexist with each other.
Banning the leghold trap would do‘ this and prevent the torture and
crippling of many.animals. '

Thank you.

AUDIENCE: (Applause)

SENATOR ZANE: Okay, thank you. Is Ed Sheppard here? (not

present) George Fisher? (not present) Steven Bertonazzi? (not
present) Joseph Hancock, a trapper? (not present) Collette Beahme?
(not present) Robert Karstetter? (not present) Erv. Parker? (not
present) John Quinn? | :
"JOHN QUTINN: I am John Quinn, and.I am a member of the South
Jersey Fur Takers, Chapter 14A. I am also a member of the New Jersey
Trapper's Association, which is affiliated with the South Jersey Fur
Farmers. I work with the State, and oui club teaches trappér
education., It was brought up earlier, so I would like to enlighten on
that. 1I'll skip over everything else that was talked about.tdday.

Everybody has to take a trapper eddcatidn'course in the State
‘of New Jersey in order to be eligible for a trapping license. There is
no way you can apply for it -- adult or youngster -~ without ‘going
'through the trapper educatlon course.

We work with the State biologists. They give all the
classroom 1nstruct10ns in a two-day course, and our club gives all the

field demonstrations -- trap preparation and the ethics of trapplng.
If yoq have any questions regarding that, I'll be glad to answer them.
| ~ The thing that upsets me as a trapper and as a South Jeréeyan'
is, I heat statements made that in Burlington County,_fhey have no
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ieghold trap, yet they say how great they are d01ng with trapping
muskrats with no effect on them. This is a bold- face&\ﬁle because I
have the -statistics on the 1981- 1982 fur season, and Burllngton County
‘had 18,698 muskrats trapped, in comparison to Salem County's 92,416
muskrats. _ , : o
" While we were up in Trenton at the Assembly hearings, we had
to listen to a lot of this. An Assemblyman from Bergen County stood up
and. said that they have no leghold trap, and they are the largest -
ﬁrappers of muskrats in the whole country. This was another bold-faced
lie. The numbers state that only .12,365 muskrats were trapped in
Bergen County compared to the 92,000 down here in Salem County.

Also, we're talklng about the livelihood in Salem County -
~alone of 430 trappers for the 1981-1982 season. The conservation
groups have a trend against non-trapping. During the past three years,
we put 1,600 people through our trapper educatlon courses. in the State
of New Jersey. Last year alone, we had 426 students. They were
adults, youngsters, and women. Entire families have taken the trapper
education course together. |

We just finished a trapper education course last weekend. We
nad over 30 adults and youngsters. There were over one hundred who -
wanted to take the test, so there is an interest in trapping in'Newi
Jersey. For those who try to say that there are only a few of us out
“there who are just trying to make pin money, I would like tO-inform'
them that I have a daughter who started college this year, and her .
tuition is going to come from the trapping I will do this year.

- SENATOR ZANE:  Thank you. Charles Santora? (not present).

Anthony Musumeci? ‘(notipreSent) Bob Busnardo? (not present) Joseph
Papai? (not present) Linwood Tice?
LINWOOD TICE: Senator, I appfeciate the opportunity to
speak. I have been waiting here for four hours to do éo. '
: I think it is obvious that I am not a trapper. As a young
boy,zmy gréndfather taught me about trapping.'_l used to go trapping -
with him, and I learned a great deal about it. ‘

I was a very poof boy, and later in>life, when I became a

little more affluent, I began buying marshland because I am a

conservationist. I can live quite well without any income from my land
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at all. I'm proud to say that Lisa Beal's father is my - trapper, and
part of her support at home, I'm sure, comes from Harry Beal's efforts
during the winter. ‘ | ‘ ‘

My activity at the present time is that of a medical legal
consultant. I'm a retired professor, and a retired administrator of a
college. | o _
| Senator, I would like your Committee - fo. think about one
thing. - We have the same problem in our teaching institutions. The
same groups oppose. the use of animals in developing new drugs and in
developing new surgical procedures. They fight constantly to eliminate
that. We cannot develop new drugs unless we use animais first. What
human being would want us to use a drug on him dn her that had never
been tried on anyone else? Such things as open heart surgery, for
example, had to be done on animals, large animals, and it had to be
perfected before it could be translated to man.; |

There are a lot of people in this country who love animals
more than human beings. 1 have a sister-in-law who does. She loves
her cat more than she loves me. We have such things today as animalv’
cemeteries where people spend thousands of dollars to bury a cat or a
" dog and put a tombstone on his grave. Money is given by some of these
people to some of these organizations which mdst spend it because it is
their livelihood. Consequently, they support campaigns in the name of
being humane because if is part of their job. We fight it at the
college level constantly. They say, "YOUVCan‘t_use animals this way;
you can't use them that way." Eventually, they don't want us to use
animals at all. It would seem to me that with people starving
| throughout the world and with péople being impoverished that there
would be more concern about human beings and less about animals. ”

There are a lot of my friends in this room who asked me to
come here and testify. I happen to own three hundred acres of
marshland in Lower Alloways Creek. My interest in it is conserving it
for posterity -- to enjoy if as I have. I. have no deﬁendence'on it
financially;and, consequently, I have been here for four hours in order |
to have you. look very carefully into where the money comes from to
mount the campaigns against relatively‘poor people who are.trying to
-earn a living doing the way their fathers and grandfathers did.

I thank you for this opportunity, Senator.

95




AUDIENCE: (Applause)

SENATOR ZANE: Jim Pedersen, trapper? :

JAMES D. PEDERSEN: My name (is Jim Pedersen, and 1 came
from Sussex County to be here today. _ '

Very few people, other than trappers and w1ld11fe law
enforcement personnel; ~understand the existing laws regarding
trapping. = Many people are working to outlaw large traps with teeth,
which are already illegal. ‘

Many people suggest that trappers use conibears because they
kill the animals quickly. Despite Statewide municiapl,leaeh laws and a 3
State leash laws, people claim we catch pet dogs. Tﬁe code states, "No
conibear or killer-type traps shall be used Unlees submerged under
water."  The reason is quite clear.

The .religious philosophical belief which leads to proposed
legislation such as A-3207 and 5-1575, --i.e., God created man and God -
created animals; therefore, since it is immoral to kill humans, it is
immoral to kill animals -- is no more valid nor widespread than the
belief that animals were put on earth for man's use or the belief that
man and other species were put in the same environment in 6rder to
interrelate with each other. No government has the right to tell

anyone what doctrine to follow. Certainly a government' should not
attempt to supersede God.

I've written an explanation on the need for harvest, u31ng a
stream as a model. On the back is a perspectlve on the steel trap. .1
would like to submit them for the Committee's consideration.
‘ Thank you for your time and attention ‘

SENATOR ZANE: Thank you. '

AUDIENCE: (Applause) ‘

SENATOR ZANE: George Munniksna? (not present ) |
GEOR GE MUNNIKSNA: My name is Gebrge Munniksna. I am .
f}om Werren County, New Jersey. I have 11ved there for twenty-flve
years, but I am originally from Holland.

I have seen changed made. 1.like to talk to older people,
and they always say, '"Where are the good eld days?" I don't kndw:whét"
. is 901ng to- happen twenty years from now, but right now, we're in
trouble. I llke to see thlngs Just the right way -- the way they.
should be. I can see changes being made which should be happening.
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1 hope that this bill is vetoed. 1 am a farmer, and a farmer
who harvests his crop is like a trapper. You have to' harvest the
crop. What is going to happen if we don't trap? There are going to be
animals all over. There is no way that can be stoppéd.
| I have heard on television that coyotes are eating children,

and you‘khOW-it. It happens all the time. Animals will éventually
destroy us; I know this for sure. You have to.COntroiithem, and the
only way to to that is by trapping. ' '

When the deer hunter gdes out to hunt deer, there is more
deer. They don't stop. They are going to keep reproducing and
reproducing more. 1 can't understand why these people want this to
happen. People make a livelihood from this. It is stuggling all the
time. ' |

Farmers in general are a lower class of people. We know
that. We don't have the ability that you have, but some day these
people will be begging the farmer for food, and we will say, "No."

Thank you. | v ‘

AUDIENCE: (Applause)

SENATOR ZANE: Rosa Feldman, Student Aétion'Corporétion for .
Animals? (not present) Gary Himmel, Central Fur Trappers?

G ARY HIMME L: My name is Gary Himmel, and I am
secretary/treasurer of the Central Jersey Fur Takers. I live in Ocean
County. -

I want to go on recora as being opposed to Assembly Bill
3207. 1 have been a trapper'For the past fifteéh years, trapping both
for sport and for profit. The money I make selllng furs helps to
defray the costs of my household bills.

My family assists me in the preparation of furs to be sold at
the fur auctions. I have two sons who looking forward to trapping with
the'leghdld trap when they get older. To depriVe'myself and'my family
of this Amerlcan tradltlon would be a grave 1nJust1ce.

There are many people in all walks of life who partlclpate in
trapping for various reasons. I have trapped many foxes that showed no »
'discomfort in being in the trap. As a matter offfact,‘severalihave
been sleeping as I approached the trap site. h -

N
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Although the same aréas have been trapped by me year after
yeér, there has been no reduction in their numbers, thus provingvthat
they are a renewable resource. ,

Thank you for your con31deratlon in giving me the opportunlty
to express my views in opp081ng Bill A-3207.

SENATOR ZANE: Thank you.

AUDIENCE: (Applause) » _ : :

SENATOR ZANE: Morray Cohen, ‘Atlantic' County SPCA? (not
present) " That is every speaker who contacted our office and asked to

~speak. Is fheré anyone'else who would like to speak? Yes, sir? How -
many additional speakers are there? | | v‘
THOMAS BROWN: Thank you, Senator Zane, for the opportunlty |
to speak. My name is Thomas Brown, better known to the children --
young trappers -- as Uncle Tom. A

For- 31xty-two of my seventy-three years, I have been a
trapper. These men that came up here today have takenvthe Words out of
my moufh, especially about the corn that is destroyed by the coon.

What I would like to state now is how much the fur taking has
meant to me over the years. I started to trap in 1921. During the
1920's, the furs I brought in helped lift the burden ffom my father who
was sixty-eight years old when I started to trap. ~From 1921 to 1931,

-this money was turned over toimy‘mother, along with thirty-six'andf'
one-half cents an hour that I earned while working in the sandhole.

During the depression - my wife of fifty-one years, who is

: sjtting,in the audience -- the money that came from our furs put food
dn our table. During the 1940'5, with the children going to school--
ALl three went to high school-- In the 1950's, the grandchildrén>Came
along, and then later, the great-grandchildren. |
o The money today is used for the grandchildren and the
great-grandchildren. I sent $500 yesterday to California ~- fur money
—= tb»help one grandson who is in college in Oakland, California. My
oldest grandson, who I call my right arm, is ih Florida at . the
university. I have given him money towards his education, and I will
-contlnue to do so as long as I have my leghold traps.. " .

I have a granddaughter, sister to my right arm -- Valerle

Baldwin -- who is in college in North Carolina. She 1s.studylng to be

a teacher for the retarded.




Most of the things I wbuld have said have already been said,
but “in 1977, '1 walked into the Millville Bank. My first
- great-granddaughter was four months old. She is almost seven years old
now. I put $1000 in her name from my fur money. Four years later,:ih-
1981, her mdthér, my oldest granddaughter, was left with another little
girl who was two years old. I took my 1980-1981 fur money énd bought
her a home -- a half of a double house. | ,

I have to say this: In 1982, the children and the
grandchildren didn't get the fur money, although they shared in it. It
was my wife's and my fiftieth anniversary, and that money was spent at
the Savoy Inn in Vineland, New Jersey. We had 120 guests there, and I
still say that my wife was really the prettiest woman there. .

I am talking as a 1940's trapper. I'm not talking’ for
myself; 1 had my day. I really had my day. I‘m,seventy-three years
old. I'm talking for these youngsters who are just starting out. ,:

I skipped school too much in order to get an education. The
outdoors was my classroom, and mother nature was my teacher. 1 héd a
good teacher, even though she is a cruel mistress. '

I just hope that we can continue to hold on to our leghold
traps. There is one thing, with your permission, that I would like to

recite. It is the Trapper's Prayer:

"God grant that I may trap until my dying day, and when it
comes to my last set, I then most humbly pray that when 1 take the
Lord's bait and I am peacefully asleep, he judges me a number one and

goad ehough t0‘keep."

I would like to add a little humor to this grave situation.
'varay'toiGod that we keép our traps because I1'm too old to shovel
" snow. Thank you. '

' SENATOR ZANE: Thank you, sir. After this gentleman,-there
is one more speaker. Is there anyone else who would like to speak?
Two more? Okay. B , ’ ' . »
CAVIT BUYUKMIHCI: That is a real tough to follow;
however, I'11 do my best. ' -

SENATOR ZANE: 'Sir, I'm going: to ask:that you be brief.
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© MR. BUYUKMIHCI: = Yes, sir. 1I'll be as brief as Uncle Tom

‘was. My name is Cavit Buyukmihei, and I President of the ‘New Jersey
Congress for Animals. ' ‘

When Assemblyman Herman testlfled, he 1gnored that a lot. of

people -- scientists, biologists -- came to the first hearing, and they

opposed the leghold trap. They proved that there is no use fbf the

leghold trap. - You cannot control the animal population, diseases, and
rabies. As soon as you start to kill the animals, you create a vacancy
-- a vacuum -- and the animals start to multiply more than ever.

Also, Mr. Herman said that we live in Salem . County, yet
people -who live way out in North Jersey come to speak about
trapping. I happen to live in Atlantic -County and my refuge is in
Atlantic County and Gloucester County.

I would like to say that I was a trapper when I was young,
and I know.what I am talking about. Senator Zane, you asked Robert
Itchmoney from Fish and Game if they would oppose this trap. How can
~he answer "yes," because Fish and Game personnel are paid by the
trappers and hunters?

You. are deceiving the public by putting your big hand in that
trap. I happen to be scientist, and I know the pressure of the trap.
Some animals' legs are smaller than your little finger. Not only that,
- but when an animal is caught, he is frantic. He tries to pull his leg
out,vand sometimes he tears his paw.

Another gentleman testified that it is a misnomer that the
animal is caught by the paw. I assume he has never heard about the
jump trép. Some animals are not as reflective as others. v _

I would like to enumerate' why the New Jersey Congress for

Animals opposes the steel-jaw leghold trap:
‘ (1) Extremely 'cruelty to domestic and wild animals. - The
~ perception of animals has been ably explained by Dr. Somar in a copy of
his statement; which I gave to Denise Dréce. I hope that Senator Zane
and the other Committee members read that. - Animals, just like we, have
the same sensors and they experience the same pain. . |

(2) The leghold trap is not selective. This is not a new:
thing. - Animals such as owls, hawks, ducks, geese, cats, and dogs-may

“be caught. A few mOnths.ago a turkey and a cat were caught, and both
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of them had to. have their legs amputated. A gentleman mentioned that

whenever he sees a three-legged énimal, the leg‘has been amputated at
the shoulder. He doesn't know his medicine. Sure, when an animal is

caught and gangrene sets in, they have to amputate to the next joinf.

If gangrené'sets in at that joint, then they have to amputate to the

next joint. A ‘ -

(3) Brutalizing effect on trappers, especially young'
people. Killing by stomping, clubbing, and strangling is inhumane, and
people become callous to suffering. |

Claims made by the opponents of the bill with regard to the
economy -- the spreading of disease and habitat damage -- are gfoSslyv
exaggerated. Trapping is done by a handful of persons -- about 4,500
in all of New Jersey. It is no longer a major source of income. In
fact, Fish and Game did a survey. They sent 1,000 trappers a survey,
and they asked what their profession was. None of them said, "My
profession is trapping." If I were making a living by trapping, I
would say so proudly. . B '

This economy bit reminds of the slavery days. They said that
if we got rid of slavery, this country would collapse. It never
happened. Keep that in mind., 'We are only dealing with the leghold
trap, not all trapping in New Jeréey. There is no place for such a -
hideous device in our civilized society. ' ‘

I would like you, Senator Zane, and’ Committee members to
" please read the literature I have sent you from Dr. Somar and the
Atlanta Disease Center before you make up your minds. We wouid'very
much apbreciate it if yod would support this bill and get it out of
your Committee. If you don't, we are going to get it out some other
way. ' ' ‘

Thank you very much for giving me this opportunity to speak.

AUDIENCE: (Applause) | |

SENATOR ZANE: Next? |
WILLIAM McKIE: Senator Zane, my name is William McKie. I
am from Pennsville, New Jersey. ' ' ,

I have no ax to grind with anybody. I am not a trapper, a
fur buyer, a conservatibnist; dr an environmentalist. I am a taxpayer

from South Jersey, and this is thé'feason I am here.
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Pennsville has a lot of meadows.  Lower Alloways Creek
doesn't have them all. A lot of trapping goes on in Pennsville.. I've
known 31nce I was a boy that high school kids and college - kids have
supplemented ‘and pa1d their way through college by trapping. I've
known farmers- all my life who have supplemented their incomes because
of trapping. Because of farming nowadays, Qith'the profit level going
down, it is even more of a supplemental income. o

I think the thing that aggrevates me more than anythlng else
regerding this whole situation is our home rule. The only time it
seems that North Jersey wants anything from us is when they get'some of
our revenue from the nuclear plants in South Jersey, ‘especially in
Salem County. We cah't even get the grass cuf on Route 295. - Things
are better up in North Jersey because the population is there.

Now they want to take away our home rule as far as this
leghold trap situation is concerned. If the eleven counties ‘in North !
Jersey want to have leghold trap bans, fine, but let Salem Cdunty
determine its own destiny. Let us in South Jersey send a clear message
to the politicians and to all the people in North Jersey that we are
here, we are to be heard, and we don't want this thing shoved down our
throats. We are against it completely.

- Thank you.
AUDIENCE: (Applause)
| SENATOR ZANE: Harry Beal?
HARRY BEAL: My name is Harry Beal. I am Vice President of
the Fur Farmer's Associationr I am also a trapper and a fur buyer in
the winter and a farmer in the summer. I am putting four children
thrdugh college, all with the help of muskrat trapplng.

A part of our society looks on trapping as a sport or
recreation. Let me assure you, it is not. Trapping is a way of life
and. a full-time job. It is the way I have chosen to make my living and
support my family. _ : S _ |

| On July 3, 1983, Ms. Susan Russell made a statement to the
Philadelphia Inquirer that the average income of a frapper nationwide
was only $100.00. I would like to know her source of -information.
Would all of theee trappers be gathered here today to fight against
this injustice for $100.00 a year? Would I be able to survive -and
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provide for my family on $100.00 per year trapping income? Common
sense evidentally wasn't present when this statement was made. ©Ms-.
Russell also stated that we "go “shovel snow" as an alternative to
trapping. She surely doesn't know - much aqut the South ‘Jersey
snowfall. » - v ’ ’ o

In the State of New Jersey, there afe ovér 4,000 licensed
trappers, and this does nOt_include landowevers who trap on their own:
land. The trapping industry contributes largely to this nation's
economy -- industries such as boat building outbbardfmotor,sales and
parts, the steel industry, gasoline companies, garheht manufacturers,
and the list goes on. |

My livelihood depends upon my right to trap and my freedom of
choice to decide which trap will work best for me in my area.

7 I want to personally thank Senator Zane for the time and -
support he has given our cause. '

AUDIENCE: (Applause)

SENATOR ZANE: I believe we have one last speaker; am I
correct, sir? Kindly give us your name and address, please -- or your
town anyhow.

HEZEKIAH C LARK: Thank you, Senator Zane. My name is
Hezekiah Clark. I live in the City of Salem, and I am é property owner
here. _ | _ ' ' ‘

SENATOR ZANE: I called you awhile back, Mr. Clark.

MR. CLARK: I am SOrry. I just want to speak about this
proposed bill. It seems as if the proponents of this bill are'putting
the lower class of animals above the higher class of animals. It is a
shame that there are so many trappers in this region who the proponents
of this bill seem to want to put out of work. It is a shame, and I
can't understand it. Why?

There was an elderly gentleman who just spoke about how well
he did by helping his family -- sending them through school, and

’everythlng else. If the proponents of this bill that is before us now
have their way, it will be a shame that there will be many other people
who w1ll not be able to go to school or even have an education. '

I am 100% behind you in attacking this b111, and L hope you.
will be very successful in throw1ng it out.
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I want to say one thing: - I want to voice my resentment of
the article in today's newspaper. 'Thank.you. )

AUDIENCE: (Applause) | -

SENATOR ‘ZANE: I'11 ask one more time. Are there any other
speakers? Hearing none, that will conclude the hearihg; Transcripts
from this' hearing will be prépared, and they will be dlstrlbuted'
ultlmately to each member of the Legislature. A

Do you have any idea how long it will take before those
transcripts are ready? | -

HEARING REPORTER: Do you want priority transtription?‘ ,

SENATOR ZANE: Priority would mean what period of time?

HEARING REPORTER: It could be started tomorrow.

SENATOR ZANE: I don't know that a priority is that
essential. The Committee itself will meet. There will be no‘furthér
public hearings on this bill; this was it. The Committee itself will
meet probably. later this month, and we will call for a consideration of
 the bill, whether or not there is any support to move the bill.

' I might advise you at this point that Senator Orechio, who is
the sponsor of the other bill that is identical to this, -- it is in
Senator Dalton's Cqmmittee-— Senator Orechio is a member of the

Agriculture Committee, as well as being the Senate President, and he
will most likely ask for a vote by the Committee to release the b111.-

He has already done that.

There would not have been a public hearing, in all
probability, if he had not pressed and éald he was out to get one of
the . bills.released. Very frankly, anyone is entltled to get a bill
released, but I did not appreciate the methods he had attempted to use
to get the bill released. So, we decided to hold the public hearing.

I'm not going to- speak ‘for"the other members. Senator
' DumontA;Q— I think, if you listened closely, you could sense his
~position on the bill. We'll do something with the bill one way or
another probably within the next thirty days -- the next time the
~ Agriculture Committee meets when we're in session. That is it.

-1 have nothing to do with the bill ‘that is in the other

Committee, nor do I have'anybcontrol over it.‘_Senator Dalton does;_ He

~is from SoUth'JerSéy, and‘he also understands the pfoblems, -1 would
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suggest that those of you with positions. in either direction contact
| Senator Dalton and express your views to him as to whether or not you
would like to see ‘the' bill released and‘brought to the floor for a
Senate vote. o ‘ |

~ That concludes the public hearing.

~ (Hearing concluded)
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Skunk rabies surveillance in Illinois

Paul C. Bartlett, DVM, MPH, and Russell J. Martin, DVM, MPH

SUMMARY

Surveillance data indicated that an increased
incidence of skunk rabies in Illinois during 1979~
1980 was not attributable to increased reporting or
submission of skunks to the state laboratories for
~ rabies examination. Available road-kill data sug-

gested that the skunk population increased prior to
the increase in skunk rabies incidence. An increased

skunk population was hypothesized to have caused
the increased incidence by facilitating transmission
of the virus through increased skunk density. Analy-
sis of the temporal distribution of skunk rabies
revealed a bimodal seasonal cycle, with peak occur-
rence in the spring and fall, and the possible begin-
ning of a secular cycle, with peak incidence every 6 to
8 years.

MoST DISEASE SURVEILLANCE in the United States
depends on voluntary reporting, frequently leading
. tounderreporting and a poor estimate of the annual

incidence of disease. However, surveillance data fre-:
quently prove effective in detecting relative trends in
disease occurrence. Though the occurrence of animal
rabies has been measured by trapping surveys' and
road-kill surveys,? most rabies surveillance data in
the United States depend on the submission of
suspected rabid animals to diagnostic laboratories.
Data collected in this manner can be subject to
submission bias. However, compilation of reported
rabid animals from diagnostic laboratories is fre-
quently the only surveillance data available, and if
interpreted carefully, can indicate important epi-

demiologic trends. In this regard, an analysis of _
submissions to the Illinois rabies laboratories was"

undertaken to determine the value of such data in
characterizing the epidemiology of rabies in Illinois
skunks,

From the Field Services Division, Centers for Disease Contml Atlanta, GA 30333
(Bartlett) and the llinois Dep-rtment of Public Health, 535 W Jafferson St, Springfield,
IL 62761 (Martin). Dr. Bartletts present address is the College of Veterinary Medicine,
Michigan State University, East Lansing, MI 48824,

The authors thank the employees of Illinois Departmenits of Public Health, Agricul-
ture, and Conservation.
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Methods

Since the 1940s, the Illinois Department of Public
Health has monitored the number of rabid animals
reported in the state. After 1962, cases were not
tabulated unless' they had been confirmed rabid by
examination of smears of brain tissue with the
fluorescent rabies antibody (FRA) technique at 1 of
the state’s 6 public health or agriculture laboratories.
These laboratories have a policy to examine only
those skunks that have been in contact with man or
domestic animals.

In 1975, the Illinois Department of Conservation
began counting skunks killed by traffic (road-kills)
as a means of estimating the state’s skunk popula-
tion.? While traveling in their respective regions of
the state, designated department employees re-
corded all dead skunks observed along the road with
the aid of counters mounted in their cars. A road-kill
index was calculated from the number of dead skunks
observed, divided by the number of miles of road
surveyed
. Toevaluate the reliability of the road-kill index to -
estimate the skunk population, it was necessary to
determine whether rabies infection, rather than
skunk population, was a major determinant of the
road-kill index. If rabid skunks were more likely to
be killed on the highway than non-rabid skunks, a
change in the number of skunks killed by traffic
could reflect a change inthe annual rabies incidence
rather than a change in skunk population. In this
regard, employees of the Illinois Department of
Conservation participating in the skunk road-kill
survey were asked to collect the heads of the first 4
skunks encountered in February and March 1981,
and to submit them to the Illinois Department of
Public Health Laboratory in Springfield for FrA
examination. ‘

Each of the 102 counties of Illinois appoints a
veterinarian to serve as administrator of the county’s
animal control program. Duties of this position in-
clude forwarding submitted animal specimens to the
laboratory for rabies examination. In January 1981,
the animal control administrators from the 12 coun-
ties that submitted the most rabid skunks in 1980
were questioned regarding their criteria for submis-

‘sion of skunks to the rabies laboratories. The admin-

istrators from these 12 counties forwarded 312 rabid
skunks to the laboratory in 1980, accounting for 70%
of the state’s rabid skunks reported during that year.

JAVMA, Vol 180, No. 12
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Fig 2—Mean number of laboratory-confirmed rabid skunks, by
month, in lllinois from 1964-1980.

Results

Since 1957, more rabid skunks than rabid ani-
mals of any other species have been reporied in
Illinois. In 1980, Illinois reported 443 rabid skunks,
representing a 2Y2-fold in¢rease over 1979 and a 10-
fold increase over 1978 (Fig 1). Skunks accounted for
79% of reported animal rabies in 1979 and 84% of
reported animal rabies in 19G0. Examination of
seasonal occurrence (Fig 2) indicates a bimodal dis-
tribution, with peak activity in the spring and a
smaller peak in the fall. Figure 3 shows the percent-
age of examined specimens that were FRA-positive
‘and the number of laboratory-confirmed rabid

Fig 4—Number of rabid skunks and road-kill index in Hlinois
from 1975-1980. (Source for data: Hubert GF Jr: Striped Skunk
Road-Kill Survey, P-R Project Report W-49-R-27, Study 11, Job 1.
Springfield, lllinois Deporfmem of Conservation, !980)

skunks by year. The percentage of mA-posxtxve -
skunks usually was higher in years when the number -
of rabid skunks was highest, and lower in years when
there was a low annual incidence of skunk rabies.
Figure 4 depicts the skunk road-kill index from 1975

' to 1980 and the number of confirmed rabid skunks-

during these same years. All of 11 road-killed skunks.
examined in February and March 1981 were found to

be FRA-negative. Twenty additional road-killed

skunk heads couild not be examined reliably because

the brains were damaged badly. The consensus of the

surveyed animal administrators was that their crite-
ria for submission of skunks for rabies examination
remained constant from 1978 to 1980. They esti-.
mated that slightly less than 90% of submitted
skunks were captured or shot by private. citizens.

- Discussion

A cyclic trend in reported skunk rables .was
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Fig 3—Reporied skunk robies ond percenrage of examined skunks which were FRA- posllive, ln IIlInois from 1952-1980.
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observed, with a peak occurring every 6 to 8 years
(Fig 1). Peaks in northern Illinois appear to have
preceded peaks in southern Illinois by 1 to 2 years.
The cyclic nature of skunk rabies also had been
observed in Tennessee, where years of peak skunk
rabies were reported in 1965, 1972, and 1980.?

The monthly incidence of skunk rabiesindicates a
bimodal distribution, with peaks in the spring and
fall (Fig 2). Parker also reported a bimodal distribu-
tion of reported skunk rabies and suggested that
seasonal cycles may be caused by patterns of skunk
behavior.*

Normal, healthy skunks usually are nocturnal
and have infrequent contact with human beings.
Because unprovoked contact with man is considered

abnormal skunk behavior and a common clinical .-

sign’ of rabies, Illinois’ criteria for submission of
skunks for rabies examination should constitute a
good screening test for skunk rabies. Therefore, an
increase in the percentage of FRA-positive skunks
probably reflects an increase in the percentage of
skunks that have contacted human beings or domes-
tic animals because of rabies infection, as opposed to
other reasons, eg distemper, starvation, and injury.
Because skunks with normal behavior are less
likely to be rabid than skunks meeting the criteria
for laboratory submission, the percentage of FRA-
positive skunks would be expected to decrease under
most conditions of improved surveillance. However,
the percentage of Fra-positive skunks among all
skunks submitted in 1978 (34%) was less than that in
1979 (39%) and much less than that in 1980 (52%),
suggesting that the recent increase in reported
skunk rabies reflects a real increase in rabies and not
merely an increase in surveillance efforts. Other
years of high reported annual incidence of skunk
rabies (1964, 1965, 1971, and 1972) also had a
relatively high percentage of Fra-positive skunks
(Fig 3). Because approximately 90% of all submitted
skunks were shot or captured by private citizens, it is
not reasonable to believe that the percentage of FRA-
positive skunks increased during periods of increased
occurrence of skunk rabies because animal control
offices were overworked and able only to capture the
most highly suspect animals.
~ Theresults of the rabies examination of the 1980
road-killed skunks were less than conclusive because
of the small number of skunks submitted and the
high proportion of specimens that could not be ex-
‘amined. The data suggest that most road-killed
skunks were on the highway for reasons other than
" abnormal behavior attributable to rabies encepha-

‘litis, and indicate that current rabies infection proba-

bly was not a major cause of the increase in road-kills
between 1978 and 1980. Hubert? indicates that the
increase in the road-kill index probably reflects an
increase in the skunk population in 1978-1980 and
notes that the association between skunk road-kills
and population is supported by Case® and Verts® (Fig
" 4). The increase in the road-kill index precedes the
iincrease in reported skunk rabies by 1 or 2 years. An
increase in the 1980 Illinois skunk population is also
indicated by the 1980 increase in the harvest of
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skunk pelts and average number of pelts per trapper
in spite of a stable pelt price.?

An ‘increased population of skunks could have
increased the annual incidence of skunk rabies by
facilitating transmission of the virus due to increased
skunk density and crowding. When the population

- and density of skunks increase, there should be more

intraspecies contact facilitating rabies virus trans-
mission, ie, more bites and fights. Other investiga-
tors (Schoening” and Lantz®) have observed that
rabies, like most contagious diseases, is density-
dependent. -~ L ‘ '

This explanation is consistent with the observed
surveillance data demonstrating increased submis-
sion of skunks to the laboratory for FRa-examination,
increased number of FRA-positive results, and in-
creased percentage of submitted skunks found to be
FRA-positive. Several alternative explanations for the
1979-1980 increase in skunk rabies are not as
compatible with the observed data: (1) Periodic cycles
of rabies resulting from patterns of herd immunity
might have occurred, but would not be contingent on
the increase in skunk population which was observed
to coincide with the increase in reported skunk
rabies. (2) Neither the ecologic niche nor the life style
of skunks might have changed between 1978 and
1980 to a degree sufficient to account for the dramatic
increase in skunk rabies observed during these
years. (3) Changes in the rabies virus itself might
have created an epidemic through increased vir-
ulence, pathogenicity, or infectivity; however, field or
laboratory evidence has not indicated that the
1979-1980 wild rabies virus is substantially differ-
ent from the wild rabies virus of previous years. (4)
An increase in the annual incidence with a stable
skunk population might be an alternative explana-
tion for the observed data; however, this theory would
not explain the increase in skunk population sug-
gested by the road-kill survey. - :

An increase in the population of skunks at risk
without a change in the rate of rabies infection
should not have affected a change in the percentage
of FRA-positive skunks. However, the percentage of
FRA-positive -skunks increased between 1978 and
1980. Therefore, the annual incidence (new cases of
skunk rabies per population unit) must have in-
creased between 1978 and 1980.
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Township Office cdnducted a survey to alljveterinarians,fwho could
be reached in the South Jersey area, namely, Salem, Cuﬁberlund;;
Atlantic, Glouceéter,'Cape‘May,andéBurlingtonicountiés‘to’dotermihe .
wbethér'ég not the veterinarians:had treated anyvahimals in the
past year who may have been daught.in leghold-steelutréps, The

results are as follows:

SALEM_COUNTY

Pilesgrove Animal Hospital ' | No
Woodstown, NJ

Salem Veterinarian Hospital '
Salem, NJ _ . ' No

Gemberling Animal Hospital
Woodstown, NJ No

CUMBERLAND COUNTY

Blue Cross Animal Hospital

Vineland, NJ No
Cumbériand Veterinary Hospitail
Vineland, NJ . ’ ' ‘ No .
Hopewell Veterina:y Hospital
Hopewell, NJ » ‘ No
fA;”Kazam,‘DVM : ,
Vineland, NJ No
Animal Hospital of Millville
- Millville, NJ . ‘ - No
Wilwynn Animal Hospital \ » ,
"Bridgeton, NJ v No
Arne Zislin _ '
Vineland, NJ ‘ ‘No
V. Sima - , ‘
~ Vineland, NJ ' ‘ : - No

James Rosenthal
Yineland, NJ ' . _ No .

East Oak Veterinaryiﬁospital , , o .
Vineland, NJ o ‘ » Yes (1)

R.F. Goldsboro - _
Millville, NJ No
‘ Hy




ATLANTIC COUNTY

. Animal Emergency Clinic
Somerdale, NJ

Botwinick - Margate Animal Hospital
Margate, NJ

Somers Point Veterinary Hospltal
Somers Point, NJ

Hammonton Vetcerinary Hospital
Hammonton, NJ

Absecon Veterinary Hospital
Absecon, NJ

Abscgami Velerinary llospital
McKee City, NJ

Bayview Animal Hospital
Atlantic City

Dale Bodman
Fork River, NJ

A.P.A. Hillerson |
‘Ventnor City, NJ .

Island Animal Clinic
Brigitine

Velceo
. Tabernacle, NJ

Linwood Animal Hospital
Linwood

’GLOUCESTER COUNTY

Forrest Gerry .
Mullica Hill, NJ

Hillcrest Veterinary Hospltal
Pitman, NJ

Bert Allen
Haddon Heights

P. Berg
~ Williamstown, NJ

Black Horso Pike An1ma1 Hosp1ta1
Turnersville, NJ

No

No'

No

Yes (1)
No

No

Yes (1)
No

No |

No

No

No

No
No
No

No

‘No




GLOUCESTER COUNTY (Continued)

Blackwood Animal Hc-pital
Blackwood, NJ . , .. No

Green'Fields Veterinary . ‘ '
Mantua, NJ o o .. Yes (2)

Greentree Veterinary
Turnersville, NJ - . . No |

Cyril Boyncs
Clayton, NJ : o No

CAPE MAY COUNTY

Belloff Animal lospital : , .
Rio Grande, NJ : No

Cape Veterinary Hospital ' Ly
Cape May Court House ‘ : ‘  No

Shore Veterinary . : .
Seaville, NJ S . Ygs-(l)

BURLINGTON COUNTY

Bryan Animal Hospital
Mt. Holly s No.

Burl-Moor-Driben Animal Hospital
Moorestown, NJ ‘No

Win. Fedorko

Burlington, NJ ' - . No
Fittipaldi
Collingswood - _ - . No

Edward Frame Yes (1)
Medford, NJ ' .

Ellen Friedman
Chesterfield, NJ No

Jerome Glickstein
Medford, NJ D - - No .




BURLINGTON COUNTY (Continued)

Marne Veterinary Clinic
Mt. Holly, NJ

Marlton Animal Hospital
Marlton, NJ

Ed Sleeper
Mount Laurcl, NJ

Wood Veterinary Clinic
Wrightstown, NJ

Central Veterinary Hospital
Columbus, NJ

OCEAN COUNTY

Southern Ocean Animal Hospital
Tuckerton

Tuckerton Véterinary Clinic
Tuckerton, NJ

CAMDEN COUNTY

Church Road Animal
Cherry 1lill, NJ

Ernest Vaughn
Pennsauken, NJ

Cherry Hill Animal Hospital
Cherry lill

Berlin Park Animal Hospital
Camden, NJ

Circle Animal Hospital
Collingswood, NJ

7x

No

Yes (1)

No




THOSE WHO DID HAVE ANIMALS CAUGHT WERE AS FOLLOWS

Bayview Animal Hospital, Atlantic City - 1 dog in the fall

Eaét'Oak Veterinary Hospital, Vineland - 1 dog (Not sure of season)
Green l'ields Veterinary, Mantua - usually have a couplce a year
Hammonton Veterinary Hospital, Hammonton - 1 cat in August “
EdWard Framé, Veterinarian, Medford - 1 dog in winter

Shore Veterinarians - 1 animal

Marlton Animal Hospital, Marlton - 1 cat in winter

Total Contacts 57

Total Incidents 7

¥x
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ssociation, inc.

w

elf are

The

nimal
RED LION SHELTER VOORHEES SHELTER AND ANIMAL BIRTH CONTROL MAILING ADDRESS:
Route 206 Marlton-Gibbsboro Rd. CLINIC AWA, BOX 105
Vincentown, N.J. 08088 Voorhees Township, N.J. Box 113, Mariton, N.J. 08053 %
Phone: 859-2279 Phone: 424-2288 Phone: 424-2258 LINDENWOLD, NJ 08021

Whereas:

The steel jaw leghold trav 1s a cruel and unselective
device for capturing animals, and

Whereas:

The steel Jjaw leghold trap 1s recogrilzed as being inhumane
and is banned in many Countries, States and in some Coun-
ties in New Jersey, and

Whereas:

There are alternatives to the steel Jaw leghold trap avail-
' able and now being used in Vew Jersey,

Therefore be 1t resolved:
That The Animal Welfare Assoclation strongly supports Bill

A-3207 and any similar leglislation which will prohibit the
use of the steel jaw leghold trap throughout New Jersey.

September 8, 19833
The AWA Board of Directors

{
DIRECTORS: Charles 1. Clausing, President, Medford; Rgymond N. Schweizer, Vice President, Cherry Hill; Miss Margaret Blanck, Secretary,

Deptford; Mrs. Eileen K. Krusch, Treasurer, Blackwood; Mrs, Claire Baker, Toms River; Miss Annette Blaxland, Pennsauken; Mrs. Bonnie Cate,

Pennsauken; Nial P. Gardner, Jr., Edgewater Park; Mrs. Virginia Leonard, Burlington; William Millhollen, Philadelphia; -Miss Carol Roman,

Maple Shade; Marvin Rothman, V.M.D., Cherry Hill; Miss Jean Steever, Haddon Heights; Richard Stefanski, Jr., Haddonfield; William Seybold,

Camden; Robert Templeton, Bordentown; James B. Woodford, Medfor? General Counsel, Lee B. Laskin, Cherry Hill.
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AN'S CATCHER

Jon's cotcher is a completely new type of fox leg-snore. Many years of
experinent aond rescarch aore behind the construction, which is potented

in 5 countries. The research work hos been led by docent Jan Englund

ot the University -of Stockholm,

In the huniing vear of 1975-76, 111 foxes were cought by 22 hunts-men,

Eoch hunt-men hod 5 fox leg-snores. Parts from the cought foxes were

sent to cocent Englund for on examination, to see if any injuries had

occurred, The freguency of injuries turned out to be very low.

Docznt fnclund's conclusion is thot this method of hunting is the most

hurane existing in fox-hunting.

Jdon's cct ﬁer is olso used for research purposes, for excmple by the

secrch stotion at Grimso.

cther essenticl odvantoge with Jan's cotcher, besides it being
fective and lenient, is thet it does not need ony speciol trectiment,
cach copture, you just rinse %t in hot woler.

lly, it is very irportaont that' the fox leg-snore is vsed in o
proper way, Knowledge of the fox's behoviour is necessary,

The Tox wconcers each night through its territeory in secrch of feood.

i ¢lwcvs icxes the scwe woy ond, mainly, also the sore 1:1ozh., Zuewh
cuid noovoursiort putiing outllure in o svitaeble mloce. This is repeoted
cvri-g 3 wernins., It is importont to dig down the lure ¢ tiz, tc noxe the

s-2.1 zo into ihe ground. When the fox leg-snere is to be out out, vou
-¢he s<ie ¢ng oo round the lure-ploce to look for the “ox's z=-z:ances
er i :v:18, Do net go cleses than 100 metres frer the lui:-cloze, wWour
yi. ¢."€¢ 10 a t1ock, you toke off the skis and ioke o >ig s=ep cwoy
“rom the skiing trock. The fox leg-snore is acdopted and put in the
“lrd o “ourtt +rockmork (counted from the skiing trock), 07 course.

co
-2 -.wIz¢ g7 o cepture ore improved if you put fox leg-sncres 61 oL
ly, use and put out the fox leg-snore is shown in

0
{ion on the next poge,




Jan's Caicher ar en helt ny typ av raviangare.
N&nga &rs experiment och forskning ligger
bakom konstruktionen som ar patenterad i b
lander. Forskningsarbetiet har ietts av docent
Jan Englund vid Stockholms Universitet.

Jaktéret 1975-76 fangades 111 ravar av 22

st fangstmaén. Varje { ngs!man hade 5 st rav-
tangare. Delar fran de fangade ravarna
skickades till docent Englund 16r undersdk-
ning om eventuella skador hade uppstétt.
Skadefrekvensen visade sig vara mycket lag.
Docent Englunds slutsats ar att den har jakt-
metoden dr den mest humana som fore-
kommer pé rav.

Forutom till jakt anvéands ocksé Jan's Catcher
{or forskningsdndamal. T.ex. av Lunds Univer-
sitet, Uppsala Universitet och av Statens

Naturvardsverks forskningsstation pa Grimso.

En annan védsentlig {6rdel med Jan's Caicher.
fdrutom att den ar effektiv och skonsam., &r att
den inte behover behandlas. Efter varje fangst
spolar man bara av den med varmt vatten.

Det ar naturligtvis mycket viktigt att rav-

fangaren anvands pé ett riktigt satt. Kannedom

om rdavens beteerde ar darfor ndédvandig.

Réaven vandrar var'e kvall igenom sitt reviri
iakt efter {oda. Der gar alitid samma vagar
och. i stort sett. ¢essutom i samma spar.

Tigigt £2 hésien borjar man att lanes ut &tel pa
enlamplig plats Defta upprepeas under ca
3méanader Det arvikiigt at1 dteln gravs ner lite
s& att mart en blii nvitirad. Nar raviangaren
skall idggas u! tar man skidorna och aker runt
atelplatsen 10r att soka efter révens in- och
ulgangar. Ak dé inte narmarc an 100 meter
fran &telplatsen. Nar man kommer till ett spar.
kopplar man loss skidorna och tar ett rejalt
steg fran skidsparet. Raviangaren apteras och
laggs ut i tredje eller fjarde sparstampeln fran
skidspdret raknat. Fangstchanserna okar
naturligivis om man lagges raviangzare pa alla
in- och utgéngar.

Hur man rent tekniski hanterar och lagger ut
ravfangaren framgér av beskrivningei pd om-
stdende sida.

Léspinne 16f tramputidearen

/ Faste tor trampplatta © p
Cp‘a | / /,’ . /' ’//,/
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&4 Humane Alternaiive To The Steel-jawed Wildlife Trap

i I

Following 10 years of development, a patent has been
obtained for an effective wildlife trap designed to catch
and hold animals without causing them physical harm. The
trap represents a practical alternative to the steel-jawed
trap, which has two significant disadvantages, (1) it causes
pa2in and injury, a topic of growing debate in professional
circles, and (2) it can debilitate, and render useless,
animals trapped for research purposes.

Tre trap we have developed is tradenamed 'Ezyonem®
(phonetic for "easy-on-em"). It consists of a neoprene
coated loop, the ends of which are clamped inside a tele-
scoping barrel. When sprung, the barrel sections move out-
ward, closing the loop around the animal's limb. The cable
loop forms only a 270-degree circle around the limb. This
cdesign feature allows a continuous flow of blood so that
"freecze-offs" do not occur. The loop's controlled shape
zlso keeps the animel's leg from coming in contact with the
trmap sc ithai nc metzl touches or abrades the 1imb. A 1,000
1t. test cable is used, making the 'Ezyonem' trap effective
Tor 211 but the larzest carnivores.

wnen the itrap is sprung, the telescoping tarrel closes

the czble loop without changing the position of the animal's
foot. Trhics Is a necessary feature for successfully catching
ligrht-footed animals such as the fox, coyote, or raccoon.
ke ine tarrel moves feorward, the cable loop remzins petween
it arnd the arimal's leg, preventing direct contact when the
Trzp ig sprung. As a result, no pain occurs at the moment
ire animel is cazughi. The irap can be sprung on a2 person's
Tinger, for example, without causing discomfort.

hzcazuse the 'Eiyonem' irap holds at near-zero pressure,
er.imzle esxperience no pain or trauma when restrained. Studies
conducied by the author have shown that the limb of a fur-
bezring enimal can rmake more than 1,000 revolutions in the
cetls Loon wiirnoutv czusing ihe skin to trezk. Wwnen trapred,
enirzls were Tvpically observed to remain calm anc did not
btite the limb that was held. In contrast, a No. 2 stieel-
jawec irap was shown to break the skin of a fox or bobcat
vith ze few 25 eix 1urns of the animal's 1limb. 4Lnimals
crught irn 2 stesl-lawed trap gererally siruggle, sometlimes
Truskirg thelr Teein or looring the anchoring chain around
a2 nd oreaking it. .

Setiing the ‘'Ecyonem’' trap reguires 5 to 10 minutes

e trapper using a dirt-hole set. ‘When set,
zgures =z

compact 1 and 1/8 inches in diameter
n length (sprung, it projecis to 12
ic sizked into position adja

PR R

clinical test of the trap illusirated its:
Dr. Joun Muider, a veierirarian on the faculty
'sitv o Fanszs, used tfe 'Ezyonem' irep andé
stcel-lzvel trapes to cigich coyotes ior &




wildiife study. Of the coyotes caught with steel-jawed
traps, 50% had broken legs and were useless for his study,
A1l the coyotes caught with 'Ezyonem' traps were unharmed
and without skin abrasions on the trapped limb.

The 'Fzyonem' trap is relatively simple in design,
and actually contains fewer parts than most steel-jawed
traps. Protoiype models had barrels of either polycarbon
or steel, both of which weighed less than half as much as
a No. 2 steel-jawed irap. The polycarbon model has the
advantage of requiring no treatment or preparation prior
to or following use. Boiling or waxing is unnecessary,
and the trap is ready to use after being rinsed with
water. Repairs on the 'Ezyonem' are generally easy to
perform in the fielé or at a workbench. The trap is not
co-mercially availatle at this time, although licensing
discussions wtih existing manufactureérs &are in process.

/¥x
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[57) ABSTRACT

A humane animal trap having a snare which is closed in
position. The snare is a formed loop having ends which
pass through a hollow 1elescoping system. The tele-
scoping means is comprised of a2 main barrel connected
to the Joop, 2 slave barrel within the main barrel, and'a
working barrel within the slave barrel. The barrels are
biased in an exitended position by a spring which is
connected between the main barrel and working barrel.
A trigger prevents extension of the barrels and is selec-

tively held in position by a trip. The trip is comprised of .

a trip sear which engages the trigger and a trip pan
which forms an acute angle, preferably 30°, with the
axis of the barrels. When the trap is arranged for use, the
trip pan is located within the loop and an animal enter-
ing the loop and contacting the trip pan causes the trip
pan and trip sear to move and release the trigger. This
permits the spring to extend the barrels thereby enclos-
ing a greater portion of the loop within the barrels and
causing the loop to close around the animal forming a
270° loop. :

3 Claims, 4 Drawing Figures
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NOVAK FOOT SNARE

DEVELOPED BY THE ONTARIO MINISTRY OF NATURAL RESOURCES
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, ALDRICH K-hi-w‘w-«w,?
SPRING ACTIVATED ANIMAL SNARE

ALTON CHITTISTER
P.O. BOX 244
CLALLAM BAY
WASHINGTON

98326 pll‘" 20¢ ?‘ i 2 3‘23(.: Gl

PARTICULARLY WELL ADAPTED FOR USE IN SETTLED AREAS
HUMANS. PETS AND LIVESTOCK CAN BE SET FREE WITH NO INJURIES

EXTREMELY USEFUL FOR 'ANIMALS TO BE CAUGHT AND i
T Gkt N RELD FOR ‘BIOLOGICAL STUDIES, PEST CONTROL OR ZOO SPECIMENS - - - =+

Sa#e Hesssane gnazze-‘/qfw 7”‘@" /04 ﬂW‘T

s

> . 5 .

.

T The ALDRICH SPRING ACTIVATED ANIMAL |
' SNARE is comprised of a wire rope snare and spring = -
device equipped with trigger for {hrowing loop of snare i
} upward around leg of ‘the ammbl Spring falls free as
| animal is caught. Humane protec¢tive strap maybe em-
ploycd to contact near side of animal’s foot. -

ALDRICH SPRING ACTIVATED ANIMAL SNARE SETTING e

Press spring arm 1o ﬂut
position. Press spikes xulT)'“"“‘ {
into ground so tripger arm
remazins inhorizontal posi-
tion at ground level. Form
a shzht depression under

trigger to allow downward
movement {or releasc. En-/
page werivei=cyve with {nig-
TS hook. Lav wue in
penag 16—form loop over
trigger. Place forked stick
to hold far side of lvop
slightly above ground to
allow tocs to shp under.
Cover wire and springs
lightly with leaves or moss.

o

ALDRICH SPRING ACTIVATED ANIMAL SNARE l
e & B R R R e T L N B VTS - 15 e, 0 H
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by 'Bill Clark

Reports from around the world belie American trappers, :
what really happens when nations ban

here is

CONOMIC CATACLYSM, agricultural
mayhem, rabies epidemics: Each
has been held up as a warning flag by
those who support leg-hold trapping in
the United States.
° At public hearings where there is a
proposal to ban leg-hold traps, trappers
make their dire forecasts, and fish-and-
gamé officials support them with stacks
of studies. Predictably, the anti-trapping
proposals are usually shelved in the in-
terests of ‘public health’ and prosperity.
* To many people, the pro-trapping argu-

ments sound plausible. Yet we need only

seck the voice of experience to learn the
real implications of banning leg-hold
traps. And there are many such voices
of experience.

388

Dozens of countries have enacted pro-
hibitions against the leg-hold trap. These
countries are found on every continent
except our own. Leg-holds are banned
from the temperate countryside of indus-
trial England and the vast wilderness of
boreal Sweden. They are prohibited in
large countries such as Brazil and India,
in tiny countries such as Gambia and
Liechtenstein.

Many can serve as good examples. The
Federal Republic of Germany, for in-
stance, is similar, in many parts, to the
United States—particularly our north-
eastern areas such as Pennsylvania, New
York, and Ncw England. West Germany
has similar human population densities,
land uses, climate, and natural vegeta-

/8x

Leg-hold Trapping

tion. Like Pennsylvanians, the Germans
work a major steel industry. Like New
Yorkers, they have cxtensive vineyards
and apple orchards. There is social afflu-
ence in both regions, with many automo-
biles, major highways, shopping areas,
and subiurbs. Both have similar political
and economic s¥sicms.

Both have similar wildlife species as
well, and have virtually exterminated ma-
jor predators.

Among furbearers, German and north-
eastern U.S. specics are either identical or
closely related. The red fox is found in
both regions, as is the stoat, or ermine.
Where Germany has the European otter,
European hare, European marten, and
European weasel inhabiting its broadlea

R non Nl ndare a8 1A R aaiadod Lu Aemietcha Sonen DECEANSRS Nae . RS0




rests, the Northeast United States has
e American’ otter, Fastern cottontail,
merican marten, and American mink.

But unlike the Northeastern U.S., the
ierman Federal Republic has years of
kperience with a prohibition on leg-hold
‘aps. The present law (Art. 19, para. 1,
lo. 9 of the Fcderal Act on Hunting)
:as enacted in 1961, and prohibits all
-aps that do not either kill instantly or
onfine an animal unharmed.

The Germans, who have a well-earned
rputation for methodical precision, have
ionitored the impact of their ban on leg-
old traps. According to Dr. Schmelz,
:deral Minister for Food, Agriculture,
nd Forestry, ‘Since the prohibition of
1e_leg-hold trap T know of no serious
roblems which concern a) the animals’
r human health, b) agriculture, c) over-
wopulation of game, or d) any other
reas which could be directly associated
vith the prokibition on the leg-hold trap.’

Dr. Schmelz suid as well that there

have been no serious cconomic conse-
quences tesulting from the banning of
leg-hold traps, nor has there been a
serious problem enforcing the ban:

‘Now that the leg-hold trap has been
prohibited, it has bccome evident that
the cruelty to animals which could not
be avoided previously when this trap was
used, has been eliminated. Thus one can
speak of a good effect on the natural
ecosystem.’

Neighboring Switzerland has similar

legislation, and is in the process of pre-

paring a new hunting law which will
prohibit all traps except box traps. Swiss
trappers, necvertheless, take about 50,000
furbearers annually using alternative
methods. Red fox is the most frequently
trapped animal in Switzerland.

There have been recent reports in the
U.S. press suggesting the Swiss have
lifted their ban on leg-holds because of
rabies epidemics. Such stories have been
printed in several U.S. newspapers and
offered as testimony to state legislative

Jorth American coyote (left) and bobcat (below) suffer in leg-hold traps banned
n many countries. Dozens of governments have outlawed the leg-hold,
vithout rahies cpideinics or ecouomic upsets prophesied by U.S. trappers.

A vigorous opponent of leg-hold
trapping, Bill Clark works to restore
imperiled species at Israel’s
Hai-Bar/Arava Nature Reserve.

committees considering bills to prohibit
or restrict use of leg-hold traps.

I contacted Dr. Peter Dollinger, of the
Swiss Federal Veterinary Office, and
asked about the U.S. reports. He said
they are not true and that the Swiss ban
on leg-holds is still very much in force.

Switzerland does have some rabies in
wild animals, but is dealing with it in
a unique way. Veterinarians and biolo-
gists from the University of Bern are
vaccinating foxes, the major rabies reser-
voir, against the disease. Mcasured doses
of vaccine are inserted into sausage
baits and then offered to wild foxes. The
U.S. Center for Disease Control in
Atlanta is working on a similar projéct,

but only the Swiss have progressed as -

far as field application.

WILDLIFE OFFICIALS in other
European countries which have
banned leg-hold traps all report that
prohibition has not raised serious con-
cerns for agriculture, economics, health,
or the stability of wildlife populations.

Denmark represents the typical Euro-
pean situation. Leg-hold traps were
banned there in 1931, with only certain
specified uses permitted. Birgith Sloth .of
the Danish National Agency for the Pro-
tection of Nature, Monuments, and Sites
notes that ‘in Danish hunting legislation
from 1931 you will find that leg-hold

_ traps can only be placed to catch Lutra

lutra [the European otter] at rivers and
lakes [the fishermen considered big popu-
lations of Luira lutra to be a threat to
the fish populations], and in farmhouses

or close to such for trapping species .

belonging to Mustelidae which were con-

~ sidered a threat to hens and the like.’

But in 1967, the Danes banned the
Jeg-hold trap completely, and watched to
see how many more otters would be eat-
ing fish, and weasels eating chickens.
A dozen years later, Ms. Sloth reports
‘it has also not been possible to trace
any changes/increase in the population

of the species concerned.’ b g
Denmark doesn’t have wall-to-wall -

weasels. In fact, none of the dozens of
countries which have banned the leg-hold
trap have noticed any adverse population
shifts. If anything, banning the trap

usually results in beneficial adjustments

389 .




to wildlife populations. Chile’s experi-
ence is an example.

The banning of leg-hold traps in Chile,
during 1970, is one of the few pieces of
legislation to survive the Allende govern-
ment. Jaime de la Sotta Benavente,
_ agricultural engineer with Chile’s Agri-
. cultural Service and Livestock Manage-
ment General Office, says that since ban-
ning leg-hold traps, Chile has not no-
~ ticed any health or environmental prob-
lems. Nor do trappers go hungry: ‘One
" cannot say that this prohibition has led
to adverse economic consequences now
that the animals of economic importance
are captured by other legally permitted
- means.’

Chile is an example of how non-indus-

"~ trial countries have taken the leadership

‘role in banning leg-holds. During the
_past decade especially, developing coun-
tries have becoine increasingly aware of
“their own decision-making poiential, and
"'have avoided taking advice from indus-
- trial nations that have managed their
- own wildlife into near oblivion.
- Bangladesh bans the leg-hold trap
. and, according to the countrv's Conser-
~.vator of Forests, Shamsul Anwar, im-
poses strict penalties on anyone convicted

i

of using the device. Bengali law provides
a minimum of one year ‘rigorous im-
prisonment’ and a minimum finc of 1,000
Taka (a full year's wage for the average
Bengali) on first conviction. Shamsul
records no more than two or three vio-
lations a year ‘which are invariably
detected and adequately punished.’

No serious problems, he says, have
resulted from the ban. Some jackals and
wild boars have done agricultural dam-
as., but they are handled in alternative,
non-violent means.

Among several African countries
which have banned leg-hold traps, Gam-
bia is among the most vigorous in its
protection of wildlife. Eddie Brewer has
been director of the Wildlife Conserva-
tion Depantment for 21 years. During
that time, he knows of only two leg-hold
traps having entered the country. When
they were discovered, Brewer says, ‘Cus-
toms Officers had them taken out to
sea and dumped.’

‘Since the use of jaw traps has been
banned,” Brewer says, ‘I am not aware
of any serious animal, human-health, or
agricultural problems—or indeed any

problems directly attributed to the ban-

ning of jaw traps. As far as'1 have been
ablc to ascertain, they have ncver been
widely used here and it is refreshing to
learn from almost every person I have
spoken to in rural districts that such
traps are considered excessively cruel.

‘How in Hcaven’s name does any
politician or policy maker have the sheer
cffrontery to condemn human rights
[violations] and ‘injustice,” Brewer asks,
‘when such barbarous cruelty is not only
allowed but actively encouraged by your
Government? Is the lesson never to be
learned? '

‘Were I to be 'granted one wish in my
lifetime,” the wildlife director says, ‘it
would be that ‘the manufacturers and
users of these gruesome devices might be
held by one of them all through a cold
wet night. . . . Possibly they might then
really appreciate just how inhumane they
really are!’ ;

Where the Gambian is ardent, the
Israeli, characteristically, becomes a
master of understatement.

Leg-hold traps are banned in Israel,
according to Avraham Yoffe, director of
the Israeli Nature Reserves Authority,
because they are ‘unsuitable.’

Yoffe notes that the Authority vigor-
ously enforces the law and confiscates all
contraband traps. As characteristic as
their capacity for understatement is the

0x

The Usa‘ied States imported fur
valued at $22 145000 in 1979. Of
“this amount. $11.357,000 came from
countries which have hanned the leg
hold trap; $10,122,000 came from
countries whi_h have not banned leg
hold traps; and $£966,000 from non-
specified countries according to U.S
Department of Commerce documents

Imports from countries banning the
trap are as follows: .

Beakih = ol ot .. $ 220,00
Denmark . ... .0 5 e 99,00(
West Germany ....... 4,894,00(
€77 e T 1,503,00(
Haly .. 000 e 697,00
Netherlands .......... 98,00(
Swedet oo R cieias 139,00(
Switzerland .......... 89.00(
Knited Kingdom ... ... 3,618,00(

Totabsls |00 00 calek $11,357,00(

In 1979, the Uniied States exportec
furs valued at $104,070,000. Of this
$78,617.070 wcnt to eight countrie
which ban the oz-hoild trap; $24,678,
000 went to countries which have nol
banned the lcz-hold; and $775,00(
went to non-specified countries.

Exports to countries banning th
trap are as foliows:

Doamark . 5oL S8 v s $ 223,00
Wost Gerniady ovennn 7,439,00(
Gicece ........ Geadiaso 30,747,00(
Hong Kong ........ . 15,173,000
Tseael o2 &0, o ol s 421,00
By L inay, i SR 7,955,00(
Switze;lind B0 ST 14,3641,00(
United Kingdom ...... 2,295,004

Total ..o, A $78,617,001

Israeli capacity for leaving no stone
turned. ‘There are no serious probl
concerning violation of the ban,” Y
says. ‘From time to time we find phys
evidence of a trap being used, mainly
primitive pcople, and those caught
dealt with sternly. At this point I she
add that we frequently check up
metal workshops and factories, co
cating any leg-hold traps we find the
Yoffe said there have been no he:
agricultural, or economic probl
caused by prohibition of leg-hold tr
and added, ‘there is no doubt that
ban on leg-hold traps has had a benel
effect on human society, and mainl
natural ecosystems in our country.’
Obviously, the American tra
spreads something unlike truth. The
perience of dozens of other countri
many with environmental situa
nearly identical to those found in




poer sets leg-hold near pawprint of
malure raccoon, at right. But

eign markets for gruesome
pping-shack inventory (shown at
ttom left) may soon shrink:

gland, Switzerland, and West
rmany — big buyers of U.S. furs —
2 considering proposals to block
portation of pelts cruelly taken.

iited States-—seems to offer conclusive
idence against the great catastrophies
sphesied by our trappers. Prohibitions

the leg-hold trap did not torpedo the
mish fishing indusiry or poultry busi-
ss. The Germans are not fighting for
cir economic <urvival; the Swiss are
it fighting 10 protect their confederacy’s
iblic health. Tn countries such as Bung-
desh, where public health is a very
ave problem, the leg-hold trup is nat
en as an aid in any way. The same
a¢s for Sweden, which has one of the
nest public health programs in the
orld.

Prchibitions against the leg-hold find
o particular political persuasion fricnd-
er than others. The trap is banned in
apitalist West Germany and communist
'oland. in capitalist Duminican Repub-
c and communist Cuba. Colenial Hong
‘ong, monarchial Jordan, republican
sreece, and socialist Tsrael all ban the
e¢-hold.

ET!E UNITED STATES’ major fur trad-
ing partners are also gencrally in-
ined toward banning leg-hold traps.
Accerding to the U.S. Depuartment of
ommcrce’s Forcign Trade Division, the
ajority of furs imported by the United
ates come from West Germany, Nor-
ay, Sweden, Netherlands, Italy, Brazil,
enmark, Greece, Tsrael, and England.
Each has banned the leg-hold trap.)
his does not necessarily mean that all
rs coming from these countries origi-
ited in them. A West German fur
aler could purchase fox skins from a
viss merchant and then sell them to a
.S. buyer. The Commerce Decpartment
s no means of testing what percentage
"a country’s fur exports originate in that
yuntry (except in the case of species
ted on the Convention on International
rade in Endangered Species of Wild
auna and Flora, which account for a
latively small portion of the interna-
ynal fur trade).

But it can be presumed that many
rs imported into the United States come
rectly from the country of origin; too
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many middiemen increase the price of an
alrcady expensive commodity. The brisk
fur trade done in countries that have
banned leg-holds illusirates the point that
abandoning the trap does not necessarily
mean abandoning the fur trade.

On the other <ide of the ledger, Com-
meree Department statistics also  point
out that the United States exports the
vast majority of its furs to countries
which have banned the leg-hold trap.
Denmark, Greece, Hong Kong, Israel,
Switzerland, Tialy, England, and West
Germany  together buy nearly three-
quarters of all U.S. exported furs—yet
each of these countries has banned leg-
hold traps on grounds of cruelty and
non-selectivity.

From several of these countries now
come demands that the U.S. mend its
ways or peddle its furs elsewhere. In
England, scveral members of Parliament
have been pressured to introduce legis-
lation to block importation of any furs
cruclly taken. In Switzerland, there is a
movement designed to prohibit importa-
tion of any animal products obtained by
methods that violate Swiss law. In West
Germany, the U.S. embassy has been
flooded with protests demanding that we
stop shipping into the Federal Republic
furs of animals caught in leg-hold traps.

(Each of these foreign efforts points to
U.S. law far precedent. For cxample,
the U.S. Marine Mammal Protection Act
embargoes furs taken from Canadian
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harp-seal pups, because it considers the
process of taking those furs to have been
cruel.) 3
Reports from foreign countries confirm
that large parts of the earth get along
rather well without the leg-hold trap. In
some of these countries, trapping animals
for their fur is still an accepted method

of making money. The vitality of these

trapping interests confirms that there are
alternatives to the leg-hold trap. Despite
the claims of many U.S. trappers, stan-
dard box traps are quite effective for
capturing almost any wild mammal.
Our trappers commonly complain that
box traps might be effective in capturing
raccoon and opossum, but are useless for
capturing canids, especially foxes. How-
ever, the U.S. Center for Disease Control
uses only box traps as a matter of policy:
In recent years they have trapped hun-
dreds of foxes, from Georgia to Alaska, '

with box traps manufactured by the!
Tomahawk Live Trap Company. The; :

foxes were trapped in connection
rabies studies. Sy
Evidence from abroad ultimately sug-
gests only one thing about our home-:
grown trappers: They resist a ban on
leg-hold traps not from fear of endanger-
ing public health, or American agricul-i
ture, or our foreign trade. Pious pro-
nouncements aside, they resist because
a ban on leg-holds would mean they must,
invest in new kinds of traps, traps which
would cost them a few dollars more.
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NEW JERSEY TRAPPERS ASSOCIATION, Inc.

Established October, 1961
Affilioted with National Trappers Association of America
VOICE OF THE TRAPPER - MUTUAL BENEFIT

A STATEMENT BY JAMES DeSTEPHANO

TO KEEP THE LEGHOLD TRAP IN THE STATE OF NEW JERSEY

SUBMITTED

SEPTEMBER 14, 1983

Help perpetuate the Nation’s oldest industry, the “Fur Trade”
by buying, selling, and wearing “North Americon Produced Furs.”
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This is a statement against the passage of_A-3207/S—1575,
a bill to ban the use or possession of the leghold trap.

Since I have trapped for the last 27 years off and on,
when the leghold was the only trap available, and later when
other types were developed, I feel I am fairly knowledgeable
on the apnlications of the leghold trap. "

I know the leghold trav is the most efficent and in some
casas the only means available to catch animals in the wild.

But there are peovle present who are more knowledgeable
on this and I will leave the justifications for using the leg-
hold trao to them.

Since I have been involved in the fur sales run by the
New Jersey Trappers Association for the last 6 years, I know
the economic value both to the state and to the individual
tranner. \

Tirst of all each trapper spends approximately $200.00 a
year »n traps, lures, baits, etc. This generates $12.00 per
trapper »r $60,000,00 per year in sales tax on supplies alone.
This 1is without the day to day expenses like gas, vehicles,
boats, licenses, etc. But these figures are not as important
as the sales of raw fur, |

Since the New Jersey Trapoers Association started their
sales the figures are:

1979 $137,994

1980 113,647

1981 89,220

1982 129,633
"This is the total of %$470,494 in sales divided amongst approx-
imately 125 trappers. or $940.99 per trapper per year. This
figure multiplied by aopfoximately 5,000 trappers results in
24,725,000 ver year in income to the trappers.

This is snlit between the December sale, when money for
Christmas, and the March sales when most people need extra
money to eover bills accumulated during the winter when heat-
ing bills eat un most extra cash.

By eliminating the leghold trap the largest part of this

extra money wiil be removed from the neosple who need it most,
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- At this time when jobs and industry are fleeing New Jersey
in droves, to eliminate this seasonal source of income would
out. another strain on a population already struggling to sur-

vive the high tax rate and day to day bills of living in New

Jersey.
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I have always believed that when your feelings about
something, whatever it may be, are strong enough to dominate
your thoughts, and the actions they spur then dominate your
time, it's important to write them down. The length of the work,
or whether you choose to share it with anyone, is not impor-
tant. What is important, at least to me, is having a written
creed about which you can say, "This is me. This is what I
believe." The following is me, and it expresses what I believe.

While the current situation in New Jersey, revolving
around Senéte Bill S3207, is what finally prompted me to
put my thoughts down on paper, the feelings aroused in me
by this bill extend far beyond its limits. They involve
beliefs in basic rights and freedoms which I have held all
of my life, and which would be denied by this legislation
proposed in ignorance of both man and nature.

Everyone is entitled to opinions on any given subject.
But some of those opinions, I believe, hold more weight
than others due to the greater knowledge of some people about
that subject. For instance, you might listen to a dozen
suggestions on how to fix a leaky pipe, but it's the plumber's
you'll follow because he knows more about fixing pipes than
your family and friends. Yet in the case of Senate Bill S$3207,
whose directions may We be forced to follow? Those of trap-
pers and hunters who understand the balance of nature and
respect the environment? I don't think so. I don't think I
know best, either, but as one who has trapped, fished,
hunted and studied nature firsthand all of my life, I do
think I know better than some._ AT

Because I strongly oppose 7, ‘it has been implied
that my views on trapping indicate a cruel, inhumane attitude
toward other living creatures. This is so far from the truth
as to be ridiculous. I oppose the bill because I am a trapper.
I have seen the damage animals have done themselves trying to
escape leg hold traps. I have also seen the often greater
damage they do in the readily accepted, "humane" box trap.

And I have seen what happens to animals trapped by alterna-
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tive methods, including'SnareSy body grippers, and killer traps.
It is precisely bécaﬁse I have seen each of these situations,
:notrmerely read ;about ;them or heard them described by others

whO'Oftenihave'ﬁot themselves even seen what I have, that I

believe my thoughts on this subject to be waluable. ‘

But, as I have said, trapping is not the issue. Freedom
is the issue. Somewhere, priorities have become confused.

It seems that some people prefer to consider the rights of
animals before those of man. These same people, it 'seems,
cannot understand that as more and more people move from
urban to rural areas, to "get back to nature," they build
‘houses, condos, roads and shopping centers to the point where
that area looks much like the one from which they came. In so
doing, they destroy the homes and feeding grounds of count-
less :animals, who are then forced to live in ‘closer proximity
to man.

Many of these animals then look to man, his property
and his refuse, for food. Racoons, for example, may become
merely :a backyard nuisance, toppling garbage cans and making
a mess, or .a backyard peril, preying on livestock -and
-domestic animals, attacking .a child who has cornered it,
thinking it cute and cuddly, a potential pet.

‘These and other small predatory animals themselves have
no natural preaators. They continue to multiply. Their right
to destroy private property is protected, our right to
protect that property from them is denied. There is no way
to control‘thisjproblem‘wrthout trapping. But some people
confuse the need for controlled trappingbwith a desire ‘to
painfully wipe out entire animal populations for sport or profit.
_ I cannot deny that poor trappers exist and will ‘continue
to trap, just .as poor drivers will .continue to drive. Would
those who suggest abolishing trapping also suggest forbid-
ding -everyone to drive based on the poér;performance.fecords
of a few? Poor trappers, like driwvers, are few. But because
their irresponsibility is easily sensationalized, ‘the
majority is forced to share the blame. I recently interviewed

fifteen veterinarians in ‘the .area in which I live. ‘Only :one
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was opposed tb the leg hold trap. And in one year, the
greatest number of limb amputations involving trapped
domestic animals per vet was three, and in every case but

one, the animal ran large and was not on its owner's property.
So, in all these cases, one incidence of trapping irresponsi-
bility. Tragic, yes. But enough to forbid trapping? No.

If, as in the case of domestic animals which have
caused damage, an owner could be contacted and forced to
keep his animal at home, and could be held accountable for
damages, trapping would, perhaps, be less necessary. But
no owner can be contacted when racoons destroy private property.
The only possible confrontation is between man and racoon,
not man and man. If S3207 becomes law, the racoon is assured
victory.

But what about the current threat of rabies spreading
east into New Jersey from Pennsylvania? Will it take a few
bitten children to convince people that there is a need to
control the animal population by trapping? It shouldn't take
a rabies scare to prove the need for control, but it seems
that that is exactly what it will take. ‘

I do not advocate indiscriminate trapping. Like lawyers,
doctors and plumbers, trappers should be skilled profession-
als trained in their field as other professionals are trained
in theirs. We must learn to drive. We study laws, rules,
and the operation of different vehicles. We are licensed.

I would suggest similar requirements for trappers and trap-
ping. The need for controlled trapping undeniabl? exists
and with it the need for skilled trappers.

As a boy, I had the opportunity to play organized sports,
which I did and enjoyed. But it was not on the baseball
diamond or the football field that I was most at home. It
was in the fields, the woods, the streams. It is in my blood
to hunt, to trap, to fish. Because I have spent my life
observing nature, I understand its balances, including its
excesses. My only desire is to preserve the balance, not to
destroy life, certainly not to torture animals.

I have spent many hours away froﬁ h@me} enjoying a good
hunt. Lately, I have spent a great deal of time both on the

phone and away from home, working to stop passage of 83207.
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For ‘their uncomplaining understanding, for their patience
and :support, I thank Sue and Kim, my wife and daughter. And
‘for 'his -encouragement to pursue what I believe is right,

with an -open mind and heart, T thank my friend ‘Donald Pepper.

Paul Wermuth }
Bernardsviille, New .Jersey
July, 1983
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My name 1s Peter Plage. I am a member of the executive council of
the New Jersey Chapter of The Wildlife Society. I am here today
représenting the New Jersey Chapter and the parent organization.

The Wildlife Society is an international non-profit organization
comprised of professionals serving the resource management fields,
especially wildlife ecology and managemeht. Our society has over
8,000 members residing in over 40 countries. The principle objec-
tives of the society are 1.) to develop and promote sound stewardship
of wildlife resources and the environments upon which wildlife and
humans depend; 2.) to undertake an active role in preventing human-
induced environmental degradation; 3.) to increase awareness and
appreciation of wildlife values; and 4.) to seek the highest standards
in all activities of the wildlife profession. '

The Wildlife Society is dedicated to the wise management and conser-
vation of wildlife. Within this framework, we support the most
efficient and appropriate techniques available to accomplish specific
management goals. Trapping with steel traps has been used for
centuries to harvest wildlife and to reduce animal damage. Today,
trapping remains an effective, economical, and ecologically sound
-method of harvesting or controlling certain species of wildlife.

We recognize the need for trapping regulations to accomplish specified
kmanagement objectives, to assure that humane techniques are used,

and to protect non-target species.
The policy of The Wildlife Society in regard to trapping, is to:

1.) Recognize that trapping can be used effectively to take certain
animals without impairing the well-being of that species.
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2.) Recognize that frapping has been and currently is a successful
technique for capturing animals for specific purposes.

3.) Encourage resource agencies to ensure that trapping is permitted
in concert with sound stewardship of wildlife.

L4.)Recognize that the steel leghold trap represents an effective,
pracical means for capturing certain species of wildlife, and,
_simultanebusly, to lessen the impact on non-target species, encourage
the development of improVed traps, better trapping techniques, and
effective alternate methods of taking animals.

5.) Promote and -encourage development of new approaches for improving
“decisions affecting the biological and social impacts of trapping.

J0x



THE NEED FOR HARVEST: A PARALLEL

By Jim Pedersen
Copyright,1983
Life is a flowing thing. Just as in a stream where one
molecule or ounce of water is replaced by another, one .individ-
ual animal is replaced by another. Just as streams flood or dry
up, animal pooulations overpopulate or become scarce. A stream
has banks as its limits. Populations are limited by the "carry-
ing capacity" of the environment. Carrying capacity is the num-
ber of animals that can fill their needs (food, cover, water, |
denning sites, etc.) in a given area. That is, the area will
"carry" or support that many animals.
Streams are dammed to regulate floods and drought. If no
outlet is provided, the stream will overflow and wash away the:
“dam, resulting in a flood, then drought. ,
By harvesting animal populations, they are deterred from over-

vopulating and destroying the carrying capacity of their range (home

area). When populations are too big, they will eat all the food,
-leaving nothing to produce next years food. The result is that
no species can live where one species depleted the area.

Just as a flooded stream causes problems other than washing
away dams, overpooulation causes disease (rabies, sarcoptic mange,
distemper, tuleremia, etc.), animal damage to crops, pets and
property.

When floods occur, bailing is not the only suitable response.
Levees are built up to lessen the incoming water, Goods are moved
out of the reach of the water.

When disease occurs, catching the sick animals is not the only
suitable action. By reducing the population, the cause of the
disease is removed, and the chance for the disease to spread is
lessened.

Some ponds (dammed streams) are used for récreation, some for
drinking water, some for power production, but they still regulate
flood and drought.

The harvesting of wildlife is done for recreation, for food,
for fur, etc., but it accomplishes effective wildlife management.
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THE USE OF THE FOOT-HOLD TRAP: A PERSPECTIVE

No invention of man is Withoui potential for abuse or misuse. .
Automobiles are driven reckleésly and dangerously. They are used
in the commission of crimes. Knives have been used to kill and
maim people. The list could go on forever. |

Nobody wishes to live without these devices because the need
for them is generally understood. '

Automobiles are the best general transportation device known.;_
‘There are other means of transportation but they don't answer the
needs as well in most cases. Bicycles are cheaper but of limited
range and speed. Buses carry more people but don't go everywhere,
Horses need too much care and room and are too slow. The altern-
atives have use but are not quite as practical in'most‘situations.A

In order to harvest wildlife, many methods are used. Some :
sne01es can be effectlvely hunted. Others are seen too rarely‘to7j
be hunted $o0 they must be trapped. Some individuals live in sit--
uations where hunting is not practical and must be trapped.

The foot-hold (1eg-hold) trap is the most versatile, practical
and effective trap known. There are alternatives but they don't
answer the needs well; in most cases. Conibears are too dangerous
where pets are encountered, and ineffective on certain species.
Snares requlre very specific conditions. Box or cage traps are too
big and heavy to carry any distance, and are ineffective on cer- v
tain species. The foot-hold trap can be used on all species that
are trapped and can be used in most situations. Unwanted, non-tar-
get catches can be released alive and unharmed. |

‘Automobiles kill thousands of people each year. Thousands more
are maimed. Foot-hold traps have never killed anybody. Nobody has
been crippled by any foot-hold that may7bevused in New JerSey.
Automobiles destroy thousands of animals each year. The animals
‘seen dead aiong the road were the lucky ones; they died quickly.
‘Many suffer for weeks and months ‘before dying. 'Trappedianimals‘aré
killed quickly. | |

Nobody is trying to ban automobiles, despite the :damage they do,
because the need for them is understood. Any slight damage attrib-
,uted‘to_foot—hold traps is'negligiblelwheﬁ the need for them is
understood, especially when viewed in the light of what we accept
from automobiles.
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It’s bard, isn't it, 10 call such killing “kind™ — but it's
vetter then sllowing the poor ereature to flop up and down
entil i fmally gasps out its life. . :

Whea we find waye of having fun that do not cause pain
and desth to smy other living beings, we'll all be happier!
In the meantime —

HOW WOULD YU LIXE TO BE A FISH?

e

* 1 go s-gunning but take no gum;
I fish without a pole;
And I bag good game and catch such fish
 As ouit 8 sporizman’s soul.
For the choicest game that the forest holds
And the best fish in the brook
Are never brought down by a rifle shot
And pever are caught with a hook.

.. A rodless Walton of the brooks,
A bloodless sportaman I;
1 bunt for the thoughts that throng the weods,
The dreams that haunt the eky.

—Saps Warzer Foss

. . . , ' Prepared fos The Kindness Club
Kindness in Nature's Defense by Hope Sawyer Buyukmihel
The Kindnews Club (ages 6-10), DEF ENDERS (;395 11-14), EcoloKIND (ages 15-18)

THE NATIONAL HUMANE EDUCATION CENTER L

Write: KIND, Waterford, Va. 22190
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A FISH is o little animal like you except thet to him
water is like air to ue

Omes two Gmme men were waiching some fish. “Lock
bow happily the fish are jumping in the water,” said Chusng
Too. “That i the fisk'e joy.*

Hui Toe esid, “How can you know the fish's joy?”

“I know the fish's joy from my joy when I wateh them
from the bridge,” eaid Chuang Tee.

Whea we sce someoue riding 8 new bicycle, we know just

bow he fecls. When we see a person stub his toe or eut his

finger, we know how thet feels t00. If we put oureelves in
the place of eny living cresture, and use our imaginstion, we
know how he feels, even if he doemn’t look just like usf

Of course s fish has feelings 100. Modern ecientists stress

this fact. A fish likes to live. He likes to jump and play just
8s we do whiem we feel heppy.

When o fish is caught on a cruel hook, he tries desperately

to get away. He jo fighting for bis life. Is it sporting for s big

being t0 laugh end esll she¢ fun?

 When they've begun to THINK, many grown-upw <
‘used 1o ﬁs‘h-.’iha;v,e- given it-up, and- now instead of killing, they.

find fun in studying fish just as Chuang Tae did.

In clear water much can be learned by watching fish from
sbove. Those who swim under water are able to look through -
a window in their hcnﬂggg_r end study them in their homes,
disturbing them ag little as possible of course.

- i you know people who just won't give
'up fishing even when you tell them it's not
right to kill anything “just for fun”, esk them
to use artificial flies instead of living worms,
who have feelings & 5 And beg them to put
Ihe fish beck in d"‘?‘m‘ or at the very Bea'ﬂ‘
to kill it AT ONCE.

To kill & fish etrike it on the head with a
stick or 2 beach rock to put it out of iws
misery as quickly ss possible. Or, put your
thumb in its mouth and bend its head back-

 wards, thus breaking ‘its neck.




More than 60 species of wildlife have been
studied.

of its record.

.28 M.S. Degrees and 8 Ph.D. Degrees
have been earned by graduate students
affiliated with SCWDS.

...Graduate level courses in wildlife
diseases have been offered by SCWDS staff
each summer since 1963.

...By special enrollment, veterinary
students from accredited colleges may spend a
one-month internship at SCWDS.

...SCWDS offers in-depth training sessions
for personnel of state and federal wildlife
agencies and diagnosticians of
APHIS/USDA.

Dr. Frank Hayes (far left), SCWDS Director, and
Bob Ellis (green cap), Florida Wildlife Biologist,

tnvolved (n news conference durtng Everglades

deercrlsls

The collective activities of SCWDS have
resulted in publication of more than 200
articles in numerous scientific journals,
symposia, and books. Diseases and Parasites of
White-tailed Deer, a book edited by SCWDS
personnel, further establishes SCWDS as a
reference center for information on diseases
and parasites of this nation’s number one big
game animal.

With more than 25 years’ experience,
SCWDS provides unparalleled expertise
pertaining to wildlife diseases. Dr. Frank A.
Hayes, SCWDS Director, and other staff
members have provided expert advice on
numerous occasions to state wildlife agencies,
the International Association of Fish and
Wildlife Agencies, the U.S. Animal Health
Association, and Emergency Programs of
Veterinary Services, APHIS, USDA. Since
1975, Dr. Hayes has represented wildlife
interests on the Secretary of Agriculture’s
Advisory Committee on Foreign Animal and
Poultry Diseases.

The Southeastern Cooperative Wildlife
Disease Study is today what its founders had
hoped it would be...an action-oriented
cooperative agency providing continuous
service for the welfare of this nation’s wildlife
resources, domestic livestock interests, and
human health.

... Publication of this brochure was funded in part

. through the courtesy of Conoco, Inc.’s Financial Atd

to Education Program, Stamford, CT.

THE

COOPERATIVE

APPROACH

7

---For a quarter of a century it has
contrlbubed to the betterment of this
nation’s irreplaceable wildlife
resources, its multl-blllmn dollar
livestock econom and its

~unsurpassed public healtl programs.



THE COOPERATIVE APPROACH

The state-federal cooperative structure of
the Southeastern Cooperative Wildlife Disease
Study (SCWDS) is the most cost-efficient
means of providing high quality wildlife
disease expertise to State and Federal
Agencies responsible for this nation’s wildlife
and domestic livestock resources. By sharing
facilities, vehicles, scientific equipment,
salaries, and other costs, each sponsoring
agency has access to wildlife disease
capabilities far more sophisticated and
responsive than could be afforded
individually. The SCWDS program does not
duplicate the efforts of any existing State or
Federal Laboratory or Agency but, instead,
provides services of scope and quality that
otherwise would not be available.

The state wildlife agencies of 13
southeastern states and the Fish and Wildlife
Service of the U.S. Department of the Interior
(USDI) fund regional wildlife research and
service projects. SCWDS also is supported by
Veterinary Services of the Animal and Plant
Health Inspection Service (APHIS), U.S.
Department of Agriculture (USDA), for
wildlife surveillance on a national and
international basis where diseases may

. SCWDS Biologists, assisted by Haitian Techni-
clans tratned by SCWDS, collected blood sam-
ples from more than 1,600 swine throughout

Haitt to determine the dlstrlbutlon qf African

, Swine Fever.
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interact among wildlife, domestic livestock,
and poultry.

In addition to the financial benefits of a
cooperative approach, there are numerous
other points of consideration. Wildlife disease

problems are of mutual concern to a variety of

people...wildlife managers, outdoor
recreationists, farmers, landowners,
veterinarians, and physicians. SCWDS serves
as common ground where wildlife experts
work hand-in-hand with private, state, and
fedenl authorxtles toward a common g'oal
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HISTORY

The Southeastern Cooperative Wildlife
Disease Study was founded in 1957 by the
Southeastern Association of Fish and Wildlife
Agencies todetermine the cause of widespread
die-offs of white-tailed deer. Headquarters
and support facilities were made available
through agreement with The University of
Georgia's College of Veterinary Medicine in
Athens, Georgia. This became the first
diagnostic and research service to be
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investigating wildlife diseases. -

Prior to inception of SCWDS, knowledge of
wildlife diseases in the Southeast was almost
nonexistent. Sickness or death among wild
animals spawned speculations, accusations,
and wild myths, particularly when domestic
livestock were nearby. Shortly after its
formation, SCWDS began to provide answers
to many long-standing questions. The obvious
utility of the new information attracted
immediate attention, and state wildlife agency
funding was soon followed by annual USDI-
administered grants and later by USDA
support. Thus, SCWDS grew from a small
project with one mission to a versatile,
multipurpose wildlife disease research and
service organization.

VYA

A large percentage of SCWDS’ workload invol-
ves white-talled deer — the number one big
game animal in the United States.

MISSION

The objectives of SCWDS always have been
to:
..detect causes of sickness and death in
wﬂdhfe,
...define the impact of diseases and
paraswes upon wild animal populations;
...delineate disease interrelationships
between wildlife and domestic livestock;
...determine . the role of w11d11fe in

transmxssnon of human dlmaws IREER

fe.
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During the past quarter century, SCWDS
has investigated thousands of cases of sick and
dying wild animals involving more than 60
different species of mammals, birds, reptiles,
and amphibians. These experiences have led to
a broad base of expertise and have revealed
those recurring disease problems that are
important in each wildlife species. Available
through association with The University of
Georgia is a full spectrum of diagnostic
laboratory facilities. Specialized diagnostic
tests also are provided through support by the
National Veterinary Services Laboratories,
APHIS, USDA.

Veterinarians from the U.S. Department of Ag-
riculture and the U.S. Army Veterinary Corps
Join a SCWDS Veterinarian in the postmortem
examination of a deer.

RESEARCH

Research accomplishments of SCWDS
have been recognized nationally and
internationally. The parasites and diseases
affecting every major resident game mammal

" ‘and upland gamebmi in the southeastern U. S

problems that appear durmg basic surveys,
diagnostic activities, or field investigations
have become topics for more in-depth study.

Results of these studies have extensive
practical application in wildlife management,
domestic livestock and poultry production,
and public health policy.

Some examples...

..Hemorrhagic disease of white-tailed
deer is the major cause of large-scale sporadic
deer die-offs in the Southeast.

...Brucellosis and leptospirosis,
important cattle diseases, are not spread by
white-tailed deer in the Southeast.

..Toxoplasmosis, infective to humans, is
harbored by white-tailed deer, but the risk of
infection from venison is probably no greater
than from beef, pork, or lamb.

...Deer management in the Southeast is
greatly enhanced through herd healt!
monitoring procedures developed by SCWD-

...Certain foreign zame birdssi. udw ¢
be introduced because they harbsr ¢lzeascs
fatal to native game bird populations.

..Introduction of elk or mule deer is
futile in most southeastern areas because
white-tailed deer harbor a parasite that can
gradually paralyze most other deer species.

..Wild swine populations throustioat ' ¢
southeastern United States frequen. ; hartur
important swine diseases such as - aeallos:
and pseudorabies.

...Interstate translocation of r :coons s
a questionable practice because o! infestic
diseases such as rabies, parvovirus, and canin
distemper.

FIELD OPERATIONS

With the multitude of wildlife disease
problems confronting the U.S., diagnostic
abilities and research programs must be
supported by quality field capabilities.
SCWDS maintains a “strike force” of
personnel able to move rapidly to any troubled
area and quickly assess the situation. The

" cooperative support from state and federal

wildlife organizations allows immediate

. coordination of resources of all agencies
mvolved e o d"
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An excellent example of a critical need for

-field capability occurred during the Exotic -

Newecastle Disease Eradication Program of
1972-1974. At that time, a highly contagious

foreign virus threatened the poultry .
industries in California, Florida, Texas, and °

ultimately, the nation. Disease eradication
was initiated by Emergency Programs of
USDA, but many poultry disease authorities
believed that wild birds were saturated with
virus and eradication was hopeless. SCWDS
assumed responsibility for assessing wild
animal involvement, and massive cooperative
efforts soon showed that wildlife were not
involved in maintenance of the disease. With
renewed public support, the eradication
program vaulted forward. Eradication by
depopulating infected poultry was
accomplished, and consumers of poultry
products were spared having to spend an
additional $230 million per year.

Long-term studies on bobwhite qualil are an im-
portant part of SCWDS' gamebird research.

Other examples...

..Anaplasmosis, a scourge of southeastern
- cattle producers, had been blamed on white-
tailed deer. Investigations by SCWDS
. prevented wholesale slaughter of deer by
_.demonstrating that even those deer grazing

r0ad of anaplasmosxs.

.

' infected cattle played no part in the

...Cattle Fever Tick eradication in Florida
in the 1930s and 1940s involved killing more
than 20,000 white-tailed deer. SCWDS
research later documented that eradication of
the tick in other areas could be accomplished
gy dipping ®attle without the need to kill all

eer.

..Anthrax, transmissible to humans, was
spreading death among deer and livestock
along the Mississippi River. A SCWDS field
team diagnosed the problem which was
confirmed by the Mississippi State Diagnostic
Laboratory. This prompted vaccination of
livestock and implementation of public health
precautions.

...Deaths of Young Herons and Egrets
annually inflicted a heavy toll on the largest
wading bird colony in the Northeast.

Non-game specles such as the Eastern Brown

‘Peucan receive prtortty when pmblems arise.

" Biologists from SCWDS and the Manomet
" Bird Observatory discovered that the culprit

was a parasite transmitted in fish being eaten
by the birds.

...Bovine Tuberculesis, a recurring
problem in cattle herds in Edmonson County,
Kentucky, was blamed on the white-tailed
deer in the Mammoth Cave National Park. A
cooperative investigation by the Kentucky
Department of Fish and Wildlife Resources,
USDA, and SCWDS demonstrated that white-
tailed deer were not involved as reservoirs or
disseminators of the disease.

...Mysterious Deer Deaths at Randle Cliff
Naval Research Laboratory, Maryland, were
being blamed on poisoning by polychlorinated
biphenyl chemicals (PCBs) which were stored
on the area. SCWDS staff joined with
Maryland Wildlife Administration personnel
to make a field diagnosis of hemorrhagic
disease, which was confirmed by virus
isolation from tissues sent to USDA’s National
}l’eterinary Services Laboratories in Ames,

owa.

Temporary laboratory factlities must have the
minimum requirements — a table, electricity,
and running water.

INSTRUCTION

SCWDS places a high value on its
gducatmnal program and is Justxfxably proud
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dog she has ever treated. So w‘zen I hea:d her o,ngxﬁshaa cries, I mw;!‘j'

she was suffering severe pain.

front toes wvere tightly clamped in a- steel 1&% lif"; »ap

viclent efforis to jerk free were exacerbating her ﬂui:m Itr was apptrﬂ&t

¥ 2 [

that, 12 T, did ‘not relee,se her q_u:.ckly, she would tuslduqte a.'!.l of her

toes. Ye+ T could r not do this, for the dog wa.s y':
the “rap with such violence I didn't dm ‘try to pu.L

the %ightly sprung dev:.ce would be jerksd from my }&mf

&t the top of W;;'_ :

*

on the animal's slready ...nh*red pw. I called for' 8

o

lungs. F‘or+unately, e neighbor hea.rd me and cm.minsg ‘},"I‘ogethcr'we
relessed the dog; I held Zoe tightly to mstmtm, her, while he, needing S

both hands to do S0, opened the trap. Because w'e"nmagea to relea.se the :

¢eg within minutes of her becoming tra,pped, she' M&ined ho permanen. "‘,
eripoling.. Fad I not been present to reatrain her fmh a&.,f in.jury, ¥

hewever, she ccortainly would have .dislocated all o!' her 'coea

My neighhor's cat was not so lucky as Zoe. She 'diqawd in m:.d-. '. A ’

winter and when a two day search failed 4o turn up’ ‘bhq;.m;ﬂing animel, - .

my neighbor. Mr. Thomes Wagner, presumsd his pet.wa;’dddﬂﬁ,*pn the third

8

day, however, pitiful mews were m&wﬁ 'thn eat wgg rered caught : e
by a hiné ‘eg in a etee" Je:wed 1em3,d ‘brap. 'L‘hh;umﬂ m in terv-*bla

w.

. s g‘x«“ .'
vtéfﬁo wputated.

1

Today that cat hobbles. about on ite three remainin_g legs tgnd cannot he

‘condition. Her leg had frozen a.nd., ﬂtiaatd;hm

allowed outsice, for it no longer is .i,hq_?;;t,e +o profecg# i*tnself from dogs by

ruoming up a “ree.
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Two other dogs in this présmbly‘proteﬁted Vtﬁers‘!ed area ha.ve

alsq been caugiit in steel jawed leghold ,traps. One a éalm&uan puppy

who's bone wvere still soft, eui'fered permanent crlup..ihs. -'E‘he‘ other,

a full grown Norwegian F"‘Ir‘\ound, recov@ered Tl use o~ L leg bu* suﬂ'ered

_ These incidents point up a number of misconceptions commonly held :

regarding the leghold trap. One; the weight of a t;-e.yz_'»does not m:z.t-f
self determine the extent of damage it can inflict. ' The normal reaction

of a t’remved enimal is to try to escape. My dog waa caught in a tra.p set

for smell animels but would have dislqcsted het v in- s,!xort order had SR

I not been opresent to prevent her from d.oins ab.
their terth chewing on %trave in an efﬁoﬂ‘. 0o rnlq%

have seen and pho’cographeﬁ wild animls nmlr cayxotes %’hat have ﬂhmd

Lk B
k2 ’:L SN

off a ler to escape from a trap. . Final y, 'nany
raws in order to free themselves.
having dome just that. Two: traps are not s.lwa:s P

places. Yo cne's pet is safe from thgse ‘ba.r'baric d,e ices. Tireer traﬁpbinp»

regulations are not r.lways obsprved.. ,Ncne of the '!:;»hps Wcmbed above were

marked with Identificetion ta.gs ag is rer‘u..red bm

e ch\'
cut-of-rea~on. ALl were pla.ced on prd.va. e posted lam‘.. s
bk ®
To obtain some idea of the incidence of ari’epling of wild am.me.ls

caught by “he steel jJawed leghold ‘crap, T would li@a &1’ your attent*m g

ol

t0 a four year study conducted on,; the Wheeler

‘A_gabama by Thomas Atamson ‘and published in the Jouxnal‘éf’ Wildd,fe
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Eighteen trap permits were issued to local citizens who trapped from the
beginning of the fur season in late November until the end of the season
in late February. The most common trap used by these people was the long-
spring size 1i although some No 3 and No 1 traps were used, as well as
coil spring, long spring, jump, single Jaw, double jaw and high grip. One
stipulation was made: the men granted permits to trap on the Refuge
were required to report all crippling that resulted. For purposes of the
study this would include all animals that had pulled out of traps by wringing
off or gnawing off feet. The following information resulted:

1) 209 mink were caught during the four year study; an additional

79 were crippled (27.6%).

2) The raccoon catch was 429; an additional 137 raccoons were

crippled (2u4%).
3) 962 opossums were trapped; 19 were crippled. This lower
incidence is likely due to the docile nature of this animal.
4) There were 196 foxes (red and gray) trapped; 69 additional
foxes were crippled (26%).
Since the study covered a four-year-period and involved individuals
with varied degrees of trapping skill using a variety of trap sizes
and types and experiencing all kinds of weather conditions, the percentages
here should give a good indication of the extent of this problem.
| Undoubtedly, all of you are aware that, over the past years, the

New Jersey Division of Fish, Game and Wildlife has been making an effort

to reintroduce the bobcat to the state.

S y
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Why the indiginous bobcat became extinct here during the 1960s
cannot be known for certain, but rampant trapping cannot be excluded
from the list of probable carses. No animal is so vulnerable to trapping
as is the bobcat. During 1978, 1979 and 1980 I tracked bobcats in Arizona,
Florida, California and Idaho in order to observe this species' behavior.
Afterwards I wrote two books on the subject published by Viking Press and
Putnam's respectively.

I am not the first person to note the bobcat's vulnerability to
the steel jawed leghold trap. Like all cats, the bobcat is a curious animal

and will play with every unusual object it chances upon in its travels,

even a leghold trap. When it comes to trapping bobcats, it is not even

a matter of much importance that bait be used. A bobcat often manages

to get itself caught anyway. In years past, before the price of bobcat fur
soared, trappers used to complain about the number of unwanted bobcats

they found in traps tl.:y had baited for other species. As a result of its
proclivity for getting itself caught, the bobcat has disappeared from

wide swaths of its once widespread range. Bearing this in mind, it would

seem an exercise in folly for the New Jersey Division of Fish, :Game and Wildlife
to coﬁtinﬁe to introduce bobcats into this state on one hand while promoting

the use of leghold traps on the other.

The bobcat is not the only species that New Jersey is trying to restore
to the state. Efforts are underway to protect and promote a remnant eagle
population. For this reason, I believe, it is relevant that I describe my
experiences observing eagles in the state of Minnesota last summer while

writing a cover story for GEO magazine.

#“lx
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While on this assignment I visited the University of Minnesota
Raptor Research and Rehabilitation Center, where I was shown a drawerful
of eagle feet---thirty in all---that had been amputated from birds injured
by leghold traps. Of the 237 bald eagles that have been brought to this
clinic for treatment since it opened, 59 or 24% have been victims of
the leghold trap. The veterinarian in charge, Dr. Patrick Redig, expressed
the opinion that these trap casualties represented only the tip of the
iceberg. Most trappers, he said, would be too ashamed to bring in a bald
eagle caught in one of their traps and likely would turn the bird loose
without benefit of medical treatment. Such untreated birds, he stressed,
would stand little or no chance of surviving. Redig's experienceiﬁreating
59 trap-injured bald eagles clearly demonstrates that even those Qirds whose
traumas appear to be slight steadily worsen. Tissue damage causeé by lack
of circulation below the point of trap constriction almost inevitably
results in the death of the leg. Redig took me on a tour of the bird wards
and showed me a number of one-legged eagles which could never be released,
for eagles need their feet to kill food.

Some of these amputees, it was hoped, might help in the endangered bald
eagle recover program by providing eggs or chicks to be placed in wild eagle
nests. I am sure you are aware that one such chick was placed in a wild
eagle nest here in New Jersey. It would seem the ultimate irony if the
end result of all this rehabilitation effort, namely a foster chick, would

itself become a casualty of the steel jawed leghold trap.

£ x
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While at the Raptor Rehab Center, I saw a screech owl brought in
with both legs chopped off by a leghold trap. That bird was immediately ntas
‘,euthanized.
Dr. Redig named the species that have been brought to his avian
clinic with severe trap injuries, a total of 300 birds. These are: the barred
owl, the great horned owl, the red tail hawk, the rough legged hawk, the
goshawk, the screech owl, the broad winged hawk, the golden eagle and
the bald eagle.
It would seem evident that New Jersey's efforts to restore the
eagle to its f@rmer place in the state is being compromised, if not
. doomed to failure, by the continued presence of leghold traps.
The above descriptions are but a few of the experiences I have had

in the fifteen years I have studied wildlife. During this time I have

' become convinced that the leghold trap is a device that ought have no place

- in responsibleé stewardship of wildlife. What few laws are in place to

regulate this sb—called sport have proved useless. It is time to get rid
of the device altogether for it is inherently cruel and non-selective.
To what extent the leghold trap has impacted threatened and endangered
specie; will never be known. These unwanted victims are an embarrassment
and are not reported.

Most nations now recognize the truth about trapping. Fifty countries
and one state (Rhode Island) no longer permit use of the leghold trap,
: holding it to be a non-selective, ecologically damaging device that inflicts

unnecessary suffering on animals. It is past time that we in the United States

Sy
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follow the lead of Burundi, Equatorial Guinea, Gabon, Gambia, Ghana, the
Ivory Coast, Kenya, Liberia, Mali, Mauritania, Morocco, Rhodesia, Senegal,
Swaziland, Tanzania, Togo, Tunisia, Uganda and the Upper Volta, which

countries have banned every form of trapping. At the very least we must

take note of the countries that no longer permit the use of the leghold-
trap and join their runks. These countries are: Austria, Bangladesh,
Belize, Brazil, British West Indies, Chile, Columbia, Costa Rica, Deﬁmark,
the Federal Republic of Germany, Great Britain, Hong Kong,-Hungary, India,
the;Republic of Ireland, Israel, Jamaica, Jordon, Malawi, Malaysia,
Moz;mbique, Niger, Norway, Portugal, Seychelles Islands, Singapore,
Sweden, Switzerland, Trinidad and Tobago.

’I urge that New Jersey join these enlightened nations and go 6h record
as the second state in the union to ban the cruei and ﬁon—selective steel

jawed leghold trap.

Thank you for allowing me the opportunity to speak to you today.




STATEMENT OF FLOYD KUCHARSKI, HUNTER, IN SUPPORT OF A BAN ON THE LEGHOLD TRAP
201-254-1939 : '

My name is Floyd Kucharski. I am president of the New Jersey Hound Association.
I am a licensed hunter and a former trapper. 1 .appreciate this opportunity ‘to
‘represent hunters and their grievances about the loss and maiming of their hunting
dogs by leghold and killer-type traps.

: Steel jaw 1eghold traps and hunting dogs don't mix. Leghold traps were ‘barred
-~ in upland situations until the mughes administration. Now, for no reason, they are
allowed. '

The .leghold trap is unbelievably cruel_and:indiscrimate’and'catches-anyvanima1'
that touches the pan. The trap does not ask "What am I supposed ‘to catch?"

“The reason killer traps, the Conibear, are being used on land is because the
. Game Division permits the use of what is known to be an outrageously cruel and*
~indiscriminate device. The same is true of the leghold trap. Because they can use
this awful device, they feel free in bringing any trap into the woods.

‘The reason hunters are being kept aut of many properties is because of :the .bad
name of trappers and traps. Farmers and the public are associating trapping with
‘hunting. And ‘they are wrong. What we do is .a sport. What trappers do with ‘the
- leghold trap is to maim and kill wildlife and pets for pin money.

Hunters carry the brunt for this group. In addition we are losing our best .dogs
to leghold traps and we resent the maiming and killing that trappers do in the -name

~ of sport.

We want this trap banned throughout the'state; Better yet, we want all trapping . banne
Although all kinds of animals are caught in leghold ‘traps, we started documenting
-, the ccases .of hunting dogs in 1980. From December 1980 until today, we found the
~ following types and number of hunting dogs lost to or maimed by dangerous traps:

1. Killed: 4 Walker fox hounds in leghold traps. Three of 'the
animals had heads bashed in by trappers.

2. 1 Walker fox hound in a 330 Conibear trap - dead.

3. One blue-tick coon hound, 1 red bone coon -hound and -one black and
tan coon hound and one beagle. Conibear trap. Dead.

In addition, these many dogs:
DOGS THAT NEVER RETURKED

5 Walker fox hounds, 1 Beagle. Each bore a collar with name-plate,
telephone number, Each dog was a "homer."

DOGS CAUGHT

2 Walker fox hounds, one Walker coon dog, one -red ‘bone coon dog, one beagle,
Markings on paws were of leghold traps. Crippled.

R /A |




FToyd Kucharski - page 2

DOGS FOUND IN LEGHOLD TRAPS AND RELEASED BY OWNERS
9 Walker fox hounds, 1 Beagle, 1 Brittany Spaniel,
WHY AND HOW DO THE DOGS GET CAUGHT?

The dogs follow the scent of foxes, raccoons and rabbits. They go by scent.
And where the game goes, thg dog follows. The game animal uses pathways, hedge rows,
deer runs, foot paths, rabbit runs, streams, ponds, storm sewers, pipes - the works.

The ]egho]q traps are set all over the place. Bait used for raccoons and foxes
attracts all animals - both wildlife and domestic. Wherever there is a sign of a
furbearing animal - regardless of the location - traps are there, too.

When the hunting dogs are trailing, they get out of your sight and hearing. A
hunter cannot go through a briar patch or pond in pursuit - the dogs have to go off
on their own. Because of wind or terrain or water, it is impossible to keep the dog
within sight. : .

DOGS INJURIES: HOW THEY HAPPENED, WHAT KIND OF TRAP - EXTENT OF INJURIES

1. 4 Walker hounds: Out running the dogs. Got on the scent of a fox. The
hunter had eighteen dogs, at the end of the day 3 were missing. Looked for them
constnatly for three weeks. At the end of three weeks, a rabbit hunter said his
beagle had found one of the dogs, which still had identification tags on it, buried
under Teaves next to a hedge row and drainage ditcd. The dog had been caught in a
leghold. Its head was bashed in. The owner of the hunting dogs found the other 2
-in the same condition, farther down the line.

2. The fourth walker fox hound was found dead in a leghold.

3. Another Walker fox hound in a Conibear trap: Caught in a 330 Conibear on
Bella Plain State grounds. Out with a pack of dogs running foxes. All dogs returned
except one. The hunter, who lives right across the street from where the animal was
lost, went looking for him. Found him in the trap. Rough time getting game warden.
The trapper was found and told to remove 5 additional conibears he had set in the area.
Found guilty but still retained his trapper's license.

-4, One blue tick coon hound. Hunter no more than ten yards away from him.
Heard the trap snap. Conibear so difficult to jar open, and so much pressure is
needed, that it was impossible to save the dog.

5. Hunters reported red bone coon hound, blue tick and beagle lost to Conibear
traps. Found dead.

6. Five walker coon hounds. Went hunting. Dogs picked up scent and started
running. Never returned. The dogs were "homers" and had ID tags and telephone number.
If at all possible, they would have returned home. Or, if hit by a car, their ‘
deaths would have been reported. They were victims of traps.

7. Dogs caught and éripp]ed: Two walker fox hounds, one walker coon dog and
one red bone coon hound and one beagle.

#7x
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8.. Two-walker fox hounds. Hunters reported,findﬁng,dogs¢invsteeq;jawqtraps;~
Both crippled.

9:. One-walker coon thﬁdf':ﬁf?é;étééﬂkjawft?&pSusetzbyvmztree;‘ Crippled..
10.. One red: bone coon hdubﬂz;jCPfﬁﬁ1éd;,
© 11. One beagle . Leg chopped off.
DOGS: FOUND. IN LEGHOLD TRAPS AND"RELEASED

9-Walker fox hounds, ohie beagle; 1 Brittany: Spaniel’
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My name is Hope Ryden and I live at 345 East 8lst Street, New York

S

City. T also conslder myself a reslident of New Jersey, Tor over the vast
10 years I have spent weekends in the Ramapo Mountains on the New Yorx/
New Jersey border. Most of my outdoor activities - hiking, bird watching,

etc. - take place in the New Jersey part of this proper<y. I appreciate

N

+this opnortunity to %fecsiify to the Committee on Assermdbly Rill No. 3207

4

[¢

tinguished Chairman and the Committee for addressing

-

and

vi

commenc. the di

]

the need %o nroscribe the legheld trap in New Jer

b0

2y . This‘device is
the mos* drutal and non-selective of implements used to canture animals
and I urge paﬁsaée of this legislation.

As a nasuralist and author of several hooks a:d‘many articles on
North American Wildlife, ircluding BOBZAT YEAR. GOD'S DOG (on coybtes);
AFERTCAGS LAST WILD HORSES, and TEE LITTLE DESR OF THE FLORIDA KEYS., I

jave spent much time in wilderness areas iracking and studying my

o
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A STATEMENT BY ROBERT K. WEISDACK

1) KEEP THE LEGHOLD TRAP IN THE STATE OF NEW JERSEY
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August 11, 1983

Dear Sirs:

‘As a continuing doctoral student in envirommental epidemiology at the
University of Pittsburgh, I have been involved in the current rabies outbreak
pertaining to the public's health. After canvassing three states (Pennsylvaniaj
Maryland, and West Virginia) and numerous rabies records of other states, the
same scenario appears to be unfolding. The incidence of documented rabies
cases we are viewing is only the tip of the iceberg. The fact unequivocally
remains that if anyone were truly motivated 6r interested in ascertaining the
full ramifications of this current rabies outbreak, I would highly suggest that
they scrutinize the "Morbidity and Mortality Weekly Reports" from 1932 to 1983
most carefully. The facts revealed by these statistics indicate that we are
only in the infancy of a possible 15-year seige, while excluding no state
which possesses a dangerously high animal (herd) density. Hopefully, the
trappers can continue to reduce this herd density around the parameters of
any and all heavily .Luman populated areas. This herd reduction around the
parameters helps develop a protective barrier (buffer zone) making it harder
for a contaminated animal to penetrate into the heart of the cities or
metropolitan areas.

To maintain this protective barrier, one must allow him to use the most
proficient tools available. At this current time even with the threat of a
rabies epidemic, one can ill afford to procrastinate and rely upon emotions
or unproven techniques in attempting to decrease herd densities. The public's
health should be the first and utmost interest to all educated individuals.

My literature review addressing the control of wildlife rabies and the
methods utilized is quite extensive and has displayed validity that the
proficiency of the paw/leg hold trap is undisputably the only feasible tool
available which will aid in reducing herd density, without endangering the

life of domestic animals., Other research meéethods have been implemented and
have failed miserably, while costing the taxpayers millions.

The fact remains that rabies outbreaks today originated within the confines
of the wildlife population and continues to proliferate with great intensity.
There is no question of how it is transmitted to the metropolitan areas. The
current outbreak originated in areas where trapping (paw/leg trap) was restricted,
and has spread to other areas whete trapping hds been limited, but could extend
into residential areas.

S$2x




To take away the right to use the paw/leg hold trap would be more
detrimental to the public's health than one could imagine. If the paw/leg
hold trap were banned, the next outbreak could possibly be within the confines
of New Jersey. ‘

I agree, rabies may never be eradicated from the wildlife population,
but physicians have failed to cure all diseases. The physicians, sometimes
can only lessen the severity of the disease; and this is the same role the
trappers play. Physicians/surgeons are encouraged to utilize the most
proficient tools available, and the trappers should be extended the same
courtesy while performing a vital but thankless service for free.

Please deliberate on this information most carefully. I would hate to
-see New Jersey become a potential breeding ground for such a devasting disease.

Robert K, Weisdack, B.A,, M,A
Continuing Ph, D. student

RKW: pm
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'Ii v ssociation, inc.

el f are

nimal ,
RED LION SHELTER VOORHEES SHELTER AND ANIMAL BIRTH CONTROL : MAILING ADDRESS:
Route 206 . . Mariton-Gibbsboto Rd. CLINIC ' AWA. BOX §05
Vincentown, N.J. 08088 Voorhees Township, N.J. Box 113, Marlton, N.J. 08053 t N .
Phone: 859-2279 Phone: 434-2388 Phone: 424-3258 LINDENWOLD, NJ 08021

Wnereas:

The steel isw leghold trap 1g a cruel and ungelective Jevice
for capturing anirels, and : .

‘Whereas:

The steel Jjaw leghold trap is recognized as beingnjnhuﬁgme
and is banned in many Countries, States and some Counties
in New Jersey, and

Whereas:
There are alternatives to the steel jaw leghol travp =vail-
able and now being used in Vew Jersey,

Therefore te it resolved that:

- o 5300 LT rte Bill ~-73207
The Animel Welfare Association strongly supports Bil = ,
and anv similar legislation which will prohibit the ure of :
the steel jaw leghold trap throughout New Jersey.

Adopted September 8, 1983
The AWA Board of Directors

\'}é;uaﬁbv.4f/7. P | )
Charles T. Clausing, Pfesident

- DIRECTORS: Charles I. Clausing, President, Medford; Ra"ymon_d N. Schweizer, Vice President, Cherry Hill; Miss: Margaret Blanck, Secretary,
Deptford; Mrs. Eileen K. Krusch, Treasufer, Blackwood; Mis. Claire Baker, Toris. Rivér; Miss Annette Blaxland, Pennsauken; Mrs. Bonnie Cate,
Pennsauken; Nial P. Gardner, Jr., Edgewater Park; Mrs. Virginia Leonard, Burlington; Williath Millholen, Philadelphia; Miss Carol Roman,
Maple Shade:; Marvin Rothman, V.M.D., Cheétry Hill; Miss Jean Steevér, Hiddon Heights; Richard Stefanski, Jr., Haddonfield: William Seybold;
Camden; Robert Teripleton, Bofdentown; James B. Woodford, Mede_f;_(i:;/Geﬁe‘ml' Counseél, Lée B. Laskin, Cherry Hill.
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OF WILDLIFE

Statement in Support of Legislation
To Ban Steel Jaw Leghold Traps
Hearings Before the Senate Natural Resources and Agriculture Committee
‘September 14, 1983

The New Jersey Senate

: Defenders of Wildlife fully supports Senate Bill 1575 and its Assembly
counterpart, Assembly Bill 3207, legislation to ban steel jaw leghold traps.
Defenders of Wildlife is a national nonprofit organization dedicated to the
protection and preservation of America's wildlife resources. On behalf of
our 6,000 members and constituents in New Jersey, we urge this committee and
the full New Jersey Senate to pass comprehensive legislation to ban these
traps. In 1971, New Jersey Legislature established a precedent by enacting
a partial ban on leghold traps. Now in 1983, the members of this committee
and their colleagues should expand the law to completely ban the manufacture,
sale and use of these traps which maim and kill one of the state's most
- precious resources, its wildlife. The Assembly has passed A. 3207, the
Senate should act favorably on identical legislation. o

This statement focuses on selectivity associated with leghold trap use.
" However, Defenders 1is also concerned about the injuries associated with

leghold trap use.

SELECTIVITY

One of the strongest and most persuasive arguments against leghold
traps is the inherent non-selectivity of the device. The accidental cap-
ture of animals of no value to the trapper is a wasteful disruption of

natural ecosystems. Experienced trappers can make sets more attractive to
one species or group of species (e.g. canines), but baits, scents, and set
location do not assure a target catch. It is impossible to precisely determine
the incidence of unwanted animals, commonly referred to as "nontargets” or
"trash”, since state agencies do not require trappers to report non-target

incidents. Even if requirements existed, enforcement of such a provision would

be virtually impossible. However, evidence that is being provided by the local

groups testifying here should be ample to convince the Committee that non-target

animals are frequently victims of these traps.

Trappers contend that non-target catches are rare, and that only "slob”
or inexperienced trappers catch unwanted animals. Even if this were the case,

1244 NINETEENTH STREET, NW © WASHINGTON, DC 20036 ® (202) 659-9510 .
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the number of "weekenders"” and young, inexperienced trappers is increasing

in proportion to those with experience. Stephen Kellert, a professor at

the School of Foresty at Yale University, rfecently surveyed trappers nationwide.
He found that 86.1% of trappers did most of their trapping prior to age 21;
21.5% were active in trapping from ages five through twelve. If the trend
toward younger trappers and higher pelt prices continues, non-target catches,’
injuries, and suffering associated with the leghold trap will also increase.

George Reiger, a historian who supports trapping, noted:

Unfortunately, the capture of non-target species appears to be happening

with increasingly regularity in the nation's ever expanding suburbs

where callow youths set out to catch their first 'coon or muskrat -
'just like Davy Crockett' without the least idea or training in

what they are doing.

Non-target furbearers are not the only animals caught accidentally by
trappers. - Other types of "trash animals” are caught accidentally in traps,
including dogs and cats =='often family pets and hunting dogs; birds --
such as hawks, eagles, owls, songbirds and waterfowl; deer and livestock.

STUDIES OF THF SELECTIVITY OF LEGHOLD TRAPS

Weldon Robinson {1943) compared the selectivity of the steel trap and
the M=44 (coyote getter), a device using cyanide as the killing agent. He
reported a take of 357 target (coyote and bobcat) animals in leghold traps,
and the capture of 441 non-target animals taken including antelope, bears,
skunks, badgers, foxes, raccoons, eagles, hawks, rabbits, prairie dog, porcu-
pines, ground squirrels, turkey vultures, ravens, and domestic animals'
(sheep, cats, and doge).

Non-predators are released from traps whenever practical, but some die
while confined in the trap and others, being crippled, are destroyed
for humanitarian redsons....(T)he number of 'furbearers' and other
creatures' killed in [predator control] trapping operations is
considerable. (Robinson 1943)

Beasom (1974) nOted in studying on the selectivity of preéedator control
techniques in south Texas, "More individuals and species of animals were caught
with steel traps in this study than with any of the other control methods used.”

Robinson (1961) maintained trapping records during predator control oper=—
ations in three states: New Mexico, Colorado, and Wyoming. Records vere_
kept to determine carnivore population trends. Coyotes and bobcats were
targeted; traps were set by selected trappers of the Branch of Predator -
and Rodent Control of the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service. The total capture
during the three control periods was 1199, of which only 259 (22%) were
. coyotés and bobcats. Seventy-eight percent, a ratio of three to one, were
non—-target animals including skunks, badgers, raccoons, weasels, foxes,
rabbits, porcupines, prairie dogs, ground squirrels, wood and kangaroo'
rats, pronghorn, deer, phedsants, raptors, and domestic animals (sheep,
calves, dogs and cats).
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Richard Randall, Defenders of Wildlife's Great Basin Field Representative,
and for ten years a predator control agent for the U.S. Fish and Wildlife
Service, states:

My duties included year-round use of the leghold trap for removing pre-
datory animals such as coyote, bobcat, bear, and fox. Fish and
Wildlife rated me as an excellent trapper, promoted me to Principal
District Field Assistant, later to Acting Supervisor, and included

as part of my duties the training of new employees in the use of

the leghold trap.

The leghold trap is inherently non-selective. It is probably the most
cruel device ever invented by man, and is a direct cause of inexcusable
destruction and waste of our wildlife. My trapping records show

that for each target animal I trapped, about two unwanted individuals
were caught. Because of trap injuries, these non-target species usually
had to be destroyed (Randall 1975).

Waterfowl Entrapment

Most trapping activity in the United States occurs in aquatic habitats
(in or near water), where muskrat and/or nutria are currently the most valuable
furbearers species. These areas also provide vital habitat for waterfowl popu-
lations. Some researchers have examined the effects of trapping, particularly
spring. muskrat harvest, on waterfowl survival and production and have
concluded that a problem exists. Bailey and Jones (1976), in addition to
their own data, cited several studies that provide evidence of the threat
that trapping poses to waterfowl. While these studies were not condul ted
in New Jersey, the studies are applicable because the tidal areas and'
fréshwater swamps and marshes of New Jersey's east coast are both heavily
trapped and important wintering areas, in particular for the declining
population of black duck.

1. Wright (1954) suggested that muskrat trapping is a major
mortality factor for black ducks (Anas rubripes) on their
breeding grounds. This species 1s suffering significant,
longterm declines from various factors already, such that
the Fish and Wildlife Service has reduced season dates and/or
bag limits this year.

2. A study conducted in Maine by Gashwiler (1949) found a
total kill of approximately 1,945 ducks during the 1946
trapping season. An additional 2,220 ducks actively in-
volved in breeding activities were injured in the traps.

3. Mendall (1958) considered muskrat trapping to be the prime
cause of accidental mortality to breeding ring-necked ducks
(Aythya collaris) in the northeast.

4, Stout (1976) analyzed continental band recoveries from water=—
fowl caught by devices other than banding traps and attributed
697 of spring recoveries to muskrat trapping.
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The usual trapping technique in Bailéy and Jones' study used steeljawed
traps set on trails near the water which were also loafing sites .for waterfowl.
From the estimated population of 144 pairs of mallards on the study area,

16 mallards (including 15 females) were trapped according to trappers in

the area. The authors noted that trappers ténded to report only the marked
females (hens that had been hatched in captivity, marked, and released into

the wild), and not male ur w.ld (and therefore unmarked), female‘mallards-
Trappers were reluctant to admit having taken ducks in. tfaps because "many

felt that data gathered in the survey would be detrimental to trapping interests.
The 15 hens that were lost through trap capture represented 10.4% of the total
female breeding population on the study area. Bailey and Jones concluded:

"

_ Hens killed or crippled by muskrat trapping lower the production
potential of a breeding population., We could not determine the
number of hens releaséd unharmed since internal injuries and other
effects of a trapping experience were unknown. Increased duck
production on remaining habitat in this region will be necessary to
maintain mallard populations in the future, and avoidable losses of
breeding stock would seem unaccéptable to waterfowl management.

Entrapment of Domestic Pets

Dogs and ‘cats are attracted to baits and scents used in trap sets to lure
wild animals. Some trappers release these animals to find their own way home,
others may attempt to return the auimal to its owner. Still other trappers,
frustrated by the non~target catch that perhaps prevented a valuable one, will o
kill the animal. ‘

- Trancing as Furbearer Management

Trappers defend the use of leghold traps as "wise management tools”
but not only are leghold traps "unwise,” their use in the field 1s dictated
by market considerations first, management second. Trappers maintain that,
by removing the annual surplus, they remove the rnumber of individuals in
a trapped area that would perish during the critical period. “They would only
die anyway,” is heard in the trappers’ own deferise. However, the effects
of the annual removal of tons of bicmass from the natural ecosystem (Favre
and Olsen 1982) or the changes which trapping imparts on the age structure
and balance of a natural population are still unknown.

Ironically, trapping may actually reésult in the increase of wildlife;
it may actually cause overpopulation problems, in contradiction to trappers'
claims that they provide a service in preventing furbearer overpopulation.
For example, there is an inverse relationship between reduction of a population
and the number of young produced.

If a population is not harvested, all growth and recruitment
are balanced by natural mortality and the average growth rate
of the population 18 zéro. Harvesting decreases the popula-
tion size, but in most cases the reduction in population size
results in an increase in the growth rate of the population.
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An increase in growth rate occurs because the lower density
reduces competition among the remaining members of the popu-
lation whcih results in: 1) greater rate of reproduction,

2) a greater growth rate of individuals in the population, or
3) a reduced rate of natural mortality. Dixon and Swift (1980)

Arguments that leghold traps are essential wildlife management tools
do not stand up under rational, scientific scrutiny. New Jersey has already
taken a step by partially banning these traps. Now, it is time to take an
even larger step. The time has come for the New Jersey Legislature to serve
as an even stronger model for other states by enacting into law this pro-
gressive wildlife protection.
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As a resident of New Jersey, I appreciate this opportunity
to. express my support of A.3207-S.1575 to ban the manufacture,. sale
and use of the steel-jawed leghold trap throughout the state.

While others here today will document the cruelty and nonselectivity
of the device, I will confine my comments to the possible effects.of the:
Teghold trap on the people who use it.

I believe that use of the leghold trap constitutes both extremek
cruelty to animals and a concomitant desensitization of trappers to the
suffering of other sentient beingé. Shackled and in pain, the trapped
animal is subjected to any number of traumas and injuries. The«trapper 
is witness to this agony, and proceeds to compound it by bludgeoning,.
droWning or breaking the back of his céptive prey.

It is most alarmingvthat trappefs profess to enjoy this experience,
and that the New Jersey Division of Fish, Game and Wildlife promotes.
trapping as a "wholesome form of outdoor recreation.”

0f even greater’concern from my perspective is. that the bulk of
trappers are youngsters of an jmpressionable age; during the years when
‘values which last a lifetime are formed, these youngsters réutineﬁy
engage in brutalizing animals.

Cruelty to animals is one of the criteria used to identify a
severely disturbed child. It can be a manifestation of a lack of
empathy or compassion forvthe pain of others, and may also be indicative

of destructive behavior which might be directed toward other human beings.
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Dr. Joyce Brothers Page 2.
Statement: Leghold Trap ' o

January, 1983

It is my opinion that cruelty to animals is a behavior which should
be discouraged or prevented, especially - as in the case of the leghold .
trap - when‘the cruelty is an avoidable one.

For the sake of our children as well as our wildlife, I urge
New Jersey legislators to pass into law A.3207-5.1575 which will ban

the manufacture, sale and use of a torturous device.
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Statement of John Kirsch, Ph.D.
Associate Curator of Mammalogy
Museum of Comparative Zoology

Harvard University -
submitted to

~ The Commerce and Industry Committee
of thebNew Jersey Assembly
*k¥k
The Energy and Environment Committee
of the New Jersey Senate

1983

Friends of Animals has asked me to speak, as a professional mammalogist, to
three questions: First, do animals feel bain? Second: Is.trapping necessary to
control animal populations? And third: Must we trap mammals to prevent the spread
of disease? I think we are in danger of confusing the issue of whether trapping
~should be permitted with how it may be carried out, and I would‘be dishonest if_I'
did not say that there are persuasive scientific, economic and even ccnservationist
reasons in favor of trapping. My personal concern is rather with the manner in which it

" §s done. Nevertheless, the two issues are related, as I shall indicate.
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On the question of whether animals feel pain, gj_gggr§g}they do: Any
animal that did not would not Tive very long, would be unlikely to leave
offspring, and would therefore be most unfit! Moreover, the nervous structures
for sensing and responding to pain in other animals are very similar to our own.
But, it may be argued, responding to pain and being aware of it are two different
things. Are animals aware? That is the crucial question when it comes to |
deciding if we should allow certain kinds of experiments or'traps. 0f course
it is not even easy to be sure that another person is aware, but we believe so because
he or she tells us about it;vnow that we have begun to teach chimpanzees and gorillas
to use human language, they too aré'te]]ing us how they feel - even lying to escape
punishment for wrongdoing - and it is difficult to maintain any longer that awareness
is a special characteristic of human beingé. Again, given the very similar bio]ogical
structure and functioning of all mammals, it would be astonishing if other species
' wére also not aware. Thus, I see no reason to doubt that animals are every bit as
capabie of feeling pain, and of suffering, as are human beings. Therefore, ihvmy‘
opinion, we would need the strongest possible justification for inflicting pain on
them. |

And this is the conneétion to the second question: Is trapping necessary to
control populations? It is often argued that trapping is required to prevent the
continued increase in animal numbers, with the attendant economic and other"threats.
to ourselves; and hence that any means justifies this end - including the use of
an unquestionably painful, if efficient, trap like the leghold. I would have to argue

that trapping is ineffective in controlling natural populations, because typicallx

wild animal populations are effectively regulated by natural factors, including
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their own density, and do not go on increasing forever. Beginning from a
few: individuals, thoée:populationSAmay grow only very slowly for A time,. but
pastfa;critical number begin to increase very rapidly. They do this. for
several reasons, some biological and some simply mathematical: - It is d"bﬁt'
Tike a compound interest situation where you are being paid several hundred

percent a year. Inevitably, the fast rate of increase ceases, and. the: population

reaches: a fairly stable number, most obviousiy because. food and shelter are-limitec

but also because the bigger a _population the more Tiable are its members to predatc

Eggin,;this is _a general pattern and there are exceptions: Bigger animals. seem

“able to'maintain a stable population size, but populations of Vittle mammals: such.

“as_meadow mice and lemmings are notorious for overshooting the mark every few.

"years andfthén descending to quite low levels. But these populations recover

'gyite.SWiftly,'and they do so “ecause when. they are reduced: in numbershtheemethanig

“for rapid increase take over again. It is clear that reducing a population by

trapping just forces it back into the fast-growth phase.

" The resilience of wild populations makes. it,very:difficu1t4to;argue for-a
total ban on trapping, but it also means that it is: nearly impossible to: depress
| permanently a population Qx_mgggg.gf trapping. Nothing short of pushing the
population down to the brink of extinction, or extensive habitat destructiom, will
achieve that end - and I hope no one is arguing in favor of thoseva]ternative$1toda

Once  again, trapping does not control populations. Thus, we can't justify using

the 1ég§b]d'trap'because it won't do the job any more than will another sort pf_

trap.

Chakacteristics~of;popu1ation growth also affect the transmission of diseases.

" If by trapping: we reduce populations to the size where they will grow- quickly
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~then a lot of immature and presumably susceptible animals will enter the

population each year. This would increase the likelihood of transmission by

youngsters that have not had a chance to become immune. Extensive trapping

may therefore aggravate rather than alleviate the spread of disease.

In conc1usion, populations usually are naturally régu]ated and do not
go on increasing forever. Normally trapping will not provide permanent
control of numbers, or even put a brake on the spread of disease. In the
face of these conclusions, and knowing that animals are capable of suffering,

we are scarcely justified in continuing to use a method of trapping that

undoubtedly inflicts considerable pain.
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1983

The scientific evidence that animals feel and perceive pain is really:
quite ovérwhe}mtng. -Over. the last fifty years hundreds of federally funded
research grants have been awarded fo investigators in comparative neuroanatomy
aﬁd néurdphysiology for‘the-purpose of studying mammalian sensory systems which
are essentially identical to those of man.

This evidence can be briefly summarized as follows:

1. A1l mammals including man have the same anatomical and physiological
mechanisms for pain perception. Pain receptors are located all over' the body:
feeding their sensory impulses into the central nervous system via the peripheral

nerves to the spinal cord. Here they connect with various afferent pathways and
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ascend to the brain stem, thalamus, and cerebral cortex.

2. By stimulating pain receptors and reéording the electrical activity ‘of
the brain in response to this stimulation, it has been shown that all parts of
the body are represented in the cerebral cortex of all mammals. The process of
localizing areas of the brain in which the body parts are represented is known
as cortical mapping. This has been worked out for a wide variety of species as
well as man. Al1l sensory modalities including pain, temperature,_vibration,
hearing, vision, etc., are so represented in areas of the cerebral cortex.

3. Behavioral studies have utilized pain as a means of condition1na
ahimals in a variety of experimental studies and in learning situations. All
of'this work is based on the animai's attempt to avoid pain.

4, Studies in stress have beén extensive and have demonstrated that all

)mammals including man respond to stress with identical physiological mechanisms,
including changes of heart rate, blood pressure, adrenal secretions, etc.

| 5. The behavioral manifestations of_pain and stress differ widely between
species and between individuals within a species. Pain can produce a state of
shock in both man and beast or it can produce violent panic and rage. It can
'alsb produce a state of helplessness and resignation as shown in conditioned
avoidance experiments in which the animal is placed in the situation wheré it
can no longer avoid the painful stimulus.

| 6. All mammals possess the same senéory mechanisms. Although pain
receptors are not as apparent as eyes and ears, their presence is a matter of
scientific fact and to propose a difference in:function for them in animals

as compared to man is to deny the validity of a vast amount of scientific

knowledge. No one would say that an animal cannot see or hear.
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7. Surely anyone who has ever stepped on a puppy dog's tail knows that "

that puppy feltvpain!

The leghold trap is a primitive, uncivilized method of trapping animals.
It inflicts maximal pain for it not only involves the superficial pain receptors
of the skin and muscle but also the deep receptors of tendon and bone. Struggling
intensifies this stimulation and the animal quickly 1eqrns this but the pain'remainﬁ
and produces maiimal stress for long peroids of time including at best_a state
of helplessness or shock not to be confused with sleep except by the most primitive
observer. ‘

hwhere money is invo]ved man has an infinite capacity to rationalize and justify
his behaQior.: It is impossible for me to understand how our civilization and culture

can tolerate the'use‘of the leghold trap. I strongly urge the passage of A 3207

$-1575 to ban the manutacture, sale and use of the leghold trap. This is the

very least we can do.
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Office of the Presidemt
Alice Herrington

REPORT ON TRAPPER TRAINING COURSE CONDUCTED BY THE NEW JERSEY DIVISION

OF FISH, GAME AND WILDLIFE
Copyright (€,1983

Prepared by: Susan Russell, education director, Friends of Animals, Inc.

Preface

In an attempt to block Tegislation banning the leghold trap in New
Jersey, the Division of Fish, Game and Wildlife introduced a mandatory
training program. The division, whose salaries are paid by trapping
license fee revenues, contends that trained trappers are more humane
and selective trappers, therefore, there is no need for proscriptive
legislation.

: Indeed, an early (1977) statement by the division referred to the
courses as a "political cushion" for legislators. Further, trapper
training courses serve as a public relations tool to make trapping more
palatable to the media and the public.

The leghold trap has been prohibited by 63 countries and Canada's
British Columbia as excessively cruel and non-selective. These properties
are inherent and universal: They do not change with state or national
borders and cannot be changed by years of trapper training, let alone
a few hours. The problem to be addressed is trapping and traps used to
catch furbearers. Leghold trapping and "humane and selective" are
mutually exclusive.

In order to report on the efficacy and legitimacy of courses that
are presented as a panacea, it was necessary that I take the course.

My observdtions of the trapper training course follow.




Date of Course: ‘“November 5th and 7th, 1982
Locatien: Colliers Mills Wildlife Mandgement-Area,'Co]]ierslMi1ls,vNJ
~Instructor: Robert Byrne, trapper training coordinator

Additional Instructors: conservation officer -
NJ stalz wildlife control -officer
Fred Gimble, president, Central Jersey Furtakers Association
Joe Pappa, vice-president, Central Jersey Furtakers -Association
Gary Himmel, member, Central Jersey Furtakers Association”

" Time Frame: -Friday,evening, 7:00 p.m. to 10:00 p.m.

‘Sunday, 9:30 a.m. to 11:30 a.m. ‘ : b
12:30 a.m. to 5:30 p.m.

"“Textbooks": Without exception, information given to the class was pub11shed or
written by vested interests ‘in trapp1ng

- "Trapping and Conservation" pamphlet pub11shed by ‘the ‘National Wildlife
Federation, an organization largely comprised of local hunting and trapping
.Clubs, :and printed for distribution by the Woodstream Corporation, our nation's
largest ‘manufacturer -of - stee]—Jawed 1egho]d traps.

- "Placing American Wildlife ‘Management in Perspective" by the New Jersey
- Division of Fish, Game and Wildlife. Division personnel's salaries are
a d1rect function of trapping license fee revenues. :

- ™MTrapping and Wildlife ‘Management" by ‘the Woodstream Corporat1on our nat1on S
leading manufacturer of steel-jaw traps.

- "Pennsy]van1a Trapper Training Guide" by the Pennsylvania -Game Comm1ss1on
Same 'situation as New Jersey - game agency personne1 paid -by Ticense revenues.

- “Compendium of Hunting and Trapang«Laws-s 1982-83" issued by ‘the New Jersey
- Division of Fish, Game and Wildlife. : _ _

- Flyers: "Match your -target to a Woodstream Trap" by -the Woodstream Corporét1an-
- -and “How to make your own box trap" by -the New Jersey Division of Fish, Game
and Wildlife. .

Students: About 24. Excluding Elizabeth McMahon, 5 other .adults and me, -the .rest
_of the class appeared to be between the :ages of ‘8 to 18 years of age, - -with
a preponderance of adolescents. Since the legal age for trapping is -
12 years (14 years -for ‘the leghold trap), those who :appeared -to-be -eight years
0ld were either dwarfs or underage.
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OBSERVATIONS

FRIDAY EVENING =
On Friday evening, Mr. Byrné, the trapper training coordinator and'
a recréationa] trapper, focused on wildlife management theories supportive
of trapping. Mr. Byrne virtually ignored the findings of the National
Academy of Sciences, among others, that trapping is ineffective as a
- means of wildlife disease control and should be abo]fshed. The students
 were told that "stockpiling doesn't work" and that "we must trap animals
to control disease."
| In contradiction of his original statements, the trapper training
coordinator later stated -several times - that trapping does not control
or limit wildlife populations, and that trappers rarely catch diseased
‘animals. Alarmingly, none of the students questioned this reversal.
A few quotes:
(In reference to the muskrat, the animal trappers claim
must be trapped to be controlled) - "It is prolific and
has a 70 to 80 percent mortality rate every year. Is
trapping a limiting factor? No."
Later: "?{rsct harvesting has no«impact on that animal at
all. _ '
The salient fact that trappers don't catch diseased animals.was
revealed on Sunday afternoon. When a child asked Mr. Byrne what to do
if he trapped a diseased furbearer, Byrne replied: "You don't catch diseased
animals; they don't get around very much. That's rare."
The‘discussion of furbearer population dynamics ended with Mr. Byrne

comparing furbearers to tomatoes and asking students if they would pick

tomatoes in the summer or winter.
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Our sojourn into "wildlife education“ was just as primitive, with.eMphasfs;
on whefe and how to trap the animal (or "tomato") and what the pelt was worth.
As. Mr. Byrne began to discuss land and water associated furbearers, there Was
no mention of the roles anirals p]ay.in the. ecosystem, and sOme»diécriptfbns‘
of furbearers were very much at odds with what is known about the species. For
.example, the beaver was not a favorite of Mr. Byrné’s: "Walt Disney did a
“great pubTic'félations job>wifh-this one. Beavers are vicious, not playful
and nas’c_y."l

" This revelation comes as a great’shoék to fhe thousands: of beavéf enthusiaﬁts

throughout the country to whom the beaver's resourcefu]ness,"inféi]igence:and.qun
humor is. a constant sohrcé of enjoyment and sfudy In additi@ﬁ;fthe beaver's |
ability to create its own ecosystem, from’ wh1ch many spec1es of animal and plant
life benef1t was not even ment1oned : From th1s perverse def1n1t1on of the animal,
one must assume that Mr. Byrne S only contact with beavers has been wh11e he was
trying to kill them for thelr sk1ns i

The bobcat, an evtiipated species in New Jersey, was discus;ed as.a:furbeérér.
Mr. Byrne said that "there may be opportunities to huqf the‘aﬁimal inlthe,fpturem"
This.information was most interesting, since the "re-stocking" of the bobcat in
New Jersey 1is being touted“as bobcat ‘restoration and Division of Fish, Game
and Wildlife officials claim'there;w11T be no hunting_of the species.

Discussed trapping techniques evolved around getting the pelt, thus: how
to trap the animal so: it has no chance Qf escaping. Raccoons were cited as a
particular problem because they fight the trap, and do damage to themselves: and,.
"more importantly," the'pelt. When a student asked about cases 6f raccoons. |
chewing of f their paws in an effort to escape ("wring off"), Mrm Byrne., bib]og{st,

replied:
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The raccoon is fighting against the trap,

not pain. The leg is numb, and it is really
gnawing on the trap and catching its fingers.

A trapper with no foot damage [to the raccoon]
is a skilled trapper. If you stay with trapping
for a while, you'll have that skill.

Mr. Byrne's assertion that the raccoon feels no pain is an appallingly
ignpraht one that flouts scientific documentation of pain perception and
sensory mechanisms in mammals. The raccoon's paw, for example, has powers
of tactile discrimination proved to be of the same order as humanbtactile
discrimination.

Further, his statement that "a trapper with no foot damage is a skilled
trapper" is an unwitting indictment of trapping in general, for 86% of trappers
‘are below the age of twenty years; with a preponderance of adolescents. Thus,
most trappers are youngsters and adolescents who do not "stay with trapping":
very long. Since the trapper drop out rate is highest among the young, the
activity is marked by a rapid turnover: unskilled, young trappers are simply
reb]aced by more unskilled young trappers.

At this point, Mr. Byrne began discussing "humane and selective" trapping.
The words were given 1ip service; methods of trapping which were touted as
"humane" were coincidentally justified by assuring the trapper his pelt.

One must assume that this is the division's idea of "humane and selective"
trapping:

A good trapper is selective. Otherwise;
he is inefficient and this causes him
problems. If you catch a dog, the issue

will be blown up by animal groups and you'll
be on the front page of the newspaper.

For this reason, trappers were advised not to use leghold traps in "developed"

areas.
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In any event, the capture of a pet dog or cat'wés blamed square]y‘oh
-the pet owner: "Pets are the owners' responsibility. FBut you'1ll be the
bad guy." |

Other insights: "Don't use the leghold trap in somebody;s batkyard;
If you trap somebody's dog or cat, what do you got? Ydu,got preblems." |

En‘diséussing "humane and selective" trappiﬁg,’MY; Byrné forgoi
to mention the many spécies of wildlife, such as bald and go1den eagles,
deer and owls that fall victim to Tegho]d-tkaps and are discarded as
"trash." | "

His final thought on selective trapping: "If you understand their
behavior [wildlifej, you'l1l make money." |

At this point, Mr. Byrne introduced a cohservation’officek who. read

a few sentences from the New Jerscy Compendium of Humting and Trapping Laws.

| - The shooting of trap victims was discussed. Mr. Bykne asked how many

in the room were famfriar:with»rif1es.b Oniy a few raised their hands. In
order to shoot trap victims, the trabpers would have to be 18 years of age.
'InMaddition,‘they wqu]d.h&ve to take another:coumse.tonductediby.the division
tq-enable'them;to TegaJTy use a .22 short. Sﬁnce'most'trappers i the room
wére under 18 years of age, shooting was a moot point. 'Thfs.left the methods
of cFubbing; drowning, suffocation and breaking the back or neck of fhe'trab
victim to most of the children. in the room. This did not seem to bother'them.

Mr. Byrne said that the reason hunting and trapping laws exist is,that
"tﬁere»will be enough for everybody." '

The evening was drawing to a close. Mr. Byrne asked if there wére any
questionsw Therevwere-veryvfew questions ffom phospective trappers; most:

were about money.




Mr. Byrne said that trapping‘was primarily of "recreational benefit."
He then said that "trappers are not in it for the money, bécause you can make
more money pumping gas."

The first part of the course ended with Byrné saying that those who
planned to use box traps could dig a hole for them ahead of the season and
bait the area. When the conservation officer countered that this might be
3111ega], Byrne said there was no law "against setting them up." The conservation
~;officer said that Mr. Byrne's position would not hold up in court, to which
Mr. Byrne replied, "lots of people do it."

Thus, the evening ended with Robert Byrne, tréppér training coordinator,

advising trappers to break the faw.

SUNDAY - IN THE FIELD

We assembled in the classroom at 9:30 a.m. Mr. Bvrne introduced us to
a wildlife control officer who told us about the dyeing and waxing of traps.
Traps dyed a dark color are easier to camouflage than traps which retain a }
steel glint, we were told. Waxing protects traps and keeps them operating
smoothly.

We were bhriefly informed about trappihg equipment: drags, stakes, chains,
wire, lures, baits andbdiving traps for muskrats. Students were advised that
they could make a box trap at home for $10 to $15, and that home-made box traps
could easily catch raccoons, and that you could "catch a bunch of rats [muskrats]
in a diving trap."

That box traps can be made at home, and "easily catch" raccoons should be

noted, since the division of fish and game lobbies for leghold traps by declaring
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that box traps are "prohibitively expensive" and "not efficient."

For pub]ic’re]atiohs reasons, namely that the public tends to get
upset when a leghold trapped animal is discovered in its midst, trappers
were again remindedlfo desist in using the leghold in highly-developed areas,
and were told that the box trap would prove just as "efficient" in capturing
furbearers. |

Wires, chains, drags and other trapping equipment are used to make
it virtua]]y‘impossible for a trapped animal to become free of the trap.
Because raccoons ("'coons") fight the trap, it was advised to "stake them
in close" or to use a drag, which is a piece of woodk"at least 2 poUnds -
no more than 4 or-5 feet long attached to the leghold by a chain." This
prevents pelt loss, we were told, because the animal "can only move aboqt
20 feet or so and doesn't panic as much." As an afterthought, Mr. Byrne
added Fhat he thought this technique was "humane," with no further exp]anation,
As in other cases where the word "humane" was mouthed, the true‘justification
was in not losing the pelt.

We were advised by Joe Pappa, vice-president of the Central Jersey
Furtakers Association, that one needs a good deal of brush in the area to
use a drag, otherwise the animal "will go with the.trap and drag and you;11‘f
never find it." He said that on a few occasions, "it took a long time to. -
find the thing [fox], which was only 50 feet éway from where I put the trap."

Since Mr. Pappa was supposed to be an expert trappér, one can only R
imagine what goes on during trapping seasons in whiﬁh most of the participants
are amateurs, |

In addition, the wildlife control officer advised "drownding" (sic) for

raccoons. One method recommended was affixing a weight (rock) to the leghold
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trap set on a bank or near watering areas raccoons frequent. Once trapped,
the raccoon's instinct is to dive deeper, ostensibly away from the trap..‘But,
as the officer pointed out with a big grin, the weight pulls the animal down
and prevents it from reaching the surface. |

Several students seemed to find this method amusing.

Students were advised to use an extra long stake in sandy soil - about
18 to 20 inches - or the animal will pull out and travel with the leghold and
stake. Again, the students found this possibility a real rib-tickler.

"'Coons have a way of pulling outa there like it was nothing," said
the control officer, whp seemed mildly retarded.

The control officer mentioned that improperly set traps, including one
f11ustrated on the Woodstream flyer, would capture "non-target" animals. He
said a canal set or a trap set in a runway would capture beaver and otter
(populations for these species are low, but the New Jersey Division of Fish,
Game and Wildlife permits them to be trapped on a "regulated" basis) and
waterfow]_such as ducks. Later in the day, Fred Gimble, president of the
Central Jersey Furtakers Association, showed us how to use a runway set.
Since no one else asked the obvious question, I asked Mr. Gimble about
catching non-target furbearers, such as ducks. He seemed annoyed and said,
"What will you catch? Anything you catch will be a furbearer."

"You guys go ahead and get some experience," were the control officer's
parting words.

Mr. Byrne mentioned that "only 600-700 trappers in the state were

skilled enough to catch foxes," which leaves over 3,000 unskilled, young

trappers.
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With Tevity Mr. Byrne announced that we were going to the main field
(outside of the concrete room where the classes were held). About 20 dead
- raccoons and opossums were strewn on the 1awn.b Within my field of vision,
~ several prospective "humane and selective" young trappers kicked the dead
animals. Their behavior brought to mind Dr. Joyce Brothers' warning‘that
exposure to the horrors of trapping evokes a sadistic response.

As we gathered about the carcasses, Mr. Byrne began to tell us how to
"dispatch" the trap victims. _‘ |

This is where our presence caused the course to-be cleaned up and
greatly altered as compared to other trapping courses conducted by the
“division. There had recently been a furor over the division's intent to bring
trapper training into public school curricula. The public's reaction to methods
used to kill furbearers was one of horror. The division was not successful in
its effort.

So, Byrne omitted stomping and suffocating furbearers and.bréaking the
necks and backs of animals by standing on a stake placed on the neck of the
victim and jerking the body upward. It is ironic that Mr. Byrne did not
covef these methods, for they are the most commonly used.

The students were told to "drowﬁd" (sic) the animals. Drowning a trap
victimc(using'a,water set or water) assures the trapper his prey, and the fur
is not damaged. |

- Steering away from the stake and suffocation methods normally used, Byrne
said that the trapper should use water whenever possible.. He éuggestednc]ubbing

the animal, then submerging its head in water if a stream or other water
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source is near the trapping site. This was described as "humane" with no further .
comment.

Next, an almost totally unused method of killing furbearers was mentioned.
Mr. Burne said that a humane option was shooting the animal between the eyes
and ears. This method is the least popular of ways to kill furbearers, because
bullets damage the fur. Nonetheless, and largely for our benefit, Mr. Byrne
mentioned shooting furbearers and recommended that foxes be shot in the chest from
the distance of one foot. Mr. Byrne said that the trapper must lie down to a
to this. That he was addressing a group largely comprised of adolescents who
were years away from legally operating a .22 seemed extraneous.

When a young trapper asked what those under 18 year of age could do, Mr.
Byrne replied, "You club it." He went on to say that the best way to do this was
to hit the animal between the eyes or behind the brain. He used < small garden

trowel to illustrate clubbing the dead opossum. The Pennsylvania Trapper's

Guide we were given also recommended a long-handled garden trowel. This was
described as "humane."
He said a "skilled" trapper could kill an animal with one blow. He did

not volunteer how many blows are needed when a trapper is learning; and no

one asked.

Another trapper, one of the few adults, asked what to do in "those towns
where guns are banned [in the interests of public safety]." Byrne replied,
"If you want to fight that [ordinances], there are plenty of groups to béck
you up. They have lawyers and that sort of thing."

The groups were not named.

I asked Byrne if the dead animals had been trapped. He replied, "Yes."
[ then asked, "How were they killed?" Byrne responded, "I don't know."

When I queried about one animal in particular that looked badly beaten, Byrne
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answered, "They do bieed, y8u know." ‘

He then covered releasing non-target animals. The attitude here was
one of annoyance. He said that "free-ranging" dogs were the pet owner's
responsibi]ity - not a trapper's - and a somewhat curious remark, "The
trapper has to make a decision about whether or not he wants that dog back
in his trap,“ accompanied by meaningful glances at the trappers, was repeated
twice.

Again, Mr. Byrne's perception of "non-target" species did not .include
other wildlife species, possibly because occurrences of trapped bald eagles
“and deer do not receive as much press as those of trapped pets., and are easily cbncealed

Byrhe recommended releasing the dog with a hog snare, a rather long
implement I cannot see too many trappers purchasing or using. He also
suggested taking the animal to the aog warden.

_ He did not mention what to do if the animal was badly injured. Such was the
man's grasp of "humane." |

We broke for lunch.

In the afternoon, the wildlife control officer demonstrated how to set a
1egﬁoﬁd trap (dirt set) in an open field. Wé were later told by a volunteer
trapper that the open field set was a faulty one because few animals cross
- an open field, and those that do tend to be non-target individuals.

The control officer told trappers to wear gloves and bring a kneeling
pad in order to leave no human scent.

At this point, we were placed in the hands of the vice-president and
'presidpnt nf the Central Jersey Furtakers Assoeiétion. Mr. Gimble, the president,"

said a few words. We then broke into two groups: one to learn the rudimentary
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leghold sets on land and the other conibear and leghold traps set in water.
The time spent in each Qroup was about 15 to 20 minutes.

For Teghold traps set on land, we were told we could build a "cubby"
set, a cute name for legholds hidden by a primitive struéture
of small tree limbs or rocks, or a dirt set, which is simply a leghold tFap
set in a hole and camouflaged with sifted dirt and Tleaves.

Mr. Pappa asked our group why no one was asking questions. "Are you
all expert trappers?" he queried. The assorted youngsters, and the few
adults, for that matter, showed no interest in the '"“challenge" of trapping
that is so often used to justify trapping as a "sport." The only times
their interest was engaged was when the instructors were speakihg of killing
the furbearers or the current going rates for pelts.

ETizabeth McMahon, chairman of the NJCA's wildlife committee, and I chose
a dirt set. Although we were constantly surrounded by either Mr. Pappa, the
wildlife control officer or Mr. Byrne (sometimes all three and bbrdering
on cruel and unusual scrutiny), the inspections of other trappers were cursory.

| We then switched to water sets using conibear and leghold traps. Mr.

Gimble explained how to catch prey (beaver) with legholds. Setting the leghold
near the bank of the marsh, he attached the trap to a long length of wire. He
broceeded to drive a series of stakes (tree 1imbs), each a few feet farther out
from the bank than the one preceeding it, and each a few feet apart. He
explained how the beaver, once trapped, will dive away from the bank toward
deeper water. With the wire attached to the trap, he said, the beaver will
panic and become entwined around one of the stakes. At this point, Mr. Gimble
said,"You got him. You got him then. No way he can get out of this - he does

himself in." Mr. Gimble was smiling, and seemed quite proud.
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I interrupted this reverié to ask how long it took the animal to drown
(I had waited for someone else to ask, but they had not). Mr. Gimble paused
and replied, "One minute." Here was yet another dissemblance, for it is
:widely-known that beavers can ho]d their breath for up to 20 minutes and-

muskrats for almost 15. Even the Pennsylvania Trapper Training Guide we were

issued said that beavers stay "submerged" for 10 minutes.

Mr. Gimble demonstrated how to set conibear traps, using a runway set.
Stressing that the trap was submerged in water assures the trapper that other
trappérs will not steal his prey, a phenomenon which must be quite prevalent,
judging from the frequency of warnings on the subject. A submerged trap was
~also deemed as being "selective."

This time, we were asked by Mr. Gimble why no one was asking questions.

"Do ybu know what you are doing?" he asked, somewhat skeptically. |

.we had'our choice of setting a conibear or leghold in water. We chose
a conibear propped up by tree limbs and set in a runway. After 15 minutes,
éveryone returned to the classroom. Out of a broad selection of trapping

sets, the participants had tried but two. It was assumed that trappeérs
try the others on their own during the trapping season.

We returned to the concrete one-foom building to find the raccoon and .
opossum carcasses hung from the porch ceiling by'their hind legs. This sight
encouraged joking among the trappers. |

Mr. Pappa demonstrated how to skin a raccoon. Finally, questions were
being asked. They were about money and the condition of pelts.

A1l furs, we were told, except for beaver, are "cased." The skin is
removed from the animal by slitting the fur from one hind leg to the other

and through a succession of other moves, pulling the hide over the head like
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a sweater. The bone must be pulled out of the tail.

Mr. Pappa told us that the animals were "road kills." Mr. Byrne, who
had informed us that the animals had been trapped, said, "No, they were
trapped last spring and kept in the freezer." This was apparently an
inside joke, because Mr. Pappa laughed and said, "In that nase, we've
come a long way."

Mr. Byrne's earlier statement that the anfma]s were trapped had raised
the questions of where, when and by whom. The legal trapping season had not
yet started.

Byrne remarked that the 20 animals and skins were "junk" and could not
be used. |

While skinning, the students joked. The butts of the jokes were the
dead animals. A sample: "Who's for 'possum stew?" to which a rotund youngster
replied, "Not this piece of crap." |

Amid demeaning epithets, the skinned bodies - which appeared shockingly
meager after being stripped of their furs - were tossed in a large pile.

The sound of skulls hitting together sounded like so many soda bottles.

The bodies were discarded as trash.

We went into the classroom, where Mr. Gimble spoke to us about his
organization. "Trapping is a loner's sport," he said, "so we join clubs
to sell our pelts for the best price. We also fight anti-trap legislation
and that nonsense there." He asked the kids to join.

I was not permitted to take the test because, according to Byrne, i
had not skinned and fleshed. I asked Byrne why other students (in previous
courses) had gotten their certificates without skinning. He said‘he didn't

know. And then he said,‘"I:teach nespect'for the entire animal - and skinning

is a part of it."

75«




Page 14.

I found this comment ludicrous in light of the day's experiences - a day
in which I heard animals referred to as "junk," "thing" and "crap,"; a day
in which the terror of a drowning raccoon was a source of humor; a day in
which the overall purpose of the course was repugnant.

The students took the open-book test, then exchanged papers for grading.
Since I did not take the test, I observed Mr. Byrne signing all the certificates
- before' the test was over.

Everyone received their trapping certificates except. me. I feel this
is a curious distinction, since before my enrollment in the course it appeared
as easy to get a trapping certificate as it is to scratch one's elbow. To my
knowledge, no one has ever failed the New Jersey trapper training coﬁrse. It
appears strange that the one person not granted a certificate is an officer

of Friends of Animals, Inc. It may, in fact, attest to my sanity.
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SUMMARY

Whije strongly opposed to trapping, the simplistic nature of the course,
which was saturated with misinformation, inaccuracies and contradictions,
startled me.

The characteristics of the trappers I was around - as manifested by their
remarks and actions - indicated a complete lack of regard for, indeed, an
unawareness of animal suffering and a contemptuous attitude toward the animals
whose skins they sell. These youngsters were indisputable proof of Dr. Joyce
Brothers' and child educators' analyses that cruelty to animals desensitizes
the perpetrator.

It is my opinion that the trapper training course, offered by the Division
of Fish, Game and Wildlife as an "alternative" to banning the leghold trab;
is nothing more than the political cushion they had hoped it would be. The
course, the caliber of instructors, and the subject matter are an embarrassment
to the state.

As ‘the trapping season starts, one shudders to think of what raccoons, beavers,
otters, foxes, opossums and other animals are enduring at the hands of kids who
could not resist kicking the dead animals used in the course. With the imprimatur
of the state, these school boy trappers are armed with garden trowels, inhumane
traps, rocks, clubs, axes or anything else they can think of in the pursuit of

this perverse recreation. It is a chilling thought.
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George D. Whitney. I am fron Orange, CT and I thank you
for the opportunity to be heard.

A few words about what I am not seems aproposm I
have never joined any humane groupj I am not against animal
experimentation; I am not against hunting and fishing; I am
not a hearts and flowers person.

I have been a companion animal veterinarian in my town
with a special interest in exotic animals and native wild-
life for 38 years. I am a past president of the Connecticut
Veterinary Medical Association. I am an ex-trapper  and
appear before v~u oLy my own expense to speak up against the
use of the steel jawed leghold trap.

Ihree»iearS-agQ Mrs. Whitney and I offered $1,000 to
ényqne who-could-suggeét anything invhature or by the hand
of man to equél thé cruelty of the leghold trap in mammals.
There have been fdur~serious nequests: a gang-raping incident;
a nun in New York City who had crosses cut in her flesh by
thugs; war; and a mole trap. None was considered to come:
close to the suffering of countless thousands. of fur-bearing
animals caught in steel traps at any one moment in the trapping

season.

.\04 d”an éf/iould goin. the Qqctwn ancl PRassior of His gimz; at Penil Qth,ing, gudgzd Not to Have. Lio:d"”

Chy OLIVER WENOELL HOLMES.
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You will hear a great deal of window dressing on this
subject, all of which must take a back seat to the one and
only éentral issue.

I would urge you to make a mental note of the fact that
those who will appear in favor of this device almost without
exception have a financial interest. Those who appear against
it do so on moral grounds with no financial gain.

A few words about the window dressing.

Trappers will snap a woodchuck-size trap on their fingers
and claim there is no pain involved. A trap comparable to one
to hold a man would be a bear trap or having one's hand
slammed in a car door. No trapper will voluntarily expose
himself to either. |

More window dressing -- if a trap is properly set by an
experienced trapper there will be no or a minimum of pain for
the creature to'be trapped.: I doubt anyone on this committee
can conceive of a person slamming a door on your hand with
enough finesse that it will not cause excruciating pain.

Traps are necessary to control animal population is
more window dressing. Nature has controlled excess population
with the survival of the fittest for longer than man's history.
State people spending taxpayers' money to appear before you
- will claim they need the trappers to control populations but
as far as I can determine the state game people have no
liaison with trappers to tell them where they should trap to
cohtrol excess populations and they never have had.

These people and the National Wildlife Federation will

tell you starvation and disease are more painful than 24 hours
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in a leghold trap. This is just not so. The survivors of
the Holocaust claim they suffered no pain in starvation and
most of us in this room have gone without food while sick
with no pain. Are animals that hibernate in pain? Most
disease of wildlife i< without pain.

More window dressing is the need of traps to control
diseases such as rabies. Adult animals are trapped heavily;
since many adults have an immunity to diseases such as rabies
‘the void in nature will be filled with young, more susceptable.
individuals resulting in an increase in a disease such as |
rabies than had no trapping taken-place. This is the opinioﬁ
of the Centers for Disease Control in Atlanta and of a
committee of the National Science Foundation.

” It Would not be fair for me to take more time to address
fhe-Windowidressing. The central issue is the-ever-incfeasing
mountain of evidence indicating that animals.experiehce;pﬁin'
as you and I dc. ‘thus, an animal in a trap or our'hand-slammed

in a car door are comparable and either situation would inflict

excruciating pain. To inflict excruciating pain is Webster's
definition of torture. |

' So, the éentral issue is have the people of ‘the great
State of New Jerséy with the mounting evidence reached a point
‘where they believe they should terminate this torture or not.
Charles Darwin thought it should be eliminated in his day.
At least 64 countries have outlawed it, countries such as
Norway, Sweden, Denmark, West Germany, Britain, Israel, all
of which encourage hunting incidentally.

When you cast your vote it comes down to a ‘simple mnon-

controversial issue. You either believe in or condone torture
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or you don't. If you can vote in favor of the leghold trap
tb be consistent you should favor cockfighting, dogfigﬁting
and bullfighting, none of which:are remotely comparable to
the pain and suffering caused by the leghdld trap just by
virtue of the numbers involved. | |

I thank you and hope your names will appear in writing

a new page of the history of the State of New Jersey.

/Za,(l;/é% 7 7
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State of New Jersey

DIVISION OF

FISH. GAME AND WILDLIFE . _DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PLEASE REPLY TO:
RUSSELL. A. COOKINGHAM : P. O. BOX 1809
DIRECTOR _ PROTECTI!ON TRENTON. MEW JERSEY 08625

Dear New Jersey Trapper:
You have been selected to participate in the New Jersey Division of
Fish, Game and Wildlife annual trapper harvest survey. Your name has been

selected at random from 1980 trapping license stubs. We have no way of

connecting you with the enclosed response card.

Over the past few years trapping has become a controversial issue
The information gathered in the sur&ey is very necessary to Division biuvlogists
in establishing the wvalue and importance of the fur industry in New' Jersey.

Enclosed is a post-paid questicnnaire. Please fill it out and drop
it in the mail as soon as possible. If you cannot remember exact numﬁérs,
give your best estimate. Try #o be as accurate as poésiblef

Yodr’cooperation will help ensure that trapping continues as a viable

sport, oceoupation and industcy in lew Jersey. ‘Thaiih you.
Sincerely yours,
George ‘oward’CﬁTgf/?
Bureau of Wildlife Management
GPH/saw

New Jersey Is An Equal Opportunity Employer
: gl x
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PROJECT TITLE: FURBEARER RESEARCH

STUDY NO. AND TITLE: VIIT - HARVEST, RECREATIONAL AND ECONOMIC SURVEYS

STUDY OBJECTIVE: TO DETERMINE THE ANNUAL HARVEST LEVEL AND RECREATIONAL AND
ECONOMIC VALUES OF NEW JERSEY'S FURBEARER RESOURCE

JOB NO. AND TITLE: VIII-A - TRAPPER HARVEST, RECREATIONAL AND ECONOMIC SURVEY

JOB OBJECTIVE: TO DETERMINE THE HARVEST LEVELS AND THE RECREATIONAL AND ECONOMIC
VALUES OF NEW JERSEY'S WILD FURBEARING RESOURCE

PERIOD COVERED: DECEMBER 1, 1981 - NOVEMEBER 30, 1982

SUMMARY :
Questionnaires were mailed to 1,000 randomly selected puichasers of resident
1980 New Jersey trapping licenses requesting harvest, recreational aud socio-economic
information.
Based on the results of the survey, the estimated furbeare:: harvest for the 1981-82

trapping season was 330,030 muskrat (Ondatra zibethicus), 43,978 raccoon (Procyon

lotor), 8,398 red fox (Vulpes vulpes), 7,486 gray fox (Urocyon cinereoargenteus),

215 beaver (Castor canadensis), 1,178 mink (Mustela vison), 25,004 opossum (Didelphis

virginiana), 4,636 skunk (Mephitis mephitis nigra), 418 weasel (Mustela fremata),

2 coyote (Canis latrans) and 25 river otter (Lutra canadensis). The toial estimated
value of the 1981-82 harvest was 3.1 million dollars at the local level, 9.3 wmillion
dollars at the retail level and 18.6 million dollars jn commerce geuciatzd statewide.

The total man days of recreation derived was 186,802 statewide. ' A
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TARGET DATE:

| | ,
The target date for completion of this job is November 30, 1985.

|
I
I
|

JOB PROGRESS:

Job progress is om schedule,

SIGNIFICANT DEVIATIONS:

There are no significant deviations.

RECOMMENDATIONS :

It is recommended that this job be continued.

COST:
The current segment cost is $4,840.00 (Federal share i1s $3,630.00; state

share is $1,210.00).

PROCEDURES:
A total of 1,000 license stubs were selected at random from the resident

trapping licenses sold during the 1980 calendar year. This sample represents 24.6

- percent of the entire population of 4,060 trappers licensed in 1980. The survey

packet consisted of a twenty-four question questionnaire (Appendix I) which was
mailed to the selected 1,000 trappers within two weeks of the close of the 1981-82

trapping season.

FINDINGS:

Response
0f the 1,000 questionnaires mailed, 51 were returned by the postal authourities
as undeliverable. Of the 949 questionnaires actually delivered, 28.77 were correctly

completed and returned.
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Non-Purchase of License

Of the trappers sampled, 11.0% did not buy a license to trap during the
1981782 season, compared to 15.0% in 1980-81. An estimated 21.77% of the trappers
purchased a 1981 license only and 1.5% purchased only a 1982 license.

Trappers were asked to list ﬁhe reason or reasons that they did not purchase
a license. As in previous years, the lack ofitime to trap was the most common

reason (65.5%). See Table 1.

“Table 1. Reasons for Not Purchasing a Trapping License During the 1981-82 Season

Category Percent of Total
No time to trap 65.
Price .
Illness 10.
Moved

Stolen traps
Leghold ban
No game

Low fur prices
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Trap Types

Trappers used an estimated total of>202,388 traps: 114,874 conibear, 63,362
- legholds, 9,006 box traps, 8,056 diviﬁg traps and 2,090 snares.

Of the ﬁotal trapper population, 82.2% were using conibeafs, 69.37% used legholds, v‘
39.4% used box traps, 21.67% used divers and 3.3% used snares.

When asked to list the type and number of leghold traps used during che 1981-82
season, trappers listed the #1 1/2 coil spring (21.6%) and the #2 coil spring (21.3%)
as the most commonly used trap types (Table 2). When compared to earlier surveys,

dther traps appear to be gaining greater usage, such as #1 stop loss, and #1 long spring.
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‘TabLe}Q. erpeStdf'Leghold Traps Used by New Jersey Trappers.

Trap Type : Percent of Total -Legholds .
#0 Stop Loss .02
#0 ‘Long ‘Spring .02
#0 Jump ‘ A
#0 Coil Spring 0.0
‘#1 Stop Loss 15.3
#1 Long Spring 13.8
#1 Jump 2.4
#1 'Coil Spring 1.7
i#1 1/2 Stop Loss 7.7
#1 1/2 Long Spring 2.6
#1 1/2 Jump 4.4
#1 1/2 Coil ‘Spring 21.6
#1 3/4 Stop Loss .3
#1 3/4 Long Spring 0.0
#1 3/4 Jump .05
#1 3/4 Coil Spring 5.5
##2 ‘Stop .Loss 1.2
#2 Long Spring .97
#2 Jump _ W71
#2 Coil Spring 21.3

Use of ‘the .22 Rifle

Tndividuals .18 years .of .age or older :and possessing a rifle permit can legally
dispatch ‘trapped furbearerc with a .22 rifle. Of ‘the trappers sampled ‘that were 18
or ‘older, 38.67% used .a .22 caliber rifle on 'their trap line during the 1981-82 season

-as ‘compared £o -40.5% in 1980-81.

‘Harvest
'TIhexestimabed:harvestéana‘theimeankharvest;per‘trapper for each furbearer are

shown .in Table 3.
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Table 3. Estimated Statewide Trapper Harvest by Species 1981-82 Season.

Range/Trapper Total

‘Species Mean Harvest/Trapper

Muskrat

Muskrat 86.85 0-1150 - 330,030
Raccoon 11.56 . 0-185 43,928
Red Fox 2.21 0-105 8,398
Gray Fox 1.97 0-37 7,486
Opossum 6.58 . 0-180 25,004
Skunk 1.22 0-23 4,636
Mink .31 0-17 1,178
Weasel .11 0-6 418
Beaver - 0-5 215%
Coyote - 0-1 2%%
Otter - 0-1 25%

* Trappers with special beaver-otter permits only. This is the total
reported harvest, not an estimate.

*% Mandatory reporting of coyotes. Total reported harvest, not an estimate.

Table 4 compares the harvest in 1981-82 to that of 1980-81 and gives the
' petcent change between the two years. The harvest of most species was fairly
consistent with the previous year with a range of -7.3%7 to +33% change seen

in the major species; muskrat, raccoon and fox.

Table 4. Comparison of 1981-82 Estimated Furbearer Harvest With the
1980-81 Harvest

Total Estimated Harvest by Year

Species 1980-81 1981-82 % of Change
Muskrat 356,166 330,030 -7.3
Raccoon 39,574 43,928 +11.0
Red Fox 6,315 8,398 +33.0
Gray Fox 5,894 7,486 +27.0
Beaver 260 215 -17.3
Mink 1,684 1,178 -30.1
Opossum 25,681 25,004 -2.6
Skunk 5,473 4,636 -15.3
Weasel 421 418 -.7
Coyote 1 2

Otter No Season 25

The harvest breakdown by county is presented in Table 5. Salem County

remains the top producer of muskrats with an estimated harvest of 92,416.
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 Table 5. . Estimated Furbearer Harvest by County for the 1981-82 Season

County Muskrat Raccoon Red Fox. Gray Fox Mink Opossum Skunk Weasel Beaver* Otter* Coyote*

Atlantic 21,951 2,273 583 1,720 86 653 427 14 26 7
Bergen 12,365 742 0 0 o 337 139 0 .
Burlington 18,698 3,532 395 82 54 2,643 247 27 31 5
Camden 7,743 571 0 25 12 - 248 37 o 12 2
Cape May -13,008 1,216 256 224 74 1,008 490 12

Cumberland 45,007 1,696 . 1,002 1,149 122 1,159 328 24 13 2
Essex 1,948 661 0. 0 24 74 61 36

Gloucester 22,854 2,341 653 468 74 2,242 468 62 5. 0
Hudson NO: ESTIMATE

Hunterdon - 2,421 4,017 1,043 715 0 2,452 158 12 1
Mercer 7,370 977 25 0 25, 370 86 0

Middlesex 16,768 740 59 59 0 307 62 0

Monmouth 10,513 5,727 585 397 73 1,693 222 13

Morris 8,590 2,592 188 84 2 1,045 431 R § 5 0
Ocean 8,738 2,172 525 867 50 781 121 12 18 2
Passaic -~ 8,647 1,836 0 72 0 120 60 0 1 0.
Salem 92,416 3,192 836 331 0 2,649 441 61

Somerset 3,078 1,524 340 111 44 770 b4 0 iy
Sussex 12,687 4,542 1,319 - 967 471 2,956 280 2 9% 7 1
Union NO ESTIMATE

Warren 15,446 3,238 565 360 49 3,439 612 110 10 0

*Actual harve st, not an estimate.
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There are no estimates of harvest for either Hudson or Union County
because of the poor response to the survey from those areas. This has
little effect on the total estimates however, due to the low numbers of
licensed trappers in these two counties (15 in Essex, 19 in Hudson) Tablé

6).

‘Table 6. Estimated Number of Trappers Residing iﬁ Each County (1981).

County Number of Trappers
.. Atlantic 179
Bergen 110
urlington 198
Camden 91
Cape May 160
.Cumberland 418
Essex 15
_Gloucester _ 422
Hudson —19
Hunterdon 103
Mercer 137
Middlesex 228
Monmouth 156 -
Morris ' 183
Ocean 182
Passaic - 85
Salem 430
Somerset TITT
Sussex ‘ 327
Union 19
Warren 167
Total 3,800

Economics
Table 7 presents a comparison of prices paid for raw fur in 1981-82
to that paid in 1980-81. In general, prices were lower for all species with

the exception of raccoon and red fox.
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Table 7. A Comparison of Fur Prices for the 1981-82 Season and the
- 1980-81 Season.

Species : 1980~-81 1981-82 Change .
Muskrat $ 6.63 $ 4.35 -2.28
Raccoon 18.90 21.65 +2.75
Red Fox 41.75 45,36 +3.61 -
Gray Fox 40.95 "31.78 -9.17
Beaver : 21.33 20.79 - .54
Mink 17.25 15.75 -1.50
Opossum 1.58 1.48 - .10
Skunk , 1.47 1.33 - .14
Weasel .80 .67 - .13
Otter 24,31

Coyote 28.94 '

The value of the 1981-82 New Jersey fur harvest was nearly 3.1 million dollars
as compared to 3.7 million in 1980-81 (Table 8). The decrease is largely a refleétion
of the lower price paid for ﬁhe pelts of most of the furbearers. The 3.1 million
dollars at the local level translates to approximately 9.3 million at the
retail level and 18.6 million in commerce generated statewide. The 3.1 million

represents an income of approximaiely $809.00 per individual trapper.

Table 8. Value of the 1981-82 New Jersey Fur Harvest¥*

. Estimated :Average Estimated
Furbearer Harvest - - ' Price Revenue
‘Muskrat 330,030 $ 4.35 $1,435,630.50

- Raccoon 43,928 - ©21.65 951,041.20
Red Fox 8,398 45.36 380,933.28
Gray Fox 7,486 - 31.78 '237,905.08
Beaver 215 20.79 4,469.85
Mink 1,178 15.75 . -+ 18,553.50
Opossum 25,004 @HL.A8 " 37,005.92
Skunk 4,636 ©1.33 : 6,165.88
Weasel : 418 .67 _ 280.06
Otter : 25 24,31 607.75
Coyote 2 28.94 _ 57.88 1

: $3,072,650.90

* Average raw fur prices were esﬁablished following a survey of 17 fur buyers
and 2 auctions.
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It was possible to trap for a total of 121 days during the 1981-82
season; however, 70.6% of the trappers were active for less than half of

the days available.

Table 9. Frequency Distribution of the Number of Days Trapped During the
1981f82 Season » :

Number of Days Trapped Percent in Category
1-5 3.6
6-10 6.8

11-20 16.3
21-30 13.1
31-40 10.9
41-50 10.4
51-60 9.5
61-70 6.3
71-80 5.4
81-90 4.5
91-100 2.7
101-110 2,7
111~-121 7.7

The estimated total number of man days of recreation derived from trapping
statewide was 186,802. Estimated man days of recreation per county are shown in

Table 10.
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Table 10. Total Estimated Man Days of Trapping Recreation by County During the

1981-82 Season.

County

Atlantic
Bergen
Burlington
Camden
Cape May
Cumberland
Essex
Gloucester
Hudson
Hunterdon
Mercer
Middlesex
Monmouth
Morris
Ocean
Salem
Somerset
Sussex
Union
Warren

Total

Man Days

8,682
4,143
10,421
8,609
9,760
19,604
515
23,910
No Estimate
5,421
6,272
8,869
7,901
7,578
12,127
25,097
5,626
11,036
760

10,471

186,802

Socioeconomic

The age distribution of New Jersey's trappers remains consistently young.

In the 1981-82 survey, 55.4% were under the age of 35 compared to 61.8% in

1980-81 (Table 11).

" Table 11l. Age Distributidnréf Licensed 1981 Trappers

Age Class
10-15
16-17
18-19
20-24
25-29
30-34
35-39
40-44
45-49
50-54
55-59
60-64
65-69
70-74
75-85

> 85

Percent of

All Trappers
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11.

Occupation and income breakdowns of New Jersey trappers are presented

in Table 12 and 13. Blue-collar wquers consistently constitute the largest

percentage of trappers (43.6%);

Table 12. Occupation of Trappers Sampled During the 1980-81 and 1981-82 Seasons

1980-81 Percent 1981-82 Percent
Student 19.4 11.1
Self-Employed 11.7 11.9
Farmer 6.2 6.6
White Collar 11.4 9.1
Blue Collar 39.0 43.6
- Unemployed 3.5 4.5
Retired 8.2 12.8
Military .6 A

Table 13. Trappers Income from Sources Other Than Trapping During 1981-82

Income Percent of All Trappers
0-1,000 7.2
1,000-5,000 14.0
5,000-10,000 16.2
10,000-15,000 20.4
15,000-20,000 ‘ ' 23.4
20,000 18.7
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Appendix 1

New Jersey Trapper Questionnaire

1. Did you buy a tzabping license in: 1981 _

1982

13.

1981 & 1982 _

2, 1If no, or only 198l (and not 1982) why did you not purchase a license?

3. Did yod trap during the 1981-82 szason (Nov. 15,

1981 to March 15, l9$2)? __Yes __No

4. Please list the number of days you trapped during the following periods”of’the
1981-82 trapping season.

November 15 - Nov.30, 1981
Dec. 1 ~ Jan. 1, 1982

Jan. 2, 1982 ~ Feb. 1, 1982
Feb, 2 - March 15, 1982

5. What county do you live in?

Number of Days Tr;gped

The following is the most important question on this questionnaire.

identify trends in the furbearer populations.

please answer the appropriate section carefully.

It helps us to
Read both parts of the question and

6a. If you trapped all the animals you caught in only one county: list the county

; and then list how many of each furbearer you cauv.:ht from

November 15, 1981 to March 15, 1982 (your best estimate if you can't :emember

exactly).

muskrat
raccoon
red fox

grey fox
opossum
skunk

mink ___
weasel
beaver

coyote
otter

6b. If you trapped more than one county, list the total number of each fuibearer you -

caught on the right of the ‘chart below.
in each county under the county name (your best estimate).

Cumberland

Salem

Cap:: May
Gloucester

Bur'..ington

Atlantic

i

Camcien
Ocean’
Middlesex
Monniouth
Mer::er
Huh“erdon
Somcrset

Morris

wWarren

Sussex
Pasuaic

3erven

Essex

Hudsion

Enter the number of animals caught

Total

Number
ol

Animals

Muskrat

Raccoon

Grey fox

Red fox

Opossum

Mink

Weasel

Skunk

Beaver

Otter
Coyote

rland

Salem

Gloucester

w aT
W [Cuns

Muskrat. 400

raccoon 20, 10

Grey fox % ls

EXAMPLE

Total Caught
L5060
40

.
&V
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7. Did you have any accidental captures of animals other than those listed
" in question 62 ) .

If yes, how many?
b dogs cats birds__ . bobcat
: other (specify)
. 8. On the average, now ...ny traps of each type do you run on your trap--line each day?
i Conibear Leghold Box Traps Diving Boxes: Snares_

9. Tf you used legholds, please indicate how many of each size and type you use
on- your average daily trap line.

#0 #1 . 81% #1 3/4 #2
. Stop Loss }
i Long Sprirg ___ | | i o
Jump
f Coil Spring

! 10. Do you modify your legholds? Yes__ No
If yes, which type do you modify? . Briefly describe the modificatien.

11. Did you use a 22 caliber rifle on your trap line this. past season (Nov. 15, 1981
to March 15, 1982)? Yes No

12. How much did it cost you for new equipment this season (only items purchased
this: year) . ;

]

B

I3. What is your age?

—_ ;

14. How old were you when you began trapping?

15. %hat type oy land do you do most or all of your trapping on? Private land
Federal land __ Fish & wildlife mgt. area Other state land
Municipal land ’ (Specify)

16. How many miles do you travel to get to your trap line ‘(estimate)?

17. On the average, how long does. it take you to check your trap line? (frnm when

you leave home to when you return home). G-t hr. 1-3 hrs.
3-5 hrs. S5-7 hrs. " greater than 7_

18. What is your occupation? student self-employed _ farmer
white collar blue collar temporarily unemployed
retired__ military . !

19. What is your yearly income from sources other than trapping?
0-$1000__ . $1000-5000____ . $5-10,000 $10=15,000
$15-20,000_ __ above '$20,000___ ‘¢

20, What level of education have you obtained? = }
Grammar Schoel _ High school__ _ College__ -~ College Graduate
Graduate School _ ‘

21. Please indicate how you sell your fur.

. Fresh Frozen Fleshed & Dried
Unskinned
Skinned
22. -Where do you sell your pelts: local fur buyers___ mail order_ __
suction - otler (evplain)y . ___
23. %ho: taught vou to trap?  father___ grendfather,_ =  brother _ self-taught _ _
) uncle__ _ friend other _ o

24, Yave vou taken the New Jerwey Trarbers Training Course given oy the Division?
¥ b £t 3
s No .

¥f yes, what year? l§“7-__‘ 1978 ce79__. 1580 1981

/ﬂé 14
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THE HUMANE SOCIETY
OF ATLANTIC COUNTY

CAFRIEND TO ANIMALS IN NEED”

SHELTER
1801 Absecon Blvd.
Atlantic City, N. ). 08401
609 3440346

June 10, 1983

Whereas the leghold trap is indiscriminate in its capture of wildlife
and pets, and is a method of trapping that is painful and often
resulting in slow and painful death when said traps are not properly
checked

Whereas many household pets that are caught in traps often die or
have to have a leg amputated

Whereas major humane societies are endeavoring to pass legislation
ba.rming the leghold trap

RESOLVED that the constituents of The Humane Society of Atlantic
County here gathered in conference commend the actions of any and all
humane societies seeking to ban the leghold trap in Ner Jersey and
the United States of America and be it

FURTHER RESOLVAD that the Hunane Society of Atlantic County encourage
its members and the general public to support the efforts of The
Humane. Society of the United Stateg, The Society ofor Animal Protective
legislation and Friends of Animals seeking to ban the leghold trap.

Marge MclLaughlin, Secretary
HUMANE SOCIEPY OF ATLANTIC COUNTY
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